K

WK Group (Holdings) Limited
BAREEE T () A R4 W]

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RFASRSEMRAINERLF)
Stock Code R385 : 2535

2023

ANNUAL REPORT




Contents B $%

Corporate Information

Financial Highlights

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Biography of Directors and Senior Management
Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Financial Information

NAEIER

TR E

TEHE

ERETm IO

EERSRERERE

EEREAME

&
S

o A S hk
g N=] *’Eﬁﬁ’x

AR RER

fRE MMM

MBEME

PagesE X

2

18
26
48
76

115

123

124

126

127

128

219



Corporate Information 2 7 &%}

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kam Kei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Kam Kong

Ms. Chan Suk Man

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wing Hong (Chairman)
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cha Ho Wa

Mr. Yu Chun Kit

Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Chun Kit (Chairperson)
Mr. Cha Ho Wa

Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Cha Ho Wa (Chairperson)

Mr. Chan Kam Kei

Mr. Yu Chun Kit

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chan Kam Kei (Chairperson)
Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert

Mr. Yu Chun Kit

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
Suite 102, Cannon Place

P.O. Box 712

North Sound Rd.

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9006

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 1510-1511, 15th Floor

Fortune Commercial Building

362 Sha Tsui Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

EEg

WITEE
PREE T (TTEAE#)
PRET A
PRREZ+

FNTES
BROKR A (£/E)
FHEEXT

BUFRITES
BRELE
RIEGSTE
BEERE

BREES
RIEGSTLE (E/E)
BRELL
BEESLE

FMEES
BERELRL(FE)
REELE
RIEHTEE

REZES
REELLE (EE)
BEESLE
RIEEILE

FERSEMPERE
Suite 102, Cannon Place
P.O. Box 712

North Sound Rd.

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9006
Cayman Islands

MERBEBTEEEME

BB

AR

YD IH 5836255
ERBEANE
15181510-1511 =



AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Ms. Chan Suk Man
Mr. Tam Hon Fai

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Global Services (Cayman) Limited
71 Fort Street

PO Box 500

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Tam Hon Fai
Certified Public Accountant

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Grande Capital Limited
Room 2701, 27/F, Tower 1
Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER TO THE COMPANY
As to Hong Kong law

ONC Lawyers

19/F, Three Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

1 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Corporate Information 2 7 &%}

REAR
FRRSE 2+
i

MEHERNBFELAE

Appleby Global Services (Cayman) Limited
71 Fort Street

PO Box 500

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

DREWE
ERERLE
B BATAD

BEED
EORUKEG TR ETEFT
B AT
AR Flla B R EAT
BA

IR

KFRE221E

ERER
HEMEBRAF
BB
o8 BIE 185
B
1EE27H 82701 =

RRTZERER
BREEZE

TR PREZRD Z T F

B

IR

RELE 585

R 5 B35 % = FE191&

FEERRIT
BRLSESRITERAA
B

ERANEH1H

Annual Report 2023 ¢ —Z_—=FF3f



4

Corporate Information 2 7 &%}

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

2103B, 21/F

148 ElectricRoad

North Point

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.wing-kei.com.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
info@wing-kei.com.hk

STOCK CODE
2535

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

BEERMNBFERIE

EERBAFERERAR
B

kA

BRIBE 14855
2112103B%E

NOE )

www.wing-kei.com.hk

REEBRREBELIN

info@wing-kei.com.hk

B 43155
2535



Financial Highlights i % #=

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue increased by approximately HK$33.8 million or
10.1%, from approximately HK$336.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$370.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Gross profit increased by approximately HK$4.2 million or
6.2%, from approximately HK$66.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately HK$71.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$25.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately HK$39.3
million).

Basic earnings per share was approximately HK1.7 cents
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately
HK2.6 cents).

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H%&

Dear Shareholders,

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of WK
Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2023, together with the comparative figures for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were successfully listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 March 2024 (the “Listing Date”) by
way of share offer (the “Share Offer”) (the “Listing”).

The Group is a structural steelwork contractor in Hong Kong,
specialising in the supply, fabrication and installation of structural
steel for construction projects in Hong Kong. According to the
industry report included in the Company’s prospectus dated 29
February 2024 (the “Prospectus”), the demand for structural
steelwork in Hong Kong will continue to grow at a CAGR of
approximately 4.8% from 2023 to 2027, reaching a gross value
of approximately HK$12,580.1 million in 2027. Driven by various
growth drivers including (i) the demand for structural steelwork
generated from the planned and ongoing infrastructural and
property developments in both public and private sectors in Hong
Kong; (i) the increasingly common adoption of structural steelwork
for construction in Hong Kong owing to its eco-friendliness
nature, flexibility of use and better performance in achieving space
efficiency; and (i) the growing emphasis and continuous support
from the Hong Kong government for the development of the
structural steelwork industry, including the increase in use of steel
structures by the Hong Kong government in major infrastructure
projects and the establishment of the Chinese National Engineering
Research Centre for Steel Construction at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, which is likely to improve applied research
and technology in structural steel engineering and infrastructure
sustainability, as well as strengthen the structural steel engineering
industry’s productivity, capability and competitiveness. The gross
value of structural steelwork in Hong Kong is expected to maintain
a steady growth.
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H &

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group successfully
secured numerous tendering opportunities by demonstrating
the Group’s capabilities and effectively managing the resources.
The Group possessed professional expertise and technical
competence, which allowed the Group to obtain different business
opportunities through customer invitations for tender. Furthermore,
the Group had extensive experience and knowledge in the field
of structural steelwork. Whether it was in fabrication or forming of
steel structures, the Group was able to deliver high-quality services.
The Group’s engineers and technical staff have strong professional
backgrounds and skills, empowering them to tackle various
complex engineering challenges and meet the specifications
outlined in building plans and designs.

Through the efforts to respond to tender invitations from customers,
the Group was awarded the following tenders, leading to revenue
growth of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023:

(i) a private commercial development located at Causeway Bay
with an estimated contract sum of approximately HK$388.0
million;

(i) a private commercial development located at Central with an
estimated contract sum of approximately HK$55.0 million;

(i)  a public residential development located at Tung Chung with
an estimated contract sum of approximately HK$43.8 million;
and

(iv)  an infrastructual and public facilities development located
at Kai Tak with an estimated contract sum of approximately
HK$62.7 million.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 19 projects (31 December
2022: 28 projects) on hand with backlog value of approximately
HK$550.5 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$253.5
million).
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H%&

PROSPECTS

The principal business objective of the Group is to further
strengthen its market position, increase its market share and
capture the growth in the Hong Kong structural steelwork industry.
The Group intends to achieve its business objective by expanding
the scale of operation through its intended effort in actively seeking
opportunities in undertaking additional structural steelwork projects,
from both existing and potential new customers, on top of the
present scale of operation and the Group’s current projects on
hand. The Group intends to pursue the following key business
strategies: (i) competing for structural steelwork projects and
expanding its market share; (i) expanding its production capacity
of structural steel; (i) adhering to prudent financial management
to ensure optimal finance costs and capital sufficiency; and (iv)
expanding the Group’s workforce. For further details, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Business — Business strategies” in the
Prospectus.

In the face of economic uncertainties and government budget
deficits, the Group maintains a cautious and attentive approach
towards market fluctuations. It closely monitors market trends,
economic indicators, and government policies, enabling it to
make informed decisions and adjust strategies accordingly. The
Group allocates resources prudently, maintains strong customer
relationships, and responds promptly to changes. These measures
ensure the resilience and reliability of the Group in uncertain times.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to the
management of the Group and all the staff for their hard work and
dedication, as well as its shareholders, business associates and

other professional parties for their support throughout the period.

Chan Wing Hong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis BBzl mEE 0T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue increased by approximately HK$33.8 million or 10.1%,
from approximately HK$336.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately HK$370.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, which was mainly attributable to the
revenue contributed by some new projects were awarded in 2023,
such as (i) a private commercial development located at Causeway
Bay with an estimated contract sum of approximately HK$388.0
million; (ii) a private commercial development located at Central
with an estimated contract sum of approximately HK$55.0 million;
(iii) a public residential development located at Tung Chung with
an estimated contract sum of approximately HK$43.8 million and
(iv) an infrastructure and public facilities development located at
Tai Tak with an estimated contract sum of approximately HK$62.7
million, resulting in more amount of works performed during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Cost of Services

Cost of services mainly comprised cost of materials, subcontracting
fees, direct labour costs, transportation and machinery service fees.

The cost of services increased by approximately HK$29.7 million
or 11.0%, from approximately HK$269.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately HK$299.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The increase was primarily driven by
the increase in the amount of works performed, which was in line
with the increase in revenue.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by approximately HK$4.2 million or 6.2%,
from approximately HK$66.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately HK$71.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, which was mainly driven by the increase
in revenue as discussed above. Gross profit margin remained
stable at approximately 19.9% for the year ended 31 December
2022 and at approximately 19.2% for the year ended 31 December
2023.
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Other income and other (loss)/gain, net

Other income and other net (loss)/gain changed from other income
and gain of approximately HK$2.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to other loss of approximately HK$0.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023, which was mainly due to (i)
the decrease in government grants received by the Group from
Employment Support Scheme under Anti-Epidemic Fund; and
(ii) the loss recognised for the change in value of life insurance
contracts, which was measured at its cash surrender value at each
balance sheet date.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised staff costs, motor
vehicle expenses, depreciation and exchange differences.

Administrative expenses remained stable at approximately HK$19.1
million and HK$19.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022, respectively. The increase in audit fee and
staff costs is offset by the decrease in exchange losses recognised
in relation to the Group’s operation in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”).

Impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets

The Group recorded impairment losses on financial assets and
contract assets of approximately HK$3.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 and approximately HK$1.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023. Such decrease was mainly due
to the specific provision made on trade receivable and retention
receivable from one of the Group’s customers for the year ended
31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [E 1w 2 47

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing and the Listing expenses of
approximately HK$16.0 million incurred during the year ended 31
December 2023, the profit for the year decreased by approximately
HK$14.1 million or 35.8%, from approximately HK$39.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$25.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, while the net profit
margin decreased from approximately 11.7% for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately 6.8% for the the year ended 31
December 2023.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group needs to maintain a solid liquidity for working capital to
support the Group’s business operations. The principal sources
of liquidity are equity capital, cash generated from operations and
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2023, the Group maintained
a healthy liquidity position with net current assets balance of
approximately HK$117.7 million (2022: approximately HK$112.1
million) and comprising cash and cash equivalent of approximately
HK$8.7 million (2022: approximately HK$70.9 million), respectively.
The cash and cash equivalents were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and in Renminbi (‘RMB”). The Shares were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 8 March 2024. There
has been no change in the capital structure of the Company since
then. As at the date of this annual report, the capital structure of the
Company comprised mainly issued share capital and reserves. The
Group also deployed bank borrowings as its financial resources.

Bank Borrowings

Bank borrowings as at 31 December 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$9.9 million (2022: approximately HK$10.6
million). The bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and bear interest at floating rates.
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Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings (i.e. bank borrowings,
amounts due to directors and lease liabilities) divided by the total
equity as at the respective reporting dates. The gearing ratio
decreased from 19.3% as at 31 December 2022 to approximately
9.5% as at 31 December 2023. Such decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in lease liabilities and amounts due to directors.

Net debt to equity ratio

Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as net debts (i.e. bank
borrowings, amounts due to directors and lease liabilities, net
of cash and cash equivalents) divided by total equity as at the
respective reporting dates. The Group recorded net cash positions
as at 31 December 2022. The net debt to equity ratio was
approximately 3.1% as at 31 December 2023, which was due to
the dividend distribution.

Treasury Policy

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities, and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements all the time.

Capital Expenditures
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group incurred capital

expenditures of approximately HK$1.4 million (2022: approximately
HK$0.3 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [E 1w 2 47

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business, the Group has been subject to a
number of claims due to personal injuries suffered by employees of
the Group or the Group’s subcontractors in accidents arising out of
and in the course of their employment. The Board is of the opinion
that such claims are covered by insurance and will not result in
any material adverse impact on the financial position or results and
operations of the Group. No provision has been made in respect of
these claims in the year ended 31 December 2023.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS AND
COMMITMENTS

The Directors confirm that as at the date of this annual report,
the Group did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements or
commitments.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, (i) non-revolving loan facility amounting
to approximately HK$7.0 million and revolving loan facility
amounting to approximately HK$2.0 million were guaranteed by
Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Ms. Chan Suk Man and
Mr. Chan Wing Hong, and were secured by properties owned by
Wealthy River International Investment Limited, being a related
company of the Group, and life insurance contracts owned by Mr.
Chan Kam Kei and Ms. Chan Suk Man; and (i) non-revolving loan
facility amounting to approximately HK$0.9 million was secured
by the properties owned by Wealthy River International Investment
Limited, Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, and
was guaranteed by Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Mr. Chan Kam Kei and
Mr. Chan Wing Hong respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS OR
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not
have any significant investments, acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s revenue from customers is mainly from Hong Kong
while the part of materials purchased in the PRC and the fabrication
of structural steel mainly operates in the PRC. Accordingly, the
revenue is received in HK$ while part of costs arising from the
Group’s operations are generally settled in RMB. As a result,
fluctuations in the value of HK$ against RMB could adversely
affect the financial results of the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group did not experience any material
difficulties or impacts on its operations or liquidity as a result of
currency exchange fluctuation.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes during the year ended 31 December 2023 and there was
no hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 December 2023. The
Group will continue to monitor closely the exchange rate risk arising
from its existing operations and new investments in future. The
Group will further implement the necessary hedging arrangement
to mitigate any significant foreign exchange risk when and if
appropriate.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the major financial instruments include
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits, amounts due
from/(to) directors, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
accruals and other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
The management manages such exposure to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 148 employees (2022:
144 employees) who were directly employed by the Group and
based in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group offers remuneration
package to the employees which includes salary and bonuses.
Generally, the Group considers employees’ salaries based on
each of their qualifications, position and seniority. The Group
has an annual review system to appraise the performance of the
employees, which constitutes the grounds of the decision as to the
salary raises, bonuses and promotions. The remuneration of the
Directors is decided by the Board upon the recommendation from
the remuneration committee of the Company having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

Details of the remuneration of the employees and Directors during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are
set out in Notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Prior to the Listing, in January 2024, the Company declared
dividends of approximately HK$26,586,000, of which approximately
HK$10,000,000 was settled by cash and approximately
HK$16,586,000 was offset against the aggregate amounts due
from the directors and the related company.

On 8 March 2024, the Company issued additional 1,499,999,999
Shares by way of capitalisation of HK$14,999,999.99 standing
to the credit of the Company’s share premium account (the
“Capitalisation Issue”). On the same day, the Shares were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with an offer Price of
HK$0.25 per Share. In connection with the Listing, the Company
issued a total of 500,000,000 Shares for total proceeds (before
related fees and expenses) of HK$125,000,000. Dealing in the
shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
commenced on 8 March 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there were no material events from the
end of the reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 8 March 2024.

The amount of gross proceeds from the Share Offer is HK$125
million and the amount of net proceeds from the Share Offer
is approximately HK$91.0 million after deducting underwriting
commissions and the expenses relating to the Share Offer (the “Net
Proceeds”).

The Net Proceeds will be used in the manner consistent with
that as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of

FREREAR

F& 19 72024 3 A8 H =B X FT AR TN
‘ﬁo

B BREMSHRBERBER/I26BEAT

M) B EMSERRFEN /.08 EE
T (MR B HMS R ERD R EF AR
) ([FrgsEFH]) -

PSR R B S R REHREIZ ARG
B LSRR RE] —EAREE BT

Proceeds” of the Prospectus, the details of which are as outlined NEA - EFFERlnT
below:
Approximate Expected
Intended Percentage timeline
use of of the Total  for the use of
Purposes Net Proceeds Net Proceeds Net Proceeds
FRSFUEREEN (WBRIEEE BAMGREF
Az REAZ #ABHYEIL BENEBREX
HK$ million
B &
Financing the up-front costs of A8 B M BT ARRK AN ER 4 December 2024
projects B 56.0 61.5% 2024 F12 A
Acquiring a piece of land and setting UX8E— @b ¥R - Wi December 2025
up a new production facility — BT A E R E 33.1 36.4% 20254 12 A
Expanding and strengthening December 2024
manpower A K hnsg AF 1.9 21% 2024 F 12 B
91.0 100%

As at the date of this annual report, there was no further change for
the intended use of Net Proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus.
Since the date of Listing on 8 March 2024 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has not yet utilised the Net
Proceeds.
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FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus, as at the date of this annual report,
the Group did not have other plans for material investments and
capital assets.

DIVIDEND

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and prior to the
Reorganisation (as defined in the Prospectus), dividends of
HK$20,000,000 were declared and settled by a subsidiary of the
Company to its then shareholders (2022: HK$8,000,000).

In January 2024, prior to the Capitalisation Issue and the Listing,
the Company declared an interim dividend of approximately
HK$26.6 million (representing approximately HK$26.6 million per
ordinary Share), of which approximately HK$10.0 million was
settled by cash before the Listing and approximately HK$16.6
million was offset against the aggregate amounts due from the
Directors and the related company.

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management ZERk 5L EE EERE

DIRECTORS

The Board consists of eight Directors, comprising three executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kam Kei, aged 48, was appointed as a Director on 28
June 2023 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 6
July 2023. Mr. Chan Kam Kei also serves as the chief executive
officer of the Group, the chairperson of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management and formulation of business
strategies of the Group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company, namely WK Development Group Limited (“WK
Development”), Wing Kei Structural Metalworks Company Limited
(“Wing Kei Hong Kong”) and Wing Kei Management Limited
(“Wing Kei Management”). He is the son of Mr. Chan Wing Hong
and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, and the brother of Mr. Chan Kam
Kong and Ms. Chan Suk Man. Mr. Chan Kam Kei is one of the
Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company.

Mr. Chan Kam Kei co-founded the Group in July 1999 with Mr.
Chan Wing Hong, and has since accumulated over 24 years of
experience in the structural steelwork industry. Since founding the
Group, Mr. Chan Kam Kei has been overseeing various aspects
of the Group’s business including its strategic and corporate
development, expansion plans and bidding tenders, and leading the
Group to gradually expand its business throughout the years and
undertake both private and public projects, including some high-
profile projects, the details of which are set out in the paragraph
headed “History, development and Reorganisation — Our business
development” of the Prospectus.

Mr. Chan Kam Kei has been a member of the New Territories
General Chamber of Commerce since March 2013 and was a
director of the chamber from 2014 to 2016 and 2020 to 2022. He
has also been a member of Tsuen Wan Trade Association Limited
since April 2016. Mr. Chan Kam Kei attended secondary school
education in Canada.
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Mr. Chan Kam Kong, aged 45, was appointed as a Director on
28 June 2023 and was re-designated as an executive Director
on 6 July 2023. Mr. Chan Kam Kong also serves as the chief
operating officer of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
overall project management and day-to-day management of the
operations of the Group. He is also a director of all subsidiaries of
the Company, namely WK Development, Wing Kei Hong Kong,
Wing Kei Management and Dongguan Yongji Metal Component
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (e kESBHHERIERRAR]). He is
the son of Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, and
the brother of Mr. Chan Kam Kei and Ms. Chan Suk Man. Mr. Chan
Kam Kong is one of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company.

Mr. Chan Kam Kong joined the Group in September 2003, and
has since accumulated nearly 20 years of experience in the
structural steelwork industry. Since joining the Group, Mr. Chan
Kam Kong has been overseeing various aspects of the Group’s
business including its strategic and corporate development, project
management and expansion plans. Mr. Chan Kam Kong has been
managing the Group’s operations in the PRC.

Mr. Chan Kam Kong graduated from Centennial College in Canada
in April 2003. He has also been a member and executive vice
chairman of the Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers Association
and the Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment Dalingshan Branch since April 2019 and August 2018,
respectively.

Ms. Chan Suk Man, aged 43, was appointed as a Director on 28
June 2023 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 6
July 2023. She is primarily responsible for the overall day-to-day
management of the operations and administration of the Group.
She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company,
namely WK Development, Wing Kei Hong Kong and Wing Kei
Management. She is the daughter of Mr. Chan Wing Hong and
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, and the sister of Mr. Chan Kam Kong and
Mr. Chan Kam Kei. Ms. Chan Suk Man is one of the Controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.

Note: The English names of the bodies/entities which are marked with “*”
are translated, or transliterated from their Chinese names and are for
identification purposes only.
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Ms. Chan Suk Man has over seven years of experience in the
structural steelwork industry. Prior to joining the Group in January
2016, Ms. Chan Suk Man has accumulated over ten years of
experience in the finance sector. From March 2005 to August
2009, Ms. Chan Suk Man worked in the Hong Kong branch of The
Royal Bank of Scotland N.V. (formerly known as ABN AMRO Bank
N.V.) with her last position as relationship manager of retail and
commercial markets in Asia. From December 2010 to February
2012, Ms. Chan Suk Man worked in Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited with her last position as business officer in securities
services of personal banking and product management. From
February 2012 to December 2015, Ms. Chan Suk Man worked in
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited with her last position as
associate in cash clearing risk management of the global clearing
division.

Ms. Chan Suk Man graduated from the University of Toronto,
Canada, with a degree of bachelor of science in June 2004. She
further obtained a master’s degree of science in mathematics for
finance and actuarial science in Hong Kong jointly awarded by the
City University of Hong Kong and the Université Paris-Dauphine,
France in July 2010.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wing Hong, aged 75, was appointed as a Director on
28 June 2023 and was re-designated as a non-executive Director
on 6 July 2023. Mr. Chan Wing Hong also serves as the chairman
of the Board. He is primarily responsible for participating in the
decision making of the Board with respect to strategic development
of the Group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company, namely WK Development and Wing Kei Hong Kong. He is
the spouse of Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, and the father of Mr. Chan
Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong and Ms. Chan Suk Man. Mr. Chan
Wing Hong is one of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company.

Mr. Chan Wing Hong has accumulated over 40 years of experience
in structural steel works, metal works and general construction.
Mr. Chan Wing Hong co-founded the Group in July 1999 with Mr.
Chan Kam Kei. Since founding the Group, Mr. Chan Wing Hong
has been overseeing various aspects of the Group’s business
including its strategic and corporate development, expansion
plans and bidding tenders, and leading the Group to gradually
expand its business throughout the years and undertake both

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

BRELTNMARTRTERERA LT
K5 - 20161 AIAREER « FRUR
ZRTERERMITEZEETFLR - R
2005F3 A E2009F8 7 + FRRMELZ T EH
HRMERRT AIBATMRIT BEAES
TR SEBCATNTERBENS
HPHIE o 201012 HE20124%2A -
BROREZEZ TR BIRIT (BB BRAEME
B EBUAEARTREREEES
IRFGZEFE 1T - 201252 B E2015%F12
A BRAZEZREITREER G REEFER
NEAE  BEBUARKEESNREE
ERBREIRIBRE o

BURZERZ 2004 F6 A EENMEKR LM
ZRE - BISIEE L2 - R2010F7H -
BREBE - FPREEBUTARE LA
ERENREMEBENSHEABEHS
BB -

FUTES

BRKEESEHE - 755% - R20239F6H28H %
FIEAESE - WH2023F7 A6BERAT A
EMITES - FRKRALENMEFESSE
o BEEEERAERNRBERLSHA
EEZSNRE - BHARARZHEMBA
7] (MWK Development ok EEB) N E
FoHASREERLINES UEKREE
S RBIAAERRBREZ THE -
BOKERSEEARARIERIRR (FER LT
BANz—

POKBRAERMAER IR cBITRER—
MRIESE TR ZREBA0FERLE - BKFERLE
M1999F 7 AR E AL E/HRABI L AE
B - BRI RSB - BkEEE—H
BEAKEZHEER  RERMAOEE
REFEER BRTERIRE - WHEEXR
SERZFRELERER - WRELE
KAEEE  2EETEHEXBEEE &



Biography of Directors and Senior Management EExk 5 EEERERE

private and public projects, including some high-profile projects,
the details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “History,
development and Reorganisation — Our business development” in
the Prospectus. Prior to founding the Group, from February 1983
to June 1999, Mr. Chan Wing Hong worked at Choi Lam Kee Iron
Works Limited (currently known as Hang Yick Engineering Limited),
a company engaging in iron works. Mr. Chan Wing Hong attended
secondary school education in Hong Kong.

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, aged 72, was appointed as a Director
on 28 June 2023 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 6 July 2023. She is primarily responsible for the overall
corporate strategies of the Group. She is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company, namely WK Development and Wing
Kei Hong Kong. She is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wing Hong, and
the mother of Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong and Ms.
Chan Suk Man. Ms. Choi Chick Cheong is one of the Controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong joined the Group in July 1999 and has
since accumulated over 24 years of experience in the structural
steelwork industry. Since joining the Group, Ms. Choi Chick Cheong
has been assisting Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Mr. Chan Kam Kei by
providing administrative and secretarial support to the Group. Ms.
Choi Chick Cheong attended secondary school education in Hong
Kong.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Ho Wa, aged 34, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 February 2024. He is the chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Cha has over 7 years of experience in the legal field in Hong
Kong. Mr. Cha was admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong in October 2018 and he has been a practising solicitor
since then. Mr. Cha worked at Messrs. Peter K.S. Chan & Co.
since June 2016 with his last position as partner. Since April 2023,
Mr. Cha has been working in Messrs. Eddie Lee & Co., Solicitors
as senior consultant. In addition, from September 2022 to January
20283, Mr. Cha served as a part-time visiting lecturer at the
Community College of the School of Professional and Continuing
Education of The University of Hong Kong (HKU SPACE). From
December 2021 to December 2022, Mr. Cha was accredited as
a general mediator of the Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation
Association Limited.
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From December 2020 to September 2021, Mr. Cha was an
independent non-executive director of China Oil Gangran Energy
Group Holdings Limited (currently known as Century Energy
International Holdings Limited), a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8132). Since September 2023, Mr.
Cha has been an independent non-executive director of Vision
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8107).

Mr. Cha graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor’s degree of arts in November 2013, and further obtained
a degree of Juris Doctor and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2015 and
July 2016, respectively.

Mr. Yu Chun Kit, aged 34, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 February 2024. He is the chairperson of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yu has over 12 years of experience in corporate finance,
accounting and auditing. Mr. Yu worked at BDO Limited from
October 2011 to July 2014, with his last position as senior
associate. From July 2014 to August 2015, Mr. Yu worked at
KPMG with his last position as assistant manager. From December
2016 to December 2017, Mr. Yu worked at Kingston Corporate
Finance Limited as assistant manager. Mr. Yu has been the financial
controller and company secretary of Mannings (Asia) Consultants
Limited, being a subsidiary of Boltek Holdings Limited, a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8601), and
Boltek Holdings Limited since January 2018 and April 2018,
respectively. In addition, Mr. Yu has been a company secretary of
Global Uin Intelligence Holdings Limited (formerly known as Global
Dining Holdings Limited and Singapore Food Holdings Limited), a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8496),
since September 2019.

Since April 2022, Mr. Yu has been an independent non-executive
director of Sinohope Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known
as New Huo Technology Holdings Limited and Huobi Technology
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1611).
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Mr. Yu graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a degree of bachelor of business administration in accounting and
finance in October 2011. He has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since July 2015.

Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 5 February 2024. He is a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Liu has over 37 years of experience in structural engineering.
From January 1986 to December 1987, Mr. Liu worked at Camp
Scott Furphy Pty. Ltd. in Sydney, Australia as a graduate engineer.
From January 1988 to April 1989, Mr. Liu worked at Bernard Leung
& Partners as a project engineer. Prior to co-founding Liu Hok Yan
& Associates Limited in July 1995 and subsequent to his departure
from Bernard Leung & Partners in April 1989, Mr. Liu worked at
Fugro (Hong Kong) Limited with his last position as senior engineer.
In July 1995, Mr. Liu co-found Liu Hok Yan & Associates Limited
and has been working as director since then. Mr. Liu re-joined
Fugro (Hong Kong) Limited in June 1996 and left in June 1999
with his last position as associate director. In October 1997, Mr.
Liu founded Albert Liu & Associates Limited (formerly known as
LC Design Consultants Limited) and has been working as director
since then.

Mr. Liu graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia, with a
degree of bachelor of science in March 1984 and further obtained a
degree of bachelor of engineering in civil engineering from the same
university in March 1986. Mr. Liu has been a registered structural
engineer, an authorised person (list of engineers) and a registered
inspector (list of engineers) under the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter
123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) since November 1994, April 1999
and November 2015, respectively. Mr. Liu has been a member of
the Institution of Structural Engineers and the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers since November 1989 and May 1993, respectively.
In addition, Mr. Liu has been a PRC registered structural engineer
(Class 1) since March 2008.
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Senior Management

Mr. Tam Hon Fai, aged 40, is the financial controller of the Group
and the company secretary of the Company and is responsible for
the financial management and secretarial affairs of the Group.

Mr. Tam worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September
2006 to August 2011 in the audit department. From January 2012
to November 2022, Mr. Tam acted as an audit partner of CTY &
Co, a CPA firm. Since August 2017, Mr. Tam has been a director
of JMG Corporate Advisory Limited, a firm principally engaged in
the provision of corporate advisory services. Since June 2020, Mr.
Tam has been a director of Marksman Services Group Limited, a
firm principally engaged in provision of corporate advisory services.
Since October 2020, Mr. Tam has acted as a director of IPA CPA
Limited.

Mr. Tam has served different roles in various listed companies as
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December 2011 to July 2013

Noble House (China) Holdings Limited (currently

Company secretary

known as Zhonghua Gas Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 8246), a company listed on GEM of the Stock

Exchange

2011512 AE2013%F7 A

February 2014 to September 2014
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Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code:
2298), a company then listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange in July 2014 which transferred its listing to
the Main Board in March 2017

BABEEERER AR (BRHRIR - 2293) - /AR
201457 ARBE 2 FIGEM LTV A A] - 32 A FIH2017
FEIABEFRET

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

REWE

Financial controller
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Period Company name, stock code and venue of listing Position

HAR ATERE - RORFER EHibE Bz

Since August 2019 S&T Holdings Limited (stock code: 3928), a company Independent non-
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange executive director

B201958 A it S&T Holdings Limited (BXD 1R : 3928) - A—FIRER B IEHITES

PRER EMEVRE]

December 2020 to February 2022  Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited, a company

Company secretary

previously listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock

code: 8086) until 4 July 2023
2020512 H 2202242 A

BB ERERAR (—AERBRMGEM MM LR ARMWE

Al fRDAEE : 8086) © B £2023F7 A4H

Mr. Tam obtained a degree of bachelor of business administration
in accounting from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in May 2006. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2010
and is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Leung Lok Him, aged 36, is the project manager of the Group
and is responsible for overseeing and managing project execution
and operation of the Group.

Mr. Leung has over seven years of experience in the structural
steelwork industry. He first joined the Group in October 2012 until
June 2014 as project engineer. Mr. Leung re-joined the Group in
August 2015 as project engineer and was promoted to his current
position in April 2023.

Mr. Leung obtained a degree of bachelor of engineering in
mechanical engineering from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in April 2010. From October 2010 to October
2012, he worked in Genetron Engineering Company Limited with
his last position as assistant engineer. From June 2014 to July
2015, he worked in Leighton Contractors (Asia) Limited with his last
position as engineer.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate
governance and business practices. The Company’s corporate
governance practices are based on the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). During the period from the Listing Date to date of
this annual report, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code and, where applicable, the
recommended best practices of the CG Code.

CULTURE AND CORPORATE STRATEGY

The Group is committed to providing its customers with high-
quality structural steelworks and maximising the interests of its
stakeholders.

The Group intends to pursue the following business strategies:
(i) competing for structural steelwork projects and expanding the
market share; (ii) expanding the production capacity of structural
steel; (i) adhering to prudent financial management to ensure
optimal finance costs and capital sufficiency; and (iv) expanding the
workforce.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the required standard
for securities transactions by Directors. All Directors, after specific
enquiries by the Company, confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the period
from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the formulation of business policies
and strategies of the Group, the nomination and appointment
of Directors, and to ensure the availability of resources as well
as the effectiveness of its system of internal control. The senior
management was delegated the authority and responsibilities
by the Board for the day-to-day management and operations
of the Group. In addition, the Board has also established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
duties and responsibilities as set out in their terms of reference
respectively. Each Director shall ensure that he/she carries out his/
her duty in good faith in compliance with the standard of applicable
laws and regulations, and acts in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised eight
Directors, including three executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Details of
the Board composition by category are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kam Kei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Kam Kong

Ms. Chan Suk Man

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wing Hong (Chairman)
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cha Ho Wa

Mr. Yu Chun Kit

Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert

The details of Directors are set out in the section headed “Biography
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and monitoring of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.
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The Company has arranged appropriates liability insurance
in respect of legal action against the Directors. The insurance
coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group’s activities
with a view to developing its business and enhancing shareholders’
value. The Board has delegated the daily operation and day-today
management of the Group as well as the implementation of the
Board’s policies and strategies to the executive Directors and
management of the Group.

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly and at least four times
a year, and the Directors will receive at least 14 days prior written
notice of such meetings in compliance with paragraphs C.5.1
and C.5.3 of part 2 of the CG Code. The company secretary of
the Company assists the chairman to prepare the meeting notice
and agenda. Each Director may include any item in the agenda.
The agenda, accompanied by meeting papers with sufficient and
reliable information, are sent to each Director at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to enable the directors
to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed,
except where a Board meeting or committee meeting is convened
on a very urgent basis to consider any urgent ad hoc matter. The
company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Additional Board
meetings will be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad
hoc issues. Any Director who is not able to attend physically may
participate at any Board meeting through means of a telephone
or tele-conferencing or any other telecommunications facility, in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
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During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual RETmABRERERAIEESAE - KA

report, no general meeting was due to be convened and one Board A EAMAETEBRMNKRRERE - 8T
meeting was held and the attendance of each Director is set out T—REZZEE MSES2HFELH
below: O -

Board Meeting

Attended/Held

HE BHEESEENH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chan Kam Kei (Chief Executive Officer) PREBE A (7T A E) 1/1
Mr. Chan Kam Kong PRET A 1/1
Ms. Chan Suk Man PERIMEE 2+ 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chan Wing Hong (Chairman) BRoK R A (£ /) 11
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong EEERL 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. Cha Ho Wa BRESE 1/1
Mr. Yu Chun Kit RIEGESE 1/1
Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert BREELE 1/1
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service agreement
for a term of three years with the Company which renewed and
extended automatically upon expiry of the initial term unless
otherwise terminated by either party by giving to the other not less
than three months’ prior written notice. Each of the non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter for a term of one
year with the Company which renewed and extended automatically
upon expiry of the initial term unless otherwise terminated by
either party by giving to the other not less than one month’s prior
written notice. Each of the Independent non-executive Directors
has entered into an appointment letter for a term of one year with
the Company which renewed and extended automatically upon
expiry of the initial term unless otherwise terminated by either
party by giving to the other not less than one month’s prior written
notice. In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
and re-election. Each Director shall retire from office at least once
every three years. In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles
of Association, any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office until the following general meeting (in the case of filling a
causal vacancy) or the next following annual general meeting (in the
case of an additional Director) and shall then be eligible for election.

Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is pivotal in
good corporate governance and Board effectiveness. The following
mechanisms are adopted by the Board to ensure that independent
views and input are available to the Board, and these mechanisms
are reviewed annually by the Board to ensure their effectiveness:

1. The Board must have at least three Independent non-
executive Directors and must appoint Independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board.
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2. On an annual basis, all Independent non-executive Directors
are required to confirm in writing their compliance of
independence requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules,
and to disclose the number and nature of offices held
by them in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments.

3.  External independent professional advice is available as and
when required by individual Directors.

4.  The chairman of the Board meets with Independent non-
executive Directors annually without the presence of the
executive Directors.

The Board considered that the above mechanisms were effective
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the Independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered that
the Independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules. Upon the recommendation of the Nomination Committee,
the Board considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in light of the independence guidelines set out in the
said Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant and in compliance with paragraph C.1.4
of part 2 of the CG Code, the Company would arrange and fund
suitable continuous professional development for the Directors to
participate in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The training each Director received during the period from 1
January 2023 to the date the this annual report is summarised as

below:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chan Kam Kei BREE ST A (TTHAEEL)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chan Kam Kong PREET A

Ms. Chan Suk Man BRMSE 2+

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Chan Wing Hong (Chairman) PBROKER S A& (£ /)

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong ZHEEX T

Independent non-executive BYFHITES
Directors

Mr. Cha Ho Wa BRI S

Mr. Yu Chun Kit REGEE

Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert BERSE

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT
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BOARD AND WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach of which the Board
could achieve a higher level of diversity. The Company recognises
the benefits of having a diversified Board. In summary, the board
diversity policy sets out that when considering the nomination and
appointment of a director, with the assistance of the nomination
committee, the Board would consider a number of factors,
including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, professional
experience and qualifications, cultural and educational background,
age, gender and diversity of perspectives that the candidate is
expected to bring to the Board and what would be the candidate’s
potential contributions, in order to better serves the needs and
development of the Company. The board diversity policy also
seeks to attract, retain and motivate the Directors and other staff
from the widest pool of available talent. All Board appointments
will be based on merits and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board had two female Board members (i.e. Ms. Chan Suk Man
and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong), in which case the Board considered
gender diversity of the Board has been achieved.

The Group strictly adheres to fair and appropriate employment
practices and labour standards. With an anti-discriminatory and
equal-opportunity policy in place, the Group provides job applicant
and employees with equal opportunities of employment and
promotion, and prohibits all forms of discrimination on gender,
religion, race, disability or age. As at 31 December 2023, 15 out
of 148 employees (including senior management) of the Group
are female, representing approximately 10.1%. The Group target
to maintain the percentage of female employees in the Group’s
workforce of no less than 10% in the next three years.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee with terms of reference to assist them in the
efficient implementation of their functions.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph D.3.3 of part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code set
out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 5 February 2024. The primary duties of
the audit committee are, among others, to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of external auditor, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting, oversee the financial
reporting process, internal control, risk management systems
and audit process of the Company and perform other duties and
responsibilities assigned by the Board.

At present, the audit committee comprises Mr. Yu Chun Kit, Mr.
Cha Ho Wa and Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert, all being the independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Yu Chun Kit is the chairperson of the
audit committee.

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held not less than twice a
year. Details of the authority and duties of Audit Committee are set
out in the Audit Committee’s terms of reference which are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report:

= reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 and the annual results
announcement and the annual report for the year ended
31 December 2023, the related accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, the report from
the management on the Company’s review of the
risk management and internal control systems, and
recommendation of the appointment and re-appointment of
the external auditor;

- reviewed the effectiveness and performance of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems;

- reviewed the nature and scope of the non-audit services
provided or to be provided by external auditor and assessed
the respective implication on the auditor’s independence; and

- reviewed the report communicated by the external auditor for
matters including the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, one
Audit Committee meeting was held and the attendance of each
committee member is set out below:

Independent non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. Cha Ho Wa BRESE
Mr. Yu Chun Kit RIEGESE
Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert BEELE
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on 5 February
2024 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.26
of the Listing Rules and paragraph E.1.2 of part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals, make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management and ensure none of the Directors
determine their own remuneration.

At present, the remuneration committee comprises Mr. Cha Ho
Wa and Mr. Yu Chun Kit, being the independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Chan Kam Kei, being an executive Director. Mr.
Cha Ho Wa is the chairperson of the remuneration committee.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least
once a year. Details of the authority and duties of Remuneration
Committee are set out in the Remuneration Committee’s terms
of reference which are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Remuneration Committee from the Listing Date and up to the date
of this report:

- reviewed the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management; and

- made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
individual Directors and senior management.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration in the Group and the five

highest paid individuals are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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From the Listing Date and up to the date of this report, one
Remuneration Committee meeting was held and the attendance of
each committee member is set out below:

Executive Director HITEE

Mr. Chan Kam Kei PRI ST A
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Cha Ho Wa BRREES A

Mr. Yu Chun Kit RIEHEFEE

Pursuant to paragraph E.1.5 of part 2 of the CG Code, the
remuneration paid to the members of the senior management
(excluding Directors) by band during the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out below:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Remuneration Policy of the Directors

Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing to
the Group’s success. To ensure the ability to attract and retain
talents, the Group’s remuneration policy of the Directors is built
upon the principles of providing equitable and market-competitive
remuneration package that support the performance culture and
enable the achievement of strategic business goals. The Group’s
remuneration policy of Directors is, therefore, aiming at providing
competitive but not excessive remuneration package to the
Directors.

The Directors’ remuneration comprises fixed salary or service fee
and variable components (such as bonus and share options),
which is benchmarked against companies of comparable
business or scale with reference to a mix of factors such as the
prevailing market condition, the Company’s performance and the
qualifications, skills, experience and educational background of the
Directors.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 5
February 2024 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.3.1 of part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code
set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the nomination committee are, among others, to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and select or make
recommendations on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships.

At present, the nomination committee comprises Mr. Yu Chun Kit
and Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert, being the independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Chan Kam Kei, being an executive Director. Mr.
Chan Kam Kei is the chairperson of the nomination committee.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least once
a year. Details of the authority and duties of Nomination Committee
are set out in the Nomination Committee’s terms of reference
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee from the Listing Date and up to the date of
this report:

- reviewed the board diversity policy; and

- reviewed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.
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From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, one
Nomination Committee meeting was held and the attendance of
each committee member is set out below:

Executive Director HITEE

Mr. Chan Kam Kei PREAESTAE
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Yu Chun Kit RIEGESE
Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert BEELE

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the approach and procedures the Board
adopts for the nomination and selection of Directors, including
the appointment of additional Directors, replacement of Directors,
and re-election of Directors. The Nomination Committee has
been delegated with the overall responsibility for implementation,
monitoring and periodic review of the policy, and the summary of
which is set out below:

Nomination Criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for the directorship,
the following criteria would be considered by the Nomination
Committee and the Board:

- the candidate’s character and integrity;

= the candidate’s qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience, and diversity
aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to
the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

- any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on
the Board;

= for independent non-executive Directors, whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;
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any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

willingness and ability of the candidate to devote adequate
time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or
Board committee(s) of the Company; and

such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.

Nomination Procedures

The Company has put in place the following director nomination

procedures:

Appointment of New and Replacement Directors

U

(i)

If the Board determines that an additional or replacement
Director is required, it will deploy multiple channels for
identifying suitable Director candidates, including referral
from Directors, shareholders, management, advisors of the
Company and external executive search firms.

Upon compilation and interview of the list of potential
candidates, the Nomination Committee will shortlist
candidates for consideration by the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board based on the selection criteria and such
other factors that it considers appropriate. The Board has the
final authority on determining suitable Director candidate for
appointment.
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Re-election of Directors and Nomination from Shareholders

(i) Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for
reelection, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall consider and, if consider appropriate, recommend such
retiring Director to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
A circular containing the requisite information on such
retiring Director will be sent to shareholders prior to a general
meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(i) Any shareholder of the Company who wishes to nominate a
person to stand for election as a Director at a general meeting
must lodge with the company secretary of the Company
within the lodgement period specified in the relevant
shareholder circular (a) a written nomination of the candidate,
(b) written confirmation from such nominated candidate of
his willingness to stand for election, and (c) biographical
details of such nominated candidate as required under the
Listing Rules. Particulars of the candidate so proposed will be
sent to all shareholders for information by a supplementary
circular.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND WHISTLEBLOWING
POLICY

The policies of Anti-corruption and whistleblowing policy are
contained in the section headed “Anti-corruption” on page 104 in
this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing and has performed in
compliance with the corporate governance duties as set out in
the CG Code which includes develop and review the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management; review and monitor the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and review
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The statement by the auditor of the
Company about their responsibilities for the financial statements is
set out in the independent auditor’s report contained in this annual
report. There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt of the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid and payable for the year ended
31 December 2023 to the Company’s external auditor,

PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

Services rendered to the Group

m A B R AR
Audit services FET AR
Services in connection with the Listing £ AR HY AR 7%
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER

The Company has appointed Grande Capital Limited as the
compliance adviser pursuant to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules for
the term commencing on the Listing Date and ending on the date
on which the Company publishes annual report in respect of the
financial results for the first full financial year commencing after the
Listing Date. Such appointment may be subject to extension by
mutual agreement.

Pursuant to Rule 3A.23 of the Listing Rules, the Company shall
seek advice from the compliance adviser on a timely basis in the
following circumstances:

- before the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

- where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or connected
transaction, is contemplated, including share issues and
share repurchases;

= where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or connected
transaction, is contemplated, including share issues and
share repurchases; and

- where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of the Company
regarding unusual movements in the price or trading volume
of the Shares.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate
system of internal controls and risk management of the Company
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal control and risk
management systems to safeguard the interest of shareholders
and the Group’s assets. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems of the Group
through Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. The Directors
through the Audit Committee are kept informed of significant risks
that may impact on the Group’s performance.
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The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports prepared by the external internal
control review consultant. The reports summarised information
relating to the work carried out in the following areas:

1. the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
operation, and the financial records of the Company;

2. ageneral evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

3. an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
year under review.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed
with the management of the Company. The Audit Committee
acknowledged that the management of the Company has
been progressively implementing adequate and effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations. The Board is
therefore of the view that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The review on
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
would be done on an annual basis. Although, the Group does not
yet have an internal audit function having considered the complexity
of the Group’s operation, the Board considers that the review on
the risk management and internal control systems by the Audit
Committee and the Board on a regular basis as well as engaging
external internal control review consultant to review the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems would be
sufficient to ensure the effective operation of the Group. The Audit
Committee and the Board will continue to review the need for an
internal audit function on an annual basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Hon Fai is the company secretary of the Company. Mr.
Tam Hon Fai has confirmed that he has undertaken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2023 in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules. The biographical details of Mr. Tam are set out in the section
headed “Biography of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) of the
Company are prepared in accordance with Article 64 of the Articles
of Association of the Company:

1. One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
may, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

2. The EGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within
21 days of such deposit of requisition, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for raising enquires

1. Shareholders should direct their enquires about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong by post to 2103B, 21st Floor, 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong.

2. Shareholders may raise questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestion
to the Directors and management of the Company and can
be addressed to the Company by post to Room 1510-1511,
15th Floor, Fortune Commercial Building, 362 Sha Tsui Road
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

3. Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together
with their detailed contact information for the prompt
response from the Company if it deems appropriate.
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Procedures and contact details for putting forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings

1. To put forward proposals at the general meeting of the
Company, a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/
her/its proposal (“Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact
information at the Company’s principal place of business at
Room 1510-1511, 15th Floor, Fortune Commercial Building,
362 Sha Tsui Road Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary of
the Company.

2. The identity of the shareholder and his/her/its request will
be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon confirmation by the branch share
registrar that the request is proper and in order and made
by a shareholder, the Board will include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

3.  The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholders
concerned at the annual general meeting or an EGM varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows: (i) At least
21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or if the Proposal is put
forward at an annual general meeting of the Company; or (i)
At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company at an EGM.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.
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The Company considers that effective communication with its
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with its shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings, issuing
to its shareholders corporate communications such as interim
results and annual results, financial reports, announcements
and circulars in accordance with the Articles of Association
and the Listing Rules. Shareholders may make enquiries with
the Company through channels of the Company’s website at
www.wing-kei.com.hk and provide comments and
recommendations to the Directors. Upon receipt of enquiries from
shareholders, the Company will respond as soon as practicable.

Please refer to the website of dissemination of corporate
communications and the request form for printed copies of the
annual reports, interim reports and circulars. Shareholders are
encouraged to provide their up-to-date contact details (including
electronic contact details) to the branch share registrar of the
Company in order to facilitate timely and effective communications.

The annual general meeting provides a platform for communication
between the Board and the shareholders. The Chairman of
the Board as well as the chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee or, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees, are
available to answer questions at shareholders’ meeting.

In view of the above shareholders’ communication means and
measures adopted by the Company, the Board is of the view that
the shareholders’ communication policy was sufficient and effective
and will review regularly.

During the period from the Listing Date andc up to the date of this
annual report, there was no change to the Articles of Association of
the Company.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND SHARE OFFER

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 28 June 2023.

Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme (the “Reorganisation”) to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the Listing,
the Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 21 July 2023. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in section headed “History, Development
and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus.

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 March 2024
(the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
its operating subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of structural steelwork in Hong Kong. There were no significant
changes to the Group’s principal activities during the year ended
31 December 2023.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 123.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue contributed
by the largest and the top five customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 51.3% (2022: approximately 70.7%) and
approximately 95.8% (2022: approximately 93.8%) of the Group’s
total revenue, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s cost of
services from the largest and the top five suppliers accounted
for approximately 29.6% (2022: approximately 15.2%) and
approximately 59.3% (2022: approximately 56.0%) of the Group’s
total cost of services, respectively.
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To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their respective close associates or any shareholder of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company), had any
interest in any of the Group’s top five customers or suppliers.

EMPLOYEES

The Group maintained a good relationship with its employees.
The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its employees or any disruption to the operations due to labour
disputes nor have the Group experienced any material difficulties
in the recruitment and retention of experienced core staff or skilled
personnel during the year ended 31 December 2023. There has
not been any trade union set up for the Group’s employees.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Customers

The Group has maintained good relationships with its major
customers. The Group values the relationships with its customers as
it believes that maintaining good relationships with them is crucial
to the success of the business. The long-term working relationship
can help the Group to understand the demands of its customers
in a timely manner and also increase its visibility in the structural
steelwork in Hong Kong. The Directors consider that maintaining
good relationships with its customers would increase the chance of
being invited to tender or quote for the forthcoming projects, which
is conducive to securing a steady stream of projects for the Group.
The Group strives to monitor manpower, machinery and material
distribution in all projects in response to the customers’ demands.
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Suppliers and subcontractors

The Group has established stable business relationships with its
suppliers and subcontractors which is essential to the smooth
operation of the Group’s business, as the Directors consider that
timely delivery of materials and provision of labour assistance
can enable the Group to meet the schedules of its customers.
The Group has also maintained a list of approved suppliers and
subcontractors which is periodically reviewed and updated based
on the internal assessment of their performance, to ensure that all
works performed by the suppliers and subcontractors satisfy the
requirements of the relevant contract.

RESULTS/BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group as well as discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its financial performance and financial
position are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. This discussion forms an
integral part of this report of the Directors.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
The future development of the Group’s business is set out in the

section headed “Chairman’s Statement — Prospects” of this annual
report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, as far as the Directors
are aware, the Company did not have any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that is material or systemic in nature.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a contractor specialising in structural steelwork, the Group
values environmental sustainability and has been striving to
integrate the concept into every part of the daily business
operations. The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
environmental, social and governance strategy and reporting.
The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG risk management
and internal control systems to ensure that the ESG strategies
and reporting requirements are met. Discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performances are set out in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 126 and
Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no distributable

reserves in accordance with the Companies Law (as revised) of the
Cayman Islands.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment reporting are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy which aims to set out
the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply
in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its profits,
realised or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from profits, as
dividends to the shareholders of the Company. The Board adopted
the dividend policy that, in recommending or declaring dividends,
the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting
its working capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Board has the discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject to
the provisions of the Articles of Association and all applicable laws
and regulations and the factors set out below.

The Board shall also take into account the factors of the Group
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends such
as operations, earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, capital expenditure, future development requirements,
business conditions and strategies, interests of shareholders, any
restrictions on payment of dividends, and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the
Group and the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends
may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year
or period as interim dividend, final dividend, special dividend, and
any distribution of profits that the Board may deem appropriate.
The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or
scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.
Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association.
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DIVIDEND

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and prior to the
Reorganisation (as defined in the Prospectus), dividends of
HK$20,000,000 were declared and settled by a subsidiary of the
Company to its then shareholders (2022: HK$8,000,000).

In January 2024, prior to the Capitalisation Issue and the Listing,
the Company declared an interim dividend of approximately
HK$26.6 million (representing approximately HK$26.6 million per
ordinary Share), of which approximately HK$10.0 million was
settled by cash before the Listing and approximately HK$16.6
million was offset against the aggregate amounts due from the
Directors and the related company.

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The executive Directors believe that there are certain risks and
uncertainties involved in the operations. Some of the material risks
include:

(i) most of the revenue was derived from projects awarded
by the major customers and any significant decrease in the
number of projects with the major customers may materially
and adversely affect the financial performance;

(i) reduction or termination of public and private sector projects
in Hong Kong may adversely affect the revenue and results of
operations;

(iiy  there is no guarantee that the customers will provide the
Group with new projects; and

(iv)  the projects may not proceed according to the original project
schedule or budget, which may result in delay in recognition
of the revenue and therefore adversely affect the Group’s
cash flows, financial performance and results of operation.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme (as defined below), the
Company did not enter into any equity-linked agreement from the
Listing Date and up to date of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the

Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors from the Listing Date and up to the date of this report
were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kam Kei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Kam Kong

Ms. Chan Suk Man

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wing Hong (Chairman)
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cha Ho Wa

Mr. Yu Chun Kit

Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert

In accordance with Articles 108 and 112 of the Articles of
Association, all the Directors will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has received annual confirmations
of independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors required Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Upon the
recommendation of the nomination committee of the Company,
the Board considered all independent non-executive Directors to
be independent. Biographical information of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Biography of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date. The term of service shall be
renewed and extended automatically by three years on the expiry
of such initial term and on the expiry of every successive period
of three years thereafter, unless terminated by either party thereto
giving at least three months’ written notice of non-renewal before
the expiry of the then existing term.
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Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial fixed term of one
year commencing from the Listing Date. The term of service shall
be renewed and extended automatically by one year on the expiry
of such initial term and on the expiry of every successive period of
one year thereafter, unless terminated by either party thereto giving
at least one month’s written notice of non-renewal before the expiry
of the then existing term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for an initial fixed term of
one year commencing from the Listing Date. The term of service
shall be renewed and extended automatically by one year on the
expiry of such initial term and on the expiry of every successive
period of one year thereafter, unless terminated by either party
thereto giving at least one month’s written notice of non-renewal
before the expiry of the then existing term.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has any service agreement or appointment letter
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any
of them, their or any of their executors or administrators, shall or
may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in
their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall
incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolutions of the
then sole Shareholder passed on 5 February 2024.

No awards or options had been granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled, forfeited or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report.

Summary of terms of the Share Option Scheme

(@)  Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to the eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group.

(b)  Who may join

The Directors shall, in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, be entitled but
shall not be bound at any time within a period of 10 years
commencing from the date of the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme to make an offer to any of the following
classes:

(i) any Directors and employees of the Group (including
persons who are granted options under the Share
Option Scheme as an inducement to enter into
employment contracts with any member of the Group)
(the “Employee Participants”);

(i)  directors and employees of the holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or associated companies of the
Company (the “Related Entity Participants”); and

BRERE

KAFERIEERM —RREN2024F2 A5
ABANEZEMARREKRERMN—BEER
ERTE| (B ERTE) -

BEMAREREEARFRAY - HELE
BIBREREERESIERL  RE
B 1718 - G R -

BREBIRAME
@ BERESEE

BREFEEENSER2RERD
B - (EAEBAKEFERERD
HEN K ERE - R REARE R R
BEREREERTSIHAKEARE
BEOAT -

b) ARHEAL

RIBBEER 8 ) EmRAHE
EEERENIFVANRABRE
g R BHETFHEATAKRYBR
THERIM A LEH EX -

) AEEEANESFERELI(BER
AR AR AT B IR RB AR AR LA(E
REAREEEMKE AR AL
BRESHNFENAL) (EE
SHEE])

(i) ARBERAR - AEWEBA

ARBERRNESENES
(FREERE2RE]) &

Annual Report 2023 ¢ —Z = =FF3f

57



58

Report of the Directors EE& k4%

(i) persons who provide services to the Group on a
continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and usual
course of business which are in the interests of the long
term growth of the Group, which may include persons
who work for the member of the Group as independent
contractors where the continuity and frequency of his/
her service is akin to those of employees (the “Service
Providers”), but excluding any (i) placing agents
or financial advisers providing advisory services for
fundraising, mergers or acquisitions; and (i) professional
service providers such as auditors or valuers who
provide assurance, or are required to perform their
services with impartiality and objectivity.

and, for the purpose of the Share Option Scheme,
the offer for the grant of an option may be made to
any company wholly owned by one or more eligible
participants.

For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any option by the
Company for the subscription of Shares or other securities
of the Group to any person who falls within any of the above
classes of eligible participants shall not, by itself, unless the
Directors otherwise determine, be construed as a grant of
option under the Share Option Scheme.

The eligibility of any of the eligible participants to an offer
under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the
Directors from time to time on the basis of the Directors’
opinion as to such eligible participant’s experience in the
business of the Group, the length of his/her service with the
Group, his/her contribution to the development and growth
of the Group and other factors as the Directors may at their
discretion consider appropriate. In assessing the eligibility
of any Service Provider and whether such Service Provider
provides services on a continuing or recurring basis in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, the
Directors shall consider all relevant factors as appropriate
from time to time, including (i) the experience of the Service
Provider; (i) the types of services that the Service Provider
had provided to the Group; (i) the period of engagement
of the Service Provider; (iv) the contribution and/or future
contribution of the Service Provider to the development and
growth of the Group.
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(c)  Maximum number of Shares

(i)

(i)

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued in respect of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes and share award schemes of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue at the time dealings in the Shares first
commence on the Stock Exchange, being 200,000,000
Shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the
Company obtains an approval from our Shareholders
pursuant to paragraphs (i) and (iv) below. The options
which are cancelled or lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) or share award scheme(s) of the
Company shall be regarded as utilised for the purpose
of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Subject to paragraph (i), the total number of Shares
which may be allotted and issued in respect of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) and share award
scheme(s) of the Group to Service Providers shall be
within the Scheme Mandate Limit and must not in
aggregate exceed one (1) per cent of the total number
of Shares in issue at the time dealings in the Shares
first commence on the Stock Exchange (the “Service
Provider Sublimit”) unless the Company obtains
an approval from the shareholders of the Company
pursuant to paragraphs (i) and (iv) below.

Without prejudice to (iv) below, the Company may seek
approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting to
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit and Service Provider
Sublimit after three years from the approval of the
shareholders of the Company for the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme or the last refreshment.
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(v)

Any refreshment within any three year period must be
approved by the shareholders of the Company subject
to:

(@ any controlling shareholders and their associates
(or if there is no controlling shareholder, Directors
(excluding independent non-executive Directors)
and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates) must abstain from voting
in favour of the relevant resolution at the general
meeting; and

(b)  the Company must comply with the requirements
under Rules 13.39(6) and (7), 13.40, 13.41 and
13.42 of the Listing Rules.

The requirements under paragraphs (a) and (b) above
do not apply if the refreshment is made immediately
after an issue of securities by the Company to the
Shareholders on a pro rata basis as set out in Rule
18.36(2)(a) of the Listing Rules such that the unused
part of the scheme mandate (as a percentage of the
relevant class of shares in issue) upon refreshment is
the same as the unused part of the scheme mandate
immediately before the issue of securities, rounded to
the nearest whole share.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme and share award schemes
of the Company under the Scheme Mandate Limit as
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of the approval of the limit.
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(vii  The Company may seek separate Shareholders’
approval in a general meeting to grant options under the
Share Option Scheme beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, or if applicable, the extended limit referred to in
(iiiy or (iv) above to eligible participants identified by the
Company before such approval is sought. The number
and terms of options or awards to be granted to such
eligible participants must be fixed before Shareholders’
approval. In respect of any options to be granted, the
date of the board meeting for proposing such grant
should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price.

Maximum entitlerment of each eligible participant

Subject to (e) below, the total number of Shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of any option which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
option or award which may be granted under any other share
option scheme(s) and share award scheme(s) of the Group
(including both exercised or outstanding options but excluding
any options and awards lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the scheme) to each grantee in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “1% Individual Limit”). Where any further grant of
options under the Share Option Scheme to a grantee under
the Share Option Scheme would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options and awards
granted and proposed to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options but excluding
any options and awards lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the scheme) under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) and share award scheme(s)
of the Group in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant exceeding the 1% Individual
Limit, such further grant must be separately approved by
the Shareholders in a general meeting of the Company with
such grantee and his close associates (or his associates if
the participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.
The number and terms of the options to be further granted to
such Grantee must be fixed before Shareholders’ approval.
In respect of any options to be further granted, the date of
the board meeting for proposing such further grant should be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the
subscription price.
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(e

Grant of options to core connected persons

(i) Without prejudice to (i) below, the making of an offer
under the Share Option Scheme to any Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates must be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee
of an option under the Share Option Scheme).

(i)  Without prejudice to (i) above, where any grant
of options under the Share Option Scheme to an
independent non-executive Director or a substantial
shareholder or any of their respective associates, would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options under the Share Option Scheme
already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding but excluding
any options and awards lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the scheme) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in
issue.

Such further grant of options must be approved by the
Shareholders in a general meeting. The grantee, his/her
associates and all core connected persons of the Company
must abstain from voting in favour at such general meeting.
Any change in the terms of options granted to a participant
who is a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, must
be approved by the Shareholders in the manner as set out in
this paragraph if the initial grant of the options requires such
approval (except where the changes take effect automatically
under the existing terms of the Share Option Scheme).

For the purpose of seeking the approval from the
Shareholders under paragraphs (c), (d) and (e) above, the
Company must send a circular to the shareholders of the
Company containing the information required under the
Listing Rules and where the Listing Rules shall so require, the
vote at the Shareholders’ meeting convened to obtain the
requisite approval shall be taken on a poll with those persons
required under the Listing Rules abstaining from voting.
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Time of acceptance and exercise of an option

An offer under the Share Option Scheme may remain open
for acceptance by the eligible participants concerned (and by
no other person) for a period of up to 21 days from the date,
which must be a business day, on which the offer is made.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee but in
any event shall not be more than ten (10) years from the offer
date of that option.

An offer shall have been accepted by an eligible participant
in respect of all Shares which are offered to such eligible
participant when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer duly signed by the eligible participant together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 21 days from the offer date).
Such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Any offer may be accepted by an eligible participant in respect
of less than the number of Shares which are offered provided
that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealings in
the Shares on the Main Board or an integral multiple thereof
and such number is clearly stated in the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such
eligible participant and received by the Company together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof within such time
as may be specified in the offer (which shall not be later than
21 days from the offer date). Such remittance shall in no
circumstances be refundable.
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)

Vesting Period and performance targets

The vesting period for options shall be determined by the
Board and in any case, shall not be less than twelve (12)
months. A shorter vesting period may be granted to an
Employee Participant at the discretion of the Board in the
following circumstances:

(i) grants of “make-whole” options to new joiners to
replace the share awards they forfeited when leaving
the previous employer;

(i)  grants of options to an Employee Participant whose
employment is terminated due to death or disability or
occurrence of any out of control event;

(i)  grants of options with performance-based vesting
conditions in lieu of time-based vesting criteria;

(iv)  grants of options that are made in batches during a
year for administrative and compliance reasons;

(v grants of options with a mixed or accelerated vesting
schedule such as where the options may vest evenly
over a period of 12 months; and

(vi)  grants of options with a total vesting and holding period
of more than 12 months.

The Board may determine and set any performance targets,
which shall be stated in the offer to the grantee, to be attained
before the exercise of an option granted to the grantee as the
Board may think fit. Such performance targets may include:
(i) aggregate amount of revenue or business generated by
the specific grantee during a financial year; (i) annual growth
on the revenue of the Group as compared to the immediately
preceding financial year; or (i) any measurable performance
benchmark which the Board considers is relevant to the
grantee.
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Subscription price for Shares (h)

The subscription price in respect of any option shall, subject
to any adjustment made pursuant to paragraph(s) below, be
at the discretion of the Directors, provided that it shall not be
less than the highest of:

()  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or
more board lots of the Shares on the offer date;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the offer date;
and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.
Remaining life Y,
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of

10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option
Scheme is adopted.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group joins mandatory provident fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

No forfeited contributions (by the Group on behalf of employees
who leave the defined contribution plans prior to vesting fully
in such contributions) can be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

Social welfare expenditure refers to payments for employees’ social
welfare system established by the Government of the People’s
Republic of China, including social pension insurance, health care
insurance, housing funds and other social welfare contributions.
The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based
on certain percentage of the salaries of the employees and the
contributions are recognised in profit or loss for the period when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contribution.
The Group’s liabilities in respect of these funds are limited to the
contribution payable in the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total amount
contributed by the Group to the schemes was approximately
HK$1.5 million (2022: approximately HK$1.2 million).

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the years ended 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the upcoming annual general meeting.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In January 2024, the Company declared dividends of approximately
HK$26,586,000 of which approximately HK$10,000,000 will be
settled by cash and approximately HK$16,586,000 was offset
against the aggregate amounts due from the directors and the
related company.

On 8 March 2024, the Company issued additional 1,499,999,999
ordinary shares by way of capitalisation of HK$14,999,999.99
standing to the credit of the Company’s share premium account.
On the same day, the shares of the Company were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with an offer Price of HK$0.25
per ordinary share. In connection with the Listing, the Company
issued a total of 500,000,000 ordinary shares for total proceeds
(before related fees and expenses) of HK$125,000,000. Dealing
in the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange commenced on 8 March 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there were no material events from the
end of the reporting period and up to the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

No purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities
was made by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or a
connected entity of a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 December 2023 or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at the date of this annual report, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

ESREARS  RERNEHNHES

72023512 431 B3k & £2023F12H31H
IEFEEMARRE - SIEFERARDRER
EBEAARNTSIEFAMHBRREREIL
FRESERESNEEEREESRERE
EEREEMEARRS « BHHEL -

EERBETRASREAARARAEMAE
EENRD - HER O R EEEPIE
595879 )

RAFHREH  ARAREFRESTHA
BRARRR REARREE (F& RES R
S IRBIEXVER Bty - 1BREAR M KR EREE
o BEARBES KRS GRIIEXVEET
N8RRI G AN B Bt X PN i s R B
(BREREES KRB GO EREGRURE
WEFRRRBERNEEIRR) - IR
BEH KB KRGIE 3525 BE RN ZIKFT
EELMANER KRB - HIRIBIREST
BZE R & AR R M A AT #E o5 SO B IR
S &



(a)

Report of the Directors EE 24

Long positions in the Shares (a) HERAWEFE
Number
of Shares Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest interested interest
BEEZEW
EEpA B REENE RBEE ERNBEL
Mr. Chan Kam Kei Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,500,000,000 75%
PREBE A REEE SRS (1)
Mr. Chan Kam Kong Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,500,000,000 75%
PREBT 54 REEEEE e RS (1)
Ms. Chan Suk Man Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,500,000,000 75%
BROME 2+ REPDEE SR (FaE1)
Mr. Chan Wing Hong Interest in controlled corporation/ 1,500,000,000 75%
Interest of spouse (Notes 1 and 2)
BRoK B 524 MR LB R Tl iBiEs (1t 142)
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong  Interest in controlled corporation/ 1,500,000,000 75%
Interest of spouse (Notes 1 and 2)
EEERT REE LB MR B B (Wit 1k2)
Notes: Biat -
1. The Company is owned as to 75% by WK (BVI) Limited. WK 1, RAF AWK (BVI) Limited# A
(BVI) Limited is beneficially owned as to 30% by Mr. Chan Kam 75% %z © WK (BVI) Limited
Kei, 30% by Mr. Chan Kam Kong, 15% by Mr. Chan Wing PREBELA  BREBIIALAE - BRK
Hong, 15% by Ms. Choi Chick Cheong and 10% by Ms. Chan REE  BHEZLTRRRELX
Suk Man. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan THBEEEB30%  30% *
Kam Kong, Mr. Chan Wing Hong, Ms. Choi Chick Cheong and 156% ~ 15% K% 10%#m o BIKE
Ms. Chan Suk Man are deemed to be interested in the same HFREEGD - BREBESLE - R
number of Shares held by WK (BVI) Limited. BITEAE  BROKEREAE - BHEE
ZE RBRRELZ T HEMRBHRWK
(BVI) Limited T#% B 4B R 21 B M fn
AR o
2. Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong are 2. BROKEREERFEHEEX LT RE

spouses. Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Hong is deemed
to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Ms.
Choi Chick Cheong is interested, and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong
is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in
which Mr. Chan Wing Hong is interested.

18 - BRIBEH RIS HEDI - B
BEERBRAREES KL ES
25 O F) B A1 o B M 2
TS CESR LY YO T
A ) IR R BB RS P
Bt -

Annual Report 2023 ¢ —Z = =FF3f

69



70

Report of the Directors EE& k4%

(b) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

Name of Director

BEEHR

Mr. Chan Kam Kei
PREBE LA

Mr. Chan Kam Kong
PREBIT LA

Ms. Chan Suk Man
PRI EE L2 &

Mr. Chan Wing Hong
BRoKEESE 4

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong
BEHEEXT

Name of
associated
corporation

HEEE &

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

Capacity/Nature
of interest
54,
ERME

Beneficial owner

BEmlEBA

Beneficial owner

T A A

M

Beneficial owner

= A A

Jul
m

Beneficial owner

T A A

M

Beneficial owner

BB A

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,

none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had

(b)

REEEERONTFE
Number of
Shares held Percentage of
interested interest
HEEERN
FERAEAE EENEDE
30 30%
30 30%
10 10%
18 15%
15 15%
bR EXFTHEEIN  RAFRBEE -
Mﬂ§$@$“*§%ﬁﬁA§%$

any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in register referred to therein, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING

Report of the Directors EE 24

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at date of this annual report, the following persons had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

Name of Shareholder

RER%EH

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

Mr. Chan Kam Kei
PREBETA

Mr. Chan Kam Kong
PREIT S

Ms. Chan Suk Man
FRIRE 4

Mr. Chan Wing Hong

BROKERSE &

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

FEEXT

Capacity/Nature of interest
B Rt

Beneficial owner (Note 1)
EmEA A Ht1)

Interest in controlled corporation (Notes 1 and 3)
AR LB R (B 143)

Interest in controlled corporation (Notes 1 and 4)
AR LB R (Bt 1K4)

Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1)
AR EE R (B at 1)

Interest in controlled corporation/
Interest of spouse (Notes 1 and 2)
RIS EE MR Tl B (1it142)

Interest in controlled corporation/
Interest of spouse (Notes 1 and 2)

REEE R, B BER (2 1K2)

RGP EFR

Number of
Shares held
interested
HEEEEN
RO EE

1,600,000,000

1,600,000,000

1,600,000,000

1,600,000,000

1,600,000,000

1,500,000,000
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MR P A ERIEEF B IRMIE
XVEBHE2 8370 BRI G AN 1 A) Ko Bt 32 P b &
FCINAR R BIRIERE 75 N B (6101 55 336 (% 17
BB BmIORBIT ¢

Percentage of
interest

BENEDL

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%
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Notes

1. WK (BVI) Limited is beneficially owned as to 30% by Mr. Chan Kam
Kei, 30% by Mr. Chan Kam Kong, 15% by Mr. Chan Wing Hong,
15% by Ms. Choi Chick Cheong and 10% by Ms. Chan Suk Man. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Mr. Chan
Wing Hong, Ms. Choi Chick Cheong and Ms. Chan Suk Man are
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by WK
(BVI) Limited.

2. Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong are spouses.
Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Hong is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Ms. Choi Chick Cheong is
interested, and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Chan Wing Hong is
interested.

3. Ms. Tang Wing Yee Jenny is the spouse of Mr. Chan Kam Kei. Under
the SFO, Ms. Tang Wing Yee Jenny is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Mr. Chan Kam Kei is interested.

4. Ms. Fong Ying Wah is the spouse of Mr. Chan Kam Kong. Under the
SFO, Ms. Fong Ying Wah is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Chan Kam Kong is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at date of this annual report, the
Company had not been notified by any persons who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than a contract of service with any Director or
any person in the full-time employment of the Company, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this report was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance connected to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its subsidiaries, or its holding
company or any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
any Director or a connected entity of a Director had a direct or
indirect material interest, subsisting at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

As of 31 December 2023, save as otherwise disclosed, no contract
of significance had been entered into between the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save as disclosed under
Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, there was no
other related party transaction during the year ended 31 December
2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not
enter into any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which require
disclosure in this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

As notified by the Company’s compliance adviser, Grande Capital
Limited (the “Compliance Adviser”), as at date of this annual
report, the Compliance Adviser nor its directors, employees or
close associates had any interests in relation to the Company,
which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public during
the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph D.3.3 of part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code. The
primary duties of the audit committee are, among others, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor, review the financial statements
and material advice in respect of financial reporting, oversee the
financial reporting process, internal control, risk management
systems and audit process of the Company and perform other
duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board.

The audit committee comprises Mr. Yu Chun Kit, Mr. Cha Ho
Wa and Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert, all being independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Yu Chun Kit is the chairperson of the audit
committee.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s annual results
announcement and annual report for the year ended 31 December
2023 and confirmed that they were prepared in accordance with
applicable financial reporting standards and the Listing Rules and
that adequate disclosures have been made.
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PUBLICATION OF ANNUAL RESULTS AND ANNUAL
REPORT

The annual results announcement and the annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are published on the Company’s
website at www.wing-kei.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“2024 AGM”) of the
Company will be held on 24 May 2024 and the notice and circular
of the 2024 AGM will be published in the manner as required by the
Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the identity of the Shareholders who will be entitled to
attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 21 May 2024 to Friday, 24
May 2024, both dates inclusive, the period during which no transfer
of Shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2024 AGM, all completed share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 20 May 2024.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to the
management of the Group and all the staff for their hard work and
dedication, as well as its shareholders, business associates and
other professional parties for their support throughout the period.

To On behalf of the Board

WK Group (Holdings) Limited
Chan Wing Hong

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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INTRODUCTION

WK Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”, “we” or “us”) are a structural steelwork
contractor established in 1999. We specialise in the supply,
fabrication and installation of structural steel for construction

projects in Hong Kong.

As a responsible contractor, we recognise that Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) are integral to our long-term growth
strategy. Accordingly, we are committed to developing sustainable
ESG standards and enhancing our operational practices to foster a
corporate culture that aligns with stakeholder expectations.

The Group are pleased to present our first Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) which outlines the
policies, initiatives and relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
related ESG aspects of our business. This ESG Report is prepared
in compliance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide set forth in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Reporting period

This ESG report covers the relevant ESG matters of the Group
during the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023. (the
“Reporting Period”).
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Reporting boundary

This ESG Report mainly outlines the ESG activities in relation to
the fabrication processes in our production facilities in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and the installation processes for
construction projects in Hong Kong. Unless explicitly stated, the
ESG data presented in this ESG report covers the Company, and
the major operating subsidiaries of the Company, including Wing
Kei Structural Metalworks Company Limited and Dongguan Yongji
Metal Component Manufacturing Co., Ltd."™ (REEk E4 BB 5
ERRAT).

Reporting principles

This ESG Report has been prepared based on the following
reporting principles.

Materiality: The Group undertook materiality assessment to
ensure this ESG Report addresses concerns from stakeholders.
For details of the assessment, please refer to the section headed
“Materiality assessment” in this ESG Report.

Quantitative: To ensure stakeholders can have a better
understanding of this ESG report, all methodologies, assumptions,
and source of conversion factor used to calculate the relevant KPIs
are disclosed in respective sections in the ESG report.

Balance: This ESG Report is prepared on an objective and
unbiased manner to ensure that the information provided reflects
the true picture of the Group’s performance.

Consistency: Unless stated otherwise, the ESG Report uses
consistent methodologies to calculate relevant KPIs for meaningful
comparisons.

' The English names of the bodies/entities which are marked with “*”
are translated, or transliterated from their Chinese names and are for
identification purposes only.
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ESG governance structure

Our board of directors (the “Board”) holds the overall responsibility
to oversee ESG-related matters of the Group. The Board is
principally responsible for (i) overseeing the formulation and
reporting of our ESG direction and strategies; (i) determining our
ESG-related risks; (iii) establishing and adopting the ESG policy
and targets of our Group; (iv) ensuring that ESG considerations
are taken into consideration during the business decision-making
process; (v) monitoring and reviewing our ESG performance; and
(vi) revising the ESG strategies as appropriate if significant variance
from the target is identified.

Our ESG committee, comprising our directors and senior
management, will support our Board in implementing the ESG
policy, targets and strategies, conducting materiality assessments
of material ESG and climate-related risks and assessing how our
Group adapts its business in light of climate change, collecting
ESG data from different parties while preparing for the ESG report,
and continuous monitoring of the implementation of measures to
address our Group’s ESG-related risks and responsibilities. The
ESG committee is also responsible for the investigation of deviation
from targets and making recommendation on rectification actions.
The ESG committee will report to our Board regularly on the
ESG performance of our Group and the effectiveness of our ESG
system.
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Stakeholder engagement

Listening to stakeholders is one vital means in assisting the Group
to identify and balance risks from diverse perspectives, which
enables us to formulate policies and set corporate goals. We
remain attuned to stakeholder expectations through a variety of
communication channels. Below sets forth the channels used for
communication with respective stakeholder groups.

Stakeholder group Communication channel

Community groups e Corporate website
e |ndustrial dinner
e Corporate social responsibility
activities

Customers e Customer satisfactory surveys
e Project meeting

Employees e Annual appraisal
e Training
e Internal announcement

Investors/Shareholders e General meeting
e Annual and interim reports
e Circular/announcement
e Corporate website

Regulators and government e Regular reporting
agencies e Meetings and consultations
Suppliers/Sub-contractors e Project meeting

e Supplier assessment
e Site visiting
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report R - # @R EA#RE

Materiality assessment

The Group conducted a materiality assessment to identify ESG
topics that are material to us, from which we can prioritise ESG
aspects and strategise our action plan. In assessing the materiality
of identified ESG issues, we take both internal and external
materiality assessments into account. The assessment analyses
the likelihood and frequency of the occurrence of the relevant ESG

BRI

AEBETEZMNG  AETHRME
ZHIRE  HERERTE - ehRMEE
WEBREERR HEREBTELET
BT BT BIKAS - R A RAIR
B odHeRERRENERNR - HME
EEAMRINBEZ MR o ZAHEDHT

THRES - HEREARET £ T
MERISEE - DR SRE T BRI R R
MENE -

issues and evaluates the impact to our business and stakeholders.

BREFOHENRE LA 18EMRR
BodekeEazaTianoEERz
o AREBERBRET —AEE MR (T E
FIR) - EREEREELHENIFNERAE
EXBHAEMSEENEE A LR
[REJINZELREE -

Based on the feedback from stakeholders, we identified 9 critical
issues which were derived from a list of 18 relevant ESG issues.
The Group has constructed a materiality matrix as depicted below.
The materiality matrix highlights issues of significance from the
perspective of stakeholders and the Group’s businesses with
the issues falling within the quadrant in top-right holding greater
significance.

T

1=,
2

IMPACT ON STAKE HOLDERS ##5& Y

IMPACT ON BUSINESS # #7515/ &

7\,  Environment '% Employment and Operational Community
L @ protection labour practices practices investment
B R 1 5 1B DI BED| R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report #15 -+ # 2Kk &4

1 Air emission C’\’ 10 Prevention of child labor and forced labor &'
& RHERR 7 B71EE T Roghlss T

2 Noise pollution L,S’ 11 Production and work sites safety
=D ES ’ EERTEMELS

3 Wastes management L’} 12 Development and training '%
BEEYETR R RIEF

4 Energy and resources management C’\’ 13 Quality assurance o
BRRERER 7 BERE

5 Natural resource management L’; 14 Protection of intellectual property rights o
RABERER REMBERE

6 Climate change L,; 15 Data protection o
RIRE(L BRRE

7 Talent retention &‘ 16 Anti-corruption o
AT HE R&ES

8 Discrimination and equal opportunity '% 17 Supply chain management o
A8 RS e HEsRE TR

9 Employee compensation system &‘ 18 Community investment @
& B Er B HIE HEKRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BRIBRE

According to the China Steel Construction Society, the production
process of steel structures is 3% more energy-efficient and emit
10% less carbon dioxide than the production process of concrete
structures. Moreover, during the construction process, steel
structures are more eco-friendly than concrete structures with
energy savings of 13% and a reduction in carbon dioxide emissions
of 15%.

In addition, once steel structures reach the end of their lifespan
or usage, the steel materials can be dismantled, collected, and
remelted to manufacture new products. Recycling steel requires
only a fraction of the energy needed to produce new steel from raw
materials. As such, steel recycling has significant environmental
benefits like reducing landfill waste, lowering emissions from mining
and manufacturing operations, and conserving natural resources
required for new steel production.

Driven by the increasing awareness of eco-friendliness and
sustainable property development by property developers and
construction contractors, structural steelwork has been increasingly
used for construction in Hong Kong. As part of the decarbonized
journey, our Group will continuously monitor our activities to ensure
alignment with environmental goals and community well-being.

RETFEMEBHENEN  EERLTE
B MAEBNRERRERI% - £ERB
B S EHRBEE IR A 10% o Eoh - il
ERERETAETERRLEBERRE

AIEIRE13% » B —EALIRBERE15% ©
oy - — BB EIEE RS - #H

BRI ARYRER - WEMEBHIBL - RS
FEVEm o MUt R F 2 &M a R
HEER N AR BEIRE —/NEE Y o B
WA R AR BENRRE N a - DR
YR ~ PREERIE R BUER TR - A
RAREFR MM EERBNBEAER

EMEHRBRERAERHERRER
AIREY R EE T EE R HES
T WMEBIERBACERER - FR
WIS — 0 F - ARBEREREER
PIEES) - NRERERE AR ML EEAL
_ﬁ ®
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Air emissions

Our structural steelworks encompass the fabrication process in
our production facilities in the PRC and the installation process in
Hong Kong. During the fabrication process, we perform a range
of activities, including cutting, assembling, welding, polishing,
galvanising and lifting to produce our final structural steel products.
These processes heavily rely on machinery and equipment
powered by electricity and fuel combustion. As such, our emissions
are closely tied to these sources. Additionally, general activities
associated with our daily operations will also generate emissions.
They include usage of electricity from our offices and production
facilities, fuels consumed from motor vehicles for travelling between
construction sites, and paper usage for general documentation.

BESRBERR

BFMMEE T ReEERTRENEERE
MEEBRRERBEBNLZRBIE - NEEBR
B BHFETRERDUAEERRER
WEMm  BIRE - KA RE -
EHRBE - ZFBESERBAENR
KAEHRGE BB DM 2s R A - Btk - TR
PIEVHE R B2 B R B VAR RE © o
HERMEFEERBN - REBTEELE
B BENAEREERERE &
FREEM AR 2 A B) B 8 h T T RE AV A Y
LA R — RSP RV AROR

Unit 2023 2022
By 2023%F 20224
Vehicles emissions EHER
NO, emissions? REcHPERe kg T3 - =
SO, emissions ma B kgT 5% 0.60 0.74
PM emissions? BERIBERC kgT 5 - -
Greenhouse gas (‘GHG”) BERE(CAZERE)D
emission in CO,e e A =&k
BEFE)
Scope 1 - Direct emissions #E1— BRI
Mobile combustion sources BERER tonneslif 103.13 119.85
Scope 2 - “Energy Indirect” #E2 — REREEHE
emissions HNEEE H°
Electricity purchased® tonnesMi 929.75 1,688.70
Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions  #3[E3 — E 4 EHEHEM
Paper waste R tonneslif 7.58 9.08
Total GHG emission RERBHNESE tonnesia 1,040.46 1,717.63
Intensity BE tonnes per million 2.81 5.11

HK$ revenue

W/ R8BS

? Emissions data for NO, and PM are not available for this Reporting Period
as the underlying data for the calculation of these emissions cannot be
retrieved.

3 The emission factor used for the calculation of GHG emissions
for electricity purchased in Hong Kong is available from the latest
sustainability report published by the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited. The
national emission factor for Mainland China is available form The Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of People’s Republic China (2019).

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

2 AREEBRRITERE Y RER Y BERAAE
SR - ARSI B Z S BRI BE
ik -

S ARNFHEERBEESHMAEEREL R
BMEHRAFEEHER QBB HOEH
ARFERERRE - PREMEBEREEREE R A
FREE A RAANB A IR B E (20194F) ©



Environmental, Social and Governance Report BiE - # @R EARRE

By using the year 2022 as a baseline year, we will make continuous
efforts in working towards the target of reducing the GHG
emissions intensity by 3% before 2025.

With the aim to minimise air emissions in our operations, we have
adopted and implemented the following measures:

° encouraging our employees to switch off idling engines when
the lifting machines, cranes or motor vehicles are not in use;

° promoting and adopting the use of energy-saving and
efficient equipment, and switching off machinery and
electronic appliances when they are not in use;

° cleaning the fan blades of the ventilation system at our
production facilities in the PRC regularly and maintaining the
equipment for filtering dust and smoke regularly to ensure its
normal operation;

° promoting e-office practices and measures, such as
switching off electronic appliances when they are not in use;
and

° our environmental management plan provides air pollution
abatement guidelines and measures, which include (i)
ensuring the concentration and rates of air pollutants are in
compliance with the relevant environmental protection laws
and regulations; and (i) conducting periodic checks to ensure
the GHG emission of lifting machines, cranes and motor
vehicles is within the standard level as prescribed by law.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all laws
and regulations in relation to air emissions

2022 REREE - RMSBES S
FIR 20255 2 A BB IR S R HERE
R RE{EB% ) F 12

SEESRVEETNEIIN  HMAEE
W&imMThm

s HRAEREETEAEEE  BHIT
ERRIEHESIE

o HENKBAHRERSMRE  UNH
PATME A =S R B as

o  TEHIBMAPEAERMEARRZRLSR
B WEHIGHEEERBRE - AR
REIEEIRIE

. ﬁf%%ﬁ&i?ﬁ&%@ N
P Y E 25

e  HMORREEFERTHLERS
FIe5| k& - BE)ERERGE
MERE R B EEERREER
ER 0 R(i)EERMEARREER -
MR TERREREBIERFEERE
RERIRAERF o

RBEMA - ARECETRERNE
AR ER AR -

Annual Report 2023 ¢ —Z = =FF3f

83



84

Environmental, Social and Governance Report R - # @R EA#RE

Waste

During fabrication, we may generate waste materials. These
wastes are mainly cutoff pieces of steels resulted from differences
in material sizes and the dimensions required for the working
structure. To address this, our project team meticulously reviews
the specifications of each structural project and strategically
purchase materials of the most suitable size, thereby minimising
excessive cutoff pieces. Moreover, we actively arrange recycling of
any surplus steel materials to prevent them ending up in landfills.

Other non-hazardous wastes generated from our Group’s general
operations mainly includes domestic waste and paper consumed in
our offices and production facilities. Due to our business nature and
to the best knowledge of our executive Directors, our Group did
not generate hazardous waste during our operation.

With the aim of minimising the environmental impacts from non-
hazardous wastes generated from our general operations,
our Group has implemented the following measures in waste
management and launched different wastes reduction initiatives:

° providing recycling bins for different types of waste streams
to promote recycling;

° promoting the use of electronic media for communication and
reducing the use of paper;

° promoting reusing paper by placing a collection box for
single-sided used paper next to each printer; and

° encouraging our employees to use double sided printing or

Y

RBGEREF - RPIAJEEELEEMH
ZEBREYIE /MR T R T &R
FRINZZELENMY EE - BEY
HEE - HPNEEERerAREEE
EBIEE RS YERBHRER TR
BEOME - KMBERDREBZHNL]
B o tbsh - FRAPIRERR 22 B B U A ¥
il B e R e S

AEE-REEEENEGBEZTERDE
ZEERAEREERBNREEREY R
FEFRMARIR - AR PINEBIEE KL
TEEMRM  AREREEPLEES
BEREY -

REER - REEELNEZTERYHR

BNRERERK  AEBECERATRE
EMEIRENE - W T RAREEG

o ARTREEMNEZRYRIREH] DU
A JT{EEN

o HWEEAEFENETERALRE
FAARSR

o EENBAITHHZHEERERK
S HBERMAER: &

s HBREFEWREEAEEITHNE

photocopying wherever possible. Bl o
Waste BEEY) Unit 2023 2022
B 20234 20224
Total non-hazardous wastes* EEEZEYE S tonnes A 67 118
Intensity BE tonnes per million 0.81 0.35
HK$ revenue
W, HEEBIT
Yz

4 Non-hazardous wastes do not include Hong Kong offices as such wastes
are collected and processed by our office’s property management,
therefore, the relevant quantitative data is not available.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report BiE - # @R EARRE

By using the year 2022 as a baseline year, we will make continuous
efforts in working towards the target of reducing the tonnes of
waste produced by 3% annually.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all laws
and regulations in relation to generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

Use of resources

Qur Group’s resources consumption mainly includes (i)
consumption of fuels by lifting machines, cranes and motor
vehicles; and (i) electricity and water consumed at our production
facilities in the PRC and office in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, we did not encountered any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

Apart from the energy saving measures in relation to the use of
lifting machines, cranes and motor vehicles as mentioned above,
our Group has established the following resources conservation
management to minimise the waste of resources:

° promoting e-office practices and measures, such as
switching off electronic appliances when not in use;

° encouraging our employees to set room temperature ranges
from 23°C to 25°C;

° conducting regular trainings and workshops to help our
employees identify energy-saving measures and enhance
their awareness;

° promoting and adopting the use of energy-saving and
efficient equipment and will adopt immediate maintenance
once damage is reported;

2022F BEREFE - RAAKEES D
FNERBELENERZYEEEFRMI3%
FBAR -

RBEMA - ARECETRELAER
BERENHABOMALRNER
BREM
AEENEREAEIZEMEEEH - B

KRB ERERERE - R (i) PR EAER
WMREBIAEHE I EERANK -

R|EHRA - AEEERKBUER R EE
WEB B E

<P

Br il AEREERRER RS
WETBE S BN - REEEHIENTEOE
TRERER  WESERVREER

o HEBEFMATERLER - PN
P TERMERS

e FEEEBNEARTECAERK2IEER
K25F 2

o EHIBRMEIIRTIEY - UiHBIER
R EPREHE B S R TT LR RE B AR

o  HEMRBHEMSMRE - LREK
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=
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° reviewing electricity and water bills to detect abnormal

consumption and investigate if any significant usages are

noted; and

° inspecting water leakage regularly

Energy consumption LR EFE
Non-renewable fuel JER] B ERE
Electricity BN

Total energy consumption ERBREEE

Energy consumption intensity — BETRSEFERE
Water consumption FEKE

Total water consumption®® BFEKESS

Water consumption intensity  #E/KZE

s EEEBEEBERKEE UEAREH
- MEREMEAERBR - BR
RS &

o  TEHRERKER

Unit 887 2023 2022
20234 20224
MWh JKEL B 400.09 443,88
MWh JEEL B 1,528.27 1,924.30
MWh JKELFs 1,928.36 2,368.18
MWh per million
HK$ revenue
KEK, BEE
ol & 5.21 7.04
m3 37 J5 K 8,679 3,303
m? per million
HK$ revenue
SNHK/BAEE
Arilies 23.44 9.82

By using the year 2022 as a baseline year, our Group targets to

decrease our resource consumption intensity by 3% by 2025.

5 The water consumption data above only included one of our production
facilities in PRC. The supply and discharge of water for the rest of our
operating premises are either controlled by building management and

landlord. Therefore, the relevant data is not available.

5 In year 2022, the water meter at our production facility malfunctioned,
therefore the water consumption data is not comparable with year 2023.
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Noise

Due to our business nature, we acknowledge that noise generated
at production facilities and construction sites can have negative
impacts to the community. As such, we have implemented
certain noise pollution control measures to mitigate excessive
noise resulting from our operations. These measures include (i)
implementing noise isolation at our production facilities, (i) taking
practicable measures to reduce excessive noise by using advance
construction and noise damping technology, (iii) ensuring the noise
level does not exceed the prescribed level regulated by the Noise
Control Ordinance and other relevant regulations; and (iv) providing
hearing protection devices to our employees.

The environment and natural resources

We endeavour to minimise any adverse impact on the environment
resulting from our business activities. To comply with the
applicable environmental protection laws, we have established
an environmental management system in conformance with ISO
14001 international standard. Our environmental management
system includes measures and work procedures governing
environmental protection compliance that are required to be
followed by our employees and our subcontractors.

The Group will continuously strive to identify sources that may
have material impacts to the environmental from our operations in
various aspects including the air emission, waste and resources
consumption. In case any is identified, we are committed to
working against these sources to minimise the impact and to seek
alternatives to work around.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not prosecuted for
any breach of any applicable environment laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap.
311), Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400), Water Pollution Control
Ordinance (Cap. 358), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354),
Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap. 132), and
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC.

R E

AR FNEHEE  HPIAREERE
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BEPE - RAit BRAPEERETRES
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G (R FE R REMB RO
RIERIRTBRKF - K(iv)AfE B HEER R

#EKE o

BRERRRER
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KT IZERISO 14001 BEIBRIZ R T IRIBE
BREZ REEEEBEZMEAREERS
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Climate change

Our executive Directors are responsible for evaluating and
managing any material ESG issues and climate-related risks and
opportunities of our Group. Our executive Directors will meet
regularly to discuss issues and risks that are pertinent to the
business development of our Group. Our executive Directors will
keep track of the latest policies implemented by the Hong Kong
government in tackling climate change. For better identification
of the risks and opportunities, our executive Directors and senior
management will attend to discussion on sustainability of the
structural steelwork industry and low-carbon economy. Our Board
will work closely in identifying future risks and opportunities, as well
as identifying appropriate actions to cope with the ever-changing
situations.

The Group places significant emphasis on risks stemming from
climate change. We assume responsibility for environmental
stewardship and drive the transformation toward a low-carbon
enterprise. Following the guidelines set by the Taskforce on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), we assess the
impact of different risk types. This evaluation serves as valuable
guidance, shaping our response strategies and helping us identify
opportunities to transition toward a sustainable and environmentally
friendly business model in the future.

The table below set out the possible financial loss and non-financial

detriments arising from climate-related risks to which we may be
exposed to.
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Risk
Bk

Physical risks
VIR R B
Acute risk
SR

Description

P

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
conditions are likely to cause damage to our assets resulting in
financial loss. For example, flooding may cause rusting to our
products and damages to our machinery, resulting in increased
maintenance cost and replacement cost.

1Rm R RN A SRR R R B2 B - AT REBUE RPN E
C BEBRERK o AR P se BB PR E m A B R eS8
P SRR R B ARG o

T

The rising frequency of extreme weather conditions are likely to
interrupt the delivery of our materials, project schedule and wreak
havoc on the project sites’ environment. If there is any delay
on our part in completion of a project, we may be liable to pay
liquidated damages under the contract, which in turn will have
adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial condition,
and results of operations.

H & SRR im R RS AT BE B R ET B MM IS - THEEE
NETE B B IRIR AR B B BT o B MINIEER T A EHIRE
REER - BT R BARBEA A NEEBREEE - EmE M
BE XK MBIKAREEEBERKTNEE -

We may have to deploy additional resources to minimise the
potential adverse impacts caused by extreme weather hazards.
For instance, should there be any temporary project suspension
and/or delay resulted from extreme weather conditions, we
may have to deploy additional workers, engage additional
subcontractors and/or arrange for additional overtime works
to ensure timely delivery of works to our customers, thereby
increasing our operating costs and resulting in project costs
overrun.

BB ERARZER - UREREEZHRALEEKNE
TERFIRE - flan - WEBmATAR R EBEMIER GER,/X
TR - BPIERARELZTIA - ZEEZH 0™ & HREEEIN
MIETAE - R RFREPRZN IR - RSN MNEE
XA R B BUA B KA °
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Risk
Rk

Chronic risk

181

Description

P

Further, we may have to implement additional precautionary and
safety measures at our project sites to prevent damage caused by
extreme weather conditions, resulting in an increase in our overall
operating costs.

PEsh - Bfs/aTEIE B R B e EINEL R 2 FEHE - AR 1R
IR RAERIEE - EMER RPN BB LERNIEN -

Our employees and/or our subcontractors’ employees are prone
to rising temperature since most of our project sites are not
equipped with air-conditioning systems. Rising mean temperature
and increasing number of days of extreme heat can easily lead
to heat exhaustion, heat strokes or other health diseases. Such
negative impacts on the health condition of our employees and/
or our subcontractors’ employees may reduce our productivity
and/or delay our work progress, resulting in interruption to our
business operations.

KMOEER SHBENEESIRAE LANTE - BARM
BVAEB I B R B EZE AR o FHRE LT KRG =8
REVEMMRBESERZRER - PEHEMBERER - ZZFHEK
MEERE R SHBREESRRIMRNEmZEA g RERM
MEENR/SERBMNTEEE - EMEREEEERE -
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Risk
Bk

Transition risk
EAE R
Policy risk
HR R

Description

P

In the event of heatwave or extremely hot weather in the PRC,
our machinery located at our production facilities may face the
problem of overheating and lead to reduced useful life. We
will have to adopt additional measures, which include letting
the machinery rest after prolonged use and more frequent
maintenances to ensure smooth fabrication process, thereby
resulting in additional costs to be incurred by us.

iR 7E R B HE R 2R SRR R BVR SR, » BRI A A B SR e MO B8 7]
BEHERAXME  BEEATGMEE - B RRIEIMNEE -
BRECHBERKECAREAENEER T EREARRRE
BIZNER] - PEEREBE PIE SRR o

If the Hong Kong government decided to levy carbon tax, our
financial performance may be adversely affected as we may have
to allocate resources in strengthening our environmental control
measures on lowering our GHG emissions or settle any levies
imposed by the Hong Kong government on our GHG emission.

W BB BDRE BT - RO B RB AT BTN E

B B P P] 88 7R 2 B B R 2K AN 5% 3 AP wt B 1608 2= S B8 HF IR ER Y

REZHIERIFER BB E MR ZE RSB ER
HE -
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Risk Description Time horizon

2 B it KA EE

Legal risk In the event of any changes in the laws and regulations in  Short to medium term
reEN environmental protection in Hong Kong and the PRC, we may 42 i

have to incur additional costs and expenses to comply with such

requirements. If we fail to comply with the relevant laws and

regulations, we may be involved in costly litigation or subject to

penalties or other sanctions imposed by the relevant judicial or

governmental authorities. Our reputation may also be adversely

affected, resulting in a loss of business as our customers may be

less inclined to engage subcontractors with environmental non-

compliance.

i EE K BEAERRAEROERE A

B RFHEAENT

BIMNKARFAZIABTEBRE  WERMAREETHBERIE
B RPIAJREEBABAR SN RANE R E AR RARK

FFERPTMEINE LA 5L © TP BB IR A e B A
BREE  AREMANFFREBRETAM

1K -

ye gy

E

7 EREA A REER

Market and reputational Driven by the gradual recognition and promotion of low-carbon Short to medium term

risk economy by the Hong Kong government, our executive Directors A2 42 £f

RESE E anticipate that our Group will be increasingly required by our

customers to adopt clean technology and deploy energy-saving

and efficient machinery in performing our projects. If we are unable

to fulfil our customers’ requirements in this regard, our customers

may become less likely to award projects to us, resulting in

material adverse impact on our market competitiveness and

reputation.

R EEBUTZ 82 ] S R RIS - ST ESREARES

BEPRBERANEBEAENTIERB BRABRRM AR

EHRENRD

MR - HERFAEIRREFEESTENER  EFAKRMARH

HBE AR ERIE - BRFIH TSR

g -
While climate change imposes different risks to our operations

and employees, it also offers opportunities. By adopting the right
approach to address the issues, we can unlock potential benefits.
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Opportunities
e

Increase business
opportunities

I

Transition to low carbon
technologies

A AR B T 5 A

Description

P

In view of the increasing awareness of eco-friendliness and
sustainable property development by property developers
and construction contractors, structural steelwork has been
increasingly used for construction in Hong Kong as it offers higher
degree of environmentally friendliness than concrete construction.
ENYERRRBEAERHERRIT RAIFENERENE
BEER  MEBTRENESCERT R AMAEIREE
RIBEFIRIR -

Our executive Directors consider that our proficiency in structural
steelwork and practice of recycling steel waste will enable our
Group to be considered more favourably by our customers and
increase our prospect of obtaining new projects.

WITEERA - RIS BINERE IR R BN R B AT
FAEEGIELRTFEH - WIEMBMESHERNKS -

In view of the increasing awareness of sustainable development
and green energy, our Group has set out a plan to replace our
machinery at our production facilities in the PRC with those that
are more efficient in energy consumption. The replacement of our
existing machinery is likely to provide long-term benefits to our
Group. With reduced energy consumption, we will create a more
environmentally friendly workplace for our employees.
EREARERRLGEARNEBERRES AEEDHE—
AT E - BB AEREN KIS TR RERRERE T HE = H
HeE c BHMBERBELERAAEETRRENR - BERRHME
BRIE - B AEERIEERRNITIESMH
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Time horizon
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Short to medium term
FR G HA

Short to medium term
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment

The Group highly value our employees as the most crucial assets
and recognizes that aligning business objectives with the Human
Resources (HR) system is essential for success. Our HR system
focuses on maintaining a pool of talent to support our business
development, as well as providing an ethical working environment
to facilitate employees’ career advancement. We are dedicated
to ensuring that our HR system complies with relevant labour
laws and regulations, including but not limited to, Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57); Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap.
282), Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608); Sex Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 480); and Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.
487).

To achieve this, we have established a comprehensive employee
handbook, which clearly outlines the rights and obligations of
our employees. All employees are entitled to public or statutory
holidays, and various types of leave, such as annual leave, sick
leave, compensation leave, maternity leave and compassionate
leave. Additionally, we participate in a provident funds scheme
and several social security funds in compliance with local laws and
regulations.

We are committed to upholding the principles of equal
opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination in our workplace.
These principles are integrated into our recruitment, promotion,
compensation and termination process. We emphasise that
recruitment and promotion decisions are based solely on
individual merit and competency. Similarly, termination and
disciplinary actions will only be taken against lawful and justifiable
reasons. Discrimination factors, such as gender, age, race, skin
color, nationality, religion and political affiliation will never be a
consideration factor in these processes.

Furthermore, our grievance procedure provides a confidential
channel for employees to express concerns, such as management
deficiency, unfair treatment, and sexual harassment within our
Group. We encourage employees to participate in voluntary
exit interviews upon resignation which allow us to identify any
vulnerabilities in our HR system.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any RIREHAR - A& B AR )i &
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations concerning R - BEREH - TIERE - K

compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, BEAE - FE#®g - £t - RERRE
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity, anti- R M AEF A R ERER A ER -

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 148 (2022: 144) 2023F12 4318 + AEEH148%(2022
employees, and the overall Group’s employee turnover rate was F144%)EE  MAKENEREER
28% (2022: 49%). During the Reporting Period, 41 employees left KT E28%(20224F : 49%) o FAREHAIR -
our Group due to natural attrition, within which approximately 90% MEZEERRBARINAEERE - &

were entry level staff. FAI90% AR E T -
2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
Number of Turnover Number of Turnover
Workforce EEER employees rate’ employees rate’
BEAY k=T EEAE TR

By gender 2R

Male B 133 30% 128 54%

Female gegs 15 13% 16 6%
By age group RERRAE R

30 or below 30R AT 2 75% 6 38%

31-50 312505% 78 25% 738 40%

51 or above 515% 3 A 1= 68 29% 65 60%
By job position 1% T VBB

Senior management RREEE 7 0% 6 0%

Middle management FRERRE 18 24% 16 13%

Entry level CIE 123 30% 122 55%
By geographical region ki@

Hong Kong B 41 57% 46 85%

PRC s 107 16% 98 29%

7 The employee turnover rates are calculated using the number of T EERAENERARE HAARBEES ASEBRIA
employees left during the reporting period divided by average number of HERNFHREEABGTE -
employees for the reporting period.
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Labour standards

Our Group strictly prohibits any form of child or forced labor, as
well as unfair treatment of our employees. In alignment with this
commitment, the Group has established recruitment policies that
adhere to relevant laws and regulations, including the Employment
of Children Regulations (Cap. 57B), the Immigration Ordinance
(Cap. 115), and the Employment Ordinance.

As part of our recruitment process, all job applicants are required to
provide valid documentation to verify their identity, age, and other
personal information. This ensures that they meet the necessary
qualifications for employment. Should any violations against labor
standards be identified, the Group promptly terminates employment
and conducts thorough investigations to determine the cause.
Additionally, appropriate disciplinary actions are taken to address
any wrongdoing.

Health and safety

The Group regards health and safety as one of the top-ranking
issues. To provide our employees with a safe and healthy working
environment, we have implemented occupational health and safety
policies, which is certified to be in compliance with ISO 45001
standards across our production facilities and project sites.

Work safety measures at our production facilities

At our production facilities in the PRC, we have established robust
safety measures to ensure strict compliance with applicable safety
laws and regulations imposed by PRC government authorities.
These regulations include but not limited to, Production Safety Law
((REARILFIELZ 24 EL)) and Safety of Special Equipment
Law ({PEARJAMBEIFERFELE2E)).

During fabrication, our production workers operate various
machines to create our final products. These machines include
(i) cutting machines and drilling machines for cutting the steel
materials, (ii) welding machines for joining steel parts and other
components, and (i) gantry cranes for lifting and transporting bulky
items within the production premises.
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In view of the intensity of machine operations, we conduct regular
training sessions on safe machine operation. Additionally, warmning
signs are prominently displayed to enhance safety awareness
among employees. Protective devices are also installed to minimize
the risk of injury. Furthermore, we have implemented a maintenance
system for our machinery, which includes inspections and repair
and maintenance of machinery to ensure proper functioning and
safe operation.

To maintain compliance with our safety measures, our production
department conducts routine safety inspections to ensure our
employees are equipped with essential occupational safety gear,
such as safety helmets, protective eyewear, safety shoes, and
gloves.

Work safety measures at project sites

Our project management team is responsible for overseeing the
implementation of our occupational health and safety policies
at project sites and ensuring that we comply with all applicable
occupational health and safety standards and laws, including but
limited to Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap.
59), Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) and
Occupiers Liability Ordinance (Cap. 314).

To prevent workplace accidents, our Group has established
an internal safety manual. This manual outlines the work safety
measures implemented across our construction sites. Our internal
safety manual is reviewed from time to time to incorporate the
best practices and to address and improve specific areas of
our occupational health and safety policies. Our workplace and
safety rules set out in our internal safety manual identify common
safety and health hazards and recommendations on prevention
of workplace accidents. We require our employees and our
subcontractors’ employees to strictly comply with our safety rules.

ENEEFTELTREKS - RS EH
BRERLEBRERINZIRE - 1k
S RPIEHEEREREESZRE - AN
BEENZE2EH - BANLKERER
B URERIZBHRAR - B M
HHRBEREESE  BRREREER
MRS MREEERERLEERE-

RERFETLEHERE  EESFISETH
TR2RE - URFRESEFELZ2E - #
Bt R2ERTESVERELREER
g o

RIBAMBEHY TIFZEER

BAMEREEEKEREEEREERR
ZERRERBMWBRNEN - W R
ETAEERANBERERZEFRERX
# - BIEETRE SRR TEL LR
(5659%) - (B2 MZFEERH) (509
B) RMERNEREEEDD) (F314F) -

RPETHESHAEN - AEED HEANED
ZE2FM o ZFMIFARZELBE ED
THERRER - AP TERASABLZEF
it - AMAREESTH - WREERNE
HANBXRERZZBROSEHE -
BPERBL2FMEIOTIESHARET
E2RAGIAELNZERERREE - XH
B TESMBIMEL EREZ - AR
KEERDEBREEEBETHMNL R
AN -

Annual Report 2023 ¢ —Z = =FF3f

97



98

Environmental, Social and Governance Report R - # @R EA#RE

Work safety measures included in our internal safety manual include
among other, (i) organising site safety induction briefing sessions for
workers (including subcontractors’ employees); (i) conducting risk
assessments before commencing work to identify potential hazards
and recommending preventive measures; (i) conducting regular
internal and external safety meetings to monitor the adequacy of
measures implemented; (iv) appointing safety officers to carry out
daily site inspections; and (iv) investigating work accidents (if any)
and determining their causes and develop measures for preventing
recurrence.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any
material non-compliance cases relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards,
or experience any significant accidents at our project sites and no
work-related fatalities have occurred in the past three years.

ABRZ2FMEINN TIEZ2ERERE R
FERBONSIA(BESEENESR) 8
BT E ABBESENE (IR TRRRMAR
EIT ARG IARREE R I IR KA
iR (NEMBRTABRINDLEE
# o AEBMERNERERESRSA  (VE
ER2TAEBRETERHER : RivREE
TiEESNINE) REEEEKE - I HIE
IEBRE OV o

RBEMA - AEREYEZFRERHLZE
TERRERERERIBERSEEHEN
EAERTARMEZE  BEASERIAR
BYBEMEAFTH LR BE=FLEH
ARTIHRTER

Work-related injury statistics TEHRTET 2023 2022 2021

2023%F 20224F 20214
Number reportable accidents AMESWHE 0 0 1
Number of work-related fatalities I AR 0 0 0
Number of lost days due to work injury ET{S18K TIEHE 0 0 53
Development and Training R R

Effective staff training is a cornerstone of business success,
offering a prime opportunity to enhance the knowledge base of
all employees. At our Group, we prioritize comprehensive training
not only for personal development but also for safety, especially
for employees working at our production facilities and construction
sites.

In view of the safety risk inherent in most of our job positions, we
provide safety training to our workers. This training covers personal
safety, proper use of safety equipment, and safe machinery
operation. Additionally, we encourage and reimburse staff to attend
relevant professional courses, enhancing their job competence.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

BB THINNEBRNZER - RBIG
BEREISMNAMBEMEHBEKS - KX
AEE RAK2EBINRERER
EUXHEESTRENEARR  TER
TREENZE2ER  LERGELEERER
EEMETIENES -

ERHRANKRBLY TERUASESFE
ZERER BRI ARELEE -
BSEREEAALE  EHERZER
LR 2R E - LS RPIEBET
SMBEBEXERE - BRBAREAE - U
T E TAEREE ©



Environmental, Social and Governance Report BiE - # @R EARRE

For new employees, we offer induction training that introduces
them to our corporate culture, business processes, and health
and safety protocols. Furthermore, we actively promote on-the-job
training, equipping our staff to perform their daily tasks efficiently
and effectively.

Regular performance appraisals with supervisors or managers
empower our employees to set work goals, manage expectations,
and receive valuable feedback. This process contributes to their
personal growth and future career development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group offered a total of
approximately 720 (2022: 695) hours of training to our employees,
and the average training hours completed per employee was
approximately 4.93 (2022: 4.15) hours.

2023
20235

Percentage
of employees
Training =3 trained®
ZilES
Ehalal
Workforce by gender RIS 8 E B B
Male s 49%
Female it 13%
Workforce by job position ¥ T {EB;7Z1 5 Hy{E 8 B
Senior management BREEE 100%
Middle management HRERE 18%
Entry level N 46%

HRMABES  RASEREARBEI
ARENTARMNEEL - FBEREA
FEERZE2HRE - WH  BIFEERHES
FERIE - (£ 8 TaE &M A Bt #IT
H#®IER -

EHRTESALBETELE AR
ERETIEER EERHEREETER
BEER - WBREAMNREEFNEAKRER
ARREFRER -

RBEER - AEERESIRE T A4
720(20224F : 695)/NEHIEF  BEEES
FERKHY 5 T R B A 78 4.93(2022F ¢
4.15)/\EF o

2022
20225

Average Percentage Average

training  of employees training
hours® trained® hours®

F19353 XillEE T
53 Y ABALS 538

5.48 41% 4.58

0.26 12% 0.24

2.26 100% 2.00

2.12 19% 2.25

5.46 38% 4.45

8 The percentage of employees trained is calculated using the total number
of employees trained during the reporting period divided by average
number of employees during the year.

9 The average training hours is calculated using the total training hours
during the reporting period divided by average number of employees
during the year.
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

The Group recognises the importance of building and maintaining
strong relationships with our supply chain partners as they
significantly contribute to the Group’s pursuit of quality excellence.
Our supply chain partners primarily include (i) suppliers of
materials such as steel; (i) subcontractors of construction site
works; (i) subcontractors of structural steel galvanising works;
and (iv) suppliers of other miscellaneous services such as testing,
machinery services, transportation and technical engineering
services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our supply chain
partners by geographical region:

Suppliers and sub-contractors HERRSEE
Hong Kong aBH
PRC &

To ensure a sustainable supply chain network, we have
implemented a policy and procedure for selecting suppliers and
subcontractors. We maintain an internal list of approved suppliers
and subcontractors which will be updated on a continuous basis
and are subject to regular evaluation. In selecting our suppliers, we
will consider factors including pricing, quality of materials provided,
timeliness of delivery and ability to comply with our requirements
and specifications. Similarly, when evaluating subcontractors, we
assess their quality of services, skills and technique, reputation,
prevailing market price, delivery time and availability of resources
in accommodating our requests. We also obtain quotations from
different suitable subcontractors for comparison and select them
based on their experience relevant to the project, availability and
fee quotations.
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We require our supply chain partners to uphold the principles of
ethical business thereby minimizing the environmental and social
risks. We have implemented a comprehensive quality management
system which helps us identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Product and service responsibility — Quality control and recall
procedure” below. Additionally, we have developed a procedure
for evaluating the safety performance of our subcontractors.
Any unsatisfactory performance of our subcontractors will be
reported to our directors and a warning letter may be issued to
the relevant subcontractor. Suppliers or sub-contractors with
inferior past records of significant environmental or social issues,
such as excessive pollutions discharges to the environment,
non-compliance with our safety requirements and exploitation of
workers, will be removed from our internal approved list.

Product and service responsibility

Quality control and recall procedure

The Group believes that the reliability and quality of our product and
service are critical factors contributing to our success. As such,
we have adopted and implemented a quality management system
certified to satisfy the requirement of ISO 9001:2015. The quality
management system stipulates procedures and controls that span
the entire operation process, from the procurement of materials to
the completion of construction works. During the Reporting Period,
the Group have not received any request for product recall from our
customers due to safety and health reasons.

Below outlines the quality control procedures adopted for
respective stage of our operation:

Procurement process

Depending on the contract terms with our customers, we may
be required to procure materials with certain specifications or
quality standards. To ensure compliance with our customers’
requirements, we generally arrange external laboratory testing for
the materials. Upon delivery to our production facilities, we typically
conduct inspections of the materials received. If any materials fail to
meet the relevant specifications or standards, we promptly request
replacements from our suppliers.
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Structural steel fabrication process

We closely monitor our structural steel fabrication process to
ensure strict compliance with our standard operating procedures.
Throughout the fabrication process, we provide regular quality
control reports to our customers. Additionally, we engage third-
party testing service providers to conduct weld testing, ensuring
the strength and quality of our semi-finished products. Before
delivering finished goods to construction sites, we conduct in-
house inspections and provide outgoing quality inspection
reports for customers approval. Our foremen and our customers’
representatives at the construction sites would also conduct
inspection on the finished products upon their arrival. Any defective
products identified will not be delivered to our customers. Our
quality control inspectors will identify the causes for any product
defects and follow up closely with our quality control department to
confirm any deficiencies in our production process.

Project management

We assign a project management team for every project based on
the project nature and the relevant qualifications and experience
required. This team is led by the project manager who is
responsible for the overall management of the project, including
liaising and communicating with our customers, coordinating and
providing guidance to the other team members, overseeing the
progress, budget and quality of services rendered. Throughout the
project implementation, we provide regular progress reports to our
customers based on their requests. These reports highlight the
project’s status and any issues identified during implementation.

As part of our commitment to quality, we hold ourselves
accountable for the performance and work quality of our
subcontractors. Our project management team conducts regular
meetings with subcontractors and performs inspections to ensure
strict adherence to project schedules and specifications.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

BT SR ERMBERE - NRERE
RETRANTERIERF - REEIHER
EEEY  BMEHREPRREEER
|E o Ubsh - MR E =5 RBH
FERETTIREOAH - ARERF BRI MmN
EREE HEARINEZEHRZ
Al BAPETARREY RELHEER
EREAREPHE - BEMBNETR
EPRENMSEHKRIEERETRE
ERAZRRERENERBTERXNTRM
MER - RAINEEERERSERER
BREER A A - 0 RPNV E B B IR RRFT &
PR - URERR M EEBRE P ERR
B

HHEE

BHMeREEBEERAFTNHEBER M
KA EEBEKEREEENK - 28
FHAEELERE  HAEERAMERE
2 BRERFEKNER  BHELFAE
EK BIRMIEE ERBREREH
EE - BENEE - REERBHITERE
T RAREFPHERERRREFRE
BE - x5 % HEE MRERAITHIZ
PEBRMERIEE -

EREERFN—HD BB EEH
RALEERE  -HEEEEKSENE
DEERITERWETRE - UBRERE
BT A KRR KRS -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report BiE - # @R EARRE

Complaints handling

Our executive Directors and senior management team maintain
regular communication with our customers and conduct site
visits to gather feedback. We promptly follow up and respond to
customer feedback with the goal of maintaining and continuously
improving our service standards. During project implementation,
we may attend progress meetings organised by our customers to
address any identified issues.

Additionally, our contracts typically include a defects liability period
of 6 to 24 months following the completion of relevant site works.
Within this period, we are obligated to promptly rectify any defects
at our own cost if they result from non-conformance with our work
or failure to meet contractual obligations.

To the best of our knowledge, the Group did not receive any official
complaints from our customers during the Reporting Period.

Intellectual property

We recognise the importance of protecting and maintaining
our intellectual property rights. We adhere to relevant laws and
regulations that have significantly impact on our operations. These
include, but are not limited to, the Trademarks Ordinance (Cap.
559) and the Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528) in Hong Kong.

To promote our commitment against infringement of intellectual
property, we have established comprehensive guidelines in our
employee handbook. Employees are strictly prohibited from using
unlicensed software and making unauthorised copies of copyright
works. As of the end of the Reporting Period, all software used by
us are with legitimate licenses. We were not aware of any material
infringements by us of any intellectual property rights owned by
third parties.

To protect our intellectual property, all our business logos have
been properly registered. As of the end of the Reporting Period, we
were not aware of any material infringements by third parties of any
intellectual property rights owned by us. In the event of intellectual
property infringement by third parties, the Group will take necessary
legal action against them.
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Employee and consumer data protection and privacy policies

The Group places paramount importance on maintaining the
confidentiality of employee and customer information. We are
dedicated to safeguarding the privacy of our customers, business
partners, and employees throughout our entire operations.

To achieve this, we have established data protection and privacy
policies within our employee handbook to safeguard information
shared with customers, suppliers, and other relevant parties.
Additionally, our employment contracts include a confidentiality
clause to prevent unauthorised disclosure of sensitive information.
The Group diligently adheres to the applicable privacy rules and
regulations within our operational environment. As of the end of the
Reporting Period, there have been no instances of unauthorised
access, accidental usage, or alterations to this data.

On the other hand, the Group’s business operation did not have
material issues concerning advertising and labelling matters.
Nevertheless, we require our employees to provide our customers
with accurate and true information of the Group’s services.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified material
non-compliance cases relating to product responsibility, including
health and safety to customers, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters.

Anti-corruption

The Group upholds a high standard of integrity and adopts a zero-
tolerance policy on acts of corruption in any form, including bribery
and extortion, fraud and money laundering. We strictly abide by the
laws and regulations related to anti-corruption, including but not
limited to the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC, the Criminal
Law of the PRC and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter
201 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the Reporting Period, the
Group were not aware of any cases, complaints or notifications
from governmental authorities regarding non-compliance of the
Group or its employees with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group in relation to bribery.
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We stipulate our philosophy, objectives as well as disciplinary
code against corruption in our staff handbook and offer trainings
to our employees and directors to ensure they understand the
details of the terms. We also adopt a whistleblowing policy which
allows our employees to report any suspected misconduct or
malpractice. Complainants are assured of their anonymity and are
protected against unfair dismissal, victimisation or unwarranted
disciplinary action even when their concerns turn out to be
unsubstantiated. Any reported incidents will be duly investigated
by our executive director and reported to our Audit Committee. If
justified, disciplinary actions (if applicable) will be taken against the
wrongdoers accordingly.

In addition, to avoid any conflict of interest of our employees, we
stipulate the declaration of interest guidelines in our staff handbook,
which provides guidelines and procedures to our employees in
exercising their good faith and honesty in all transactions and avoid
using their positions or knowledge gained from their employment
for their own personal benefits. Our employees are required to
ensure there is no conflict of interest between their personal
interest and their duties to our Group and declare any potential or
perceived conflict of interest to our executive directors when they
have or have had a personal relationship with a related person.
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SOCIAL - COMMUNITY
Community investment

The Group are working towards to building a healthy and
sustainable community and maintaining communication and
interaction with the community. We aim to promote the stability
of society and support the underprivileged to improve the quality
of life. We focus to inspire our employees towards social welfare
awareness and encourage our employees to participate in voluntary
works to make contribution to society.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had donated HK$2,500
(2022: HK$2,500) to support the underprivileged. Looking forward,
we will keep abreast of the latest trends and best practices related
to environmental protection at construction sites, and workers’
health and safety to further extend our care to the community.
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ESG CONTENT INDEX

Aspect

B

A. Environmental
AR

Emissions

E235¢7)

BE - H8RER

HERERRE

RBEZRS|

KPl Description Section reference

BEE

WIEIR it BEZEH

Al General Disclosure Environmental
Information on: protection
a) the policies; and
b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

Al —REE RIGRE
ERBERMBERBYR - KRS - BERE
EEEMNELSH
@ BE: &

o) EIFHETABEAZENEBRERZRADIRER -

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions

A1 BERWRE SR AR R R - BB

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas  Emissions
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.

A12 EE@EEN)keREZ (GEE2)REREBENE CABE) R HEW
(WER)BE °

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where  Emissions
appropriate, intensity.

A13 FEABEEZEWESE UERE) R(ER)FE - HER)

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where  Emissions
appropriate, intensity.

Al4 FRIEXBEZEZEYHAEE CEETE) X(ER) B - BB

A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and step taken to achieve  Emissions
them.

A1.5  HEFREI S VBN E B IR R RED|E L B IEFTERERR 2P o HER)
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Aspect KPl Description Section reference
mEE
& WIBAR fut S2EEH
A1.6  Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are ~ Emissions
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
Al6 HMEEFERBEEEVNTE - REMMMTVORERR Y
RAEEE L B BATRIA S5 -
Use of resources A2 General Disclosure Use of resources
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.
BIREER A2 —RHEER BIRERA
BRERER (BIERLIR - KEREMERMED BB -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of resources
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity.
A21 IRERESMEER SEEERWE - Rl BFEEA BREA
FETREE) REE -
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of resources
A22 RFEKEREE - ERER
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps  Use of resources
taken to achieve them.
A2.3 HEIFRETSZ VAR AW B iR R AEDE L BRI S BRER
A2.4  Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water thatis ~ Use of resources
fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
A4 RERSKEVERAR EAAEAME - AR UMAKNEE  ARER
2R A B B ISR S -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)  Not relevant to the
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Group’s business
A25 HKEFAABEEMHNESE UEGE) R (WER) 84ESEL TERARAEEX
158 o %
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Aspect KPI
BRE

fBm MIsE

The environment A3

and natural resources

RIERAARER A3

Description

it

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

— MR EE

RIEEITAHRRENAABERERERTENBR -

Section reference

BEZH
The environment
and natural

resources

RIENRAEIR

A3.1

A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

Bl EBEBERBERARAABERNEALERCENEEEH
TEMITE -

The environment
and natural
resources

RIENRAER

Climate change A4

General Disclosure
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

—MRIRE
BRI R EHE RN IS HEITAELEY ENEARFEHERS
HERER -

Climate change

— R E

AR E Ad
A4.1
A4.1

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

Rl DR RSB ITAELFENEARGHRBSEE &
JEETTE) ©

Climate change

— B
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Aspect

B
B. Social
B. g

Employment

KPI

HRE

Description

MIEER it

B1

B1

General Disclosure

Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

— MR EE

BRAE I AR E - HBRERE - TERE - RE - T

2 Zioft - RERAREAMFEREMNA

@ BER: R

b) BEFHBEITABEAZENEBERLROINER -

Section reference

SEEH

Employment

B1.1

B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region.

®RIER - EERE - FREMNERESNESRR -

Employment

(A

B1.2

B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

BIER - FRARIRIEEDHEEIRKE -

Employment

(A

Health and safety

B2

General Disclosure

Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

—RRIRER

BRREZ2TERERREREEBEBE LT

@ BE: &

b) BETFHBETABEAZENHBEREAOINER -

Health and safety
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Aspect KPl Description Section reference
BEE
[EE WABAR fut SEEH
B2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of  Health and safety
the past three years
B2.1 BE=FEFEENTHITAZSKLE - fEREZ R
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and safety
B2.2 ATISEATIEAS - R mz e
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  Health and safety
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B2.3 HMMLAIRMMBERERZSHEE  URABMIRERS RESHZ?
5 o
Development and B3 General Disclosure Development and
training Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for  training
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
e B3 M= YTl
FRRARERITIEBENANZ RRRERNEBUR - B INE
g o
B3.1  The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee  Development and
category. training
B3.1 ®&RMAIKESEMNESHNZIIEER DL EEYEE]
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender  Development and
and employee category. training
B3.2 ®ZMAIKESREE S BEESTHZIIE TR - EEeEE
Labour standards B4 General Disclosure Labour standards
Information on:
a)  the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forces labour.
4 T %R B4 —RIEE 4 T 8|
BRER 1EE T 5845 Th -
@ BX:k
b) EFHBETABEAZENEMEEIROIEER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to  Labour standards
avoid child and forced labour.
B4.1 fEutigsiBIEEOINEHEAREE T REHIST &5 T AR
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Aspect KPl Description Section reference
mEE
& WIBAR fut SEEMW

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when  Labour standards
discovered.

B4.2 HEMEBERERIENFER A @IS PAERRE 5 - L5 T =R

Supply chain B5 General Disclosure Supply chain

management Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the = management
supply chain.

HEEER Bs MRk HEEER
ERHEENRE R SRREE -

B5.1  Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply chain

management

B5.1 iimEISHHEEREE - HrEgEER

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number  Supply chain
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and  management
how they are implemented and monitored.

Bs.2 #lBEHAKRAHERNEN  REARTEEBANNEERE HEREE
B ARBRERITRERTEA -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental  Supply chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are = management
implemented and monitored.

B5.3 fulBEARMIHEEGERSNRERESRBRNEN - Uk HERER
HARITRERTA -

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally — Supply chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and ~ management
how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.4 fAlAEBEMHERREESZARRERMREHES - LARE HERER

BARIT MEESRITR ©
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Aspect

EE

Product
responsibility

KPlI Description Section reference
BEE
WABAR fut SEEH
B6 General Disclosure Product and service
Information on: responsibility
a)  the policies; and
b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
B6 MR EmRRBEE
BHFRHERNBRBHNRERELZS BE  SERILESEE
ARAEROTER
@ BE: &
b) ETHEITABEAZENHEBERLROINER -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls  Product and service
for safety and health reasons. responsibility
B6.1 EEHCEZXEMBHETELTHEEREAMARNKNES EmkREEE
Lt -
B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received  Product and service
and how they are dealt with. responsibility
B6.2 EEEANEmMMREHIRFEE ARBE T - EmRREEE
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting  Product and service
intellectual property rights. responsibility
B6.3  faiul B 4 & R ARFE AN E A 1B o Em&RGEE
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.  Product and service
responsibility
B6.4 fHlEERTEBEREREPERF Em&RGEE
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,  Product and service
and how they are implemented and monitored. responsibility
B6.5 HEILHEEERHRERIBEER - LAMAERAAITRERTE - 2 i MRS B A
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Aspect KPl Description Section reference
BRE
[Bm| Mg SEEH

Anti-corruption

B7 General Disclosure
Information on:
a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Anti-corruption

RES B7 —MRIKE RER
B IEERER - 3R - BGFROERE
@ BE: &
(o) ETFHEITABEAZENERERRADIREE -
B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  Anti-corruption
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
B7.1 RERPANHBETANHESRETV D EENETHARN RES
BB MEFRER o
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Anti-corruption
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B7.2 fHulBh SRR WET - U RAEBBITRER X RER
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and  Anti-corruption
staff.
B7.3 fuimERRE TRHENRESHE - RES
Community B8 General Disclosure Community
investment Policies on community engagement to understand the needs  investment
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
HEREKE B8 MRk HEREE
BN RBERTRETASENELRTEMBRLER
BB E BRI EBR o
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community
investment
B8.1 ZEIRRIEH - HERKEE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community
investment
Bs2 HEHIHEAMBAER- HEREE
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To the Shareholders of WK Group (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of WK Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 123 to 218, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

QOur opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BRLESE R BRAFTRR
(RASBESEMAIZNERAT)

=R
HIFIE & AIAE

MEEE(ZER)BRABUATEEN &
AADREMBRAR (A THEI 5%
=) P &N E123E218EMERE M 55
=B

. MR20234%12 A31 B4R A M AR

s  HFAMBERERME  BREANSFK
REMDEMBERES -

HiaE R

BMRE  ZEGREMBREEBRESS
SHMASBRMGHN(EETHRELEDE
EMPEHRET BHEEMR2023F12A8
B1AMGEMBMRAREREZEZBILFE
MGG BRARGEARERE YEE
BEE (A RIED) ME TR T Z A% -
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to revenue
recognition from construction contracts.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BREITER

Revenue recognition from construction contracts

REZESHHREER

Refer to Notes 5(a) and 5(f) of the consolidated financial statements.

A2 A M IEREMEES@@) K5()

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
revenue of approximately HK$370 million generated from structural
steelwork construction contracts.

BE2023F12A31HILFE - EEEEIAKEMEE TIREES
HEZKIB7T0B BT ©

The Group recognises revenue overtime by applying input method
according to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations on the basis of the actual costs incurred by
the Group up to the year-end date as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each project. The total estimated costs are prepared by
the internal quantity surveyors with reference to cost structure of
the Group’s completed projects of similar size and specifications,
quotation from suppliers and subcontractors and the latest actual
costs incurred. The progress for each project are reassessed by
management at each reporting date.

REERAE AERBTHK B S THEE R ERRNE - T
BHOEENERN EXEHEFRIERESEEREEENERK
REEFHRALEN B DL RERE o AL TR RE TR
EME2ZRERRRE HERRY BEAREREEENZNER
AL ESEECRTIEBNKAEERE SHEBEER
ERENE IS B BAERTE o

RRETER(E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
FAINERNAEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to revenue
recognition from construction contracts
included:
BMAEBREREES DN KR ERNIET
B

o Obtained an understanding of
the Group’s internal control and
assessment process of revenue
recognition on construction contracts
and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement;

e TR BESEBARESHNWEHA
B EE1E AT AR - MR (hE REEER
PRt ) BB B

o Evaluated and tested, on a sample
basis, key internal control procedures
over the revenue recognition;

o DAHRERDS AL RO M S MR A B
RAEPEITIRFT ¢

° Examined the key terms of the
construction contracts on a
sample basis and assessed the
Group’s revenue recognition
policies to evaluate whether they
are in accordance with the relevant
accounting standards;

e DA RABRERESHNEZIRK
Nttt BEEEREEREE - A
HEZEGRREES NS BB E

a1
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter

HRETEE

We focused on this area due to the relative significance of revenue
recognised from construction contracts to the consolidated financial
statements and thus significant audit time and resources were
devoted in this area. Judgement and estimation are also involved
when assessing the progress of work performed and the profit
margin.

BB BTN R R B RES IR RH R BEHRRN
HEEZHRARSAREEZRFEARERILEFHF - FHHEHE
TIIRHEE RAE R IRS KA K fhEt -
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BRRETEER(E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit

Matter

FINERNAEEBRENSE

o Tested, on a sample basis, the actual
costs incurred during the year ended
31 December 2023 by checking the
relevant supporting documents;

s  FEBWEBBERIME - RN
AHEE2023F12A31BLEFER
EENBERER

o Tested, on a sample basis, the costs
recognised before and after year end
date by examining relevant supporting
evidence to assess whether they
are recognised in the appropriate
accounting period; and

e  EBREAMSIFER  AHESH
BHARELE R Z AT R 2 1B E#RAIK
K AHEBEAKARESREENSG
STEAMRER ¢ &

° Performed analysis, on a sample
basis, by comparing the initial project
margin and the final project margin
of completed projects to assess
the effectiveness of management’s
estimation.

o DHEARNETON - HERBERK
TIHEMVIRIER MEREZKIAR
FIERETHE  UTEEEBNMG
SREEM -

Based on our audit procedures, we found
the Group’s revenue recognised from
construction contracts were supported by
the available evidence.

BERMNEFRERF  RMAZER S5
BERRERESNNKREAIFNEEX

o
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained
some of the other information including management analysis and
discussion prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The remaining
other information, including the financial highlights, chairman’s
statement, directors’ report and the other sections to be included
in the annual report, are expected to be made available to us after
that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the
annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the Audit
Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal rights
and obligations.

Htpfz 2

BERREBERAHEMESASE - HiER
BRFHRANMEEE  ETRERAH
BamER LRI ZEEN RS - NI BED
HEBHR - RMACKEST —LHEME
B BREEENREINMAENER
HHpHEMER  BRMBHE  ETF®
T EFERERFHRAEMNEMEHE
R % B ERR R AR TR AP

BPESFEMBERRNEEL MREEM
E8  RART BB I EHZEHEMER
BREMPARNEE SR

BERMBEAMBHRERNEFT - RN
REERMEEXGERNEMES - LB
B ZEHEMERRERES MBRE
SRMEFTEBRTHATHNBEAFEE
AE@BHEUFEFEERNERBANBE

ERBACER A= EE R E B B2 %
SREMERHNTHIE  NREMAR
HESFEEABERRL - HAIFER
TZEE - -GEETH  BFUREEMAR

%:o

ERFHEZSEREREFHEAK THE
fEER  MREMBBEFFEEAR
R BT ERERERERREE
SRR WERRMMNEAEENMEREK
REVEETE
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Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #% 8k R &

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #% 8ki R &

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continueqd)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yuen Shin Fong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong,

27 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income &4 2 E iz R

Note 2023 2022
k=3 20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue Wz 5 370,226 336,384
Cost of services BRAG R AN 7 (299,128) (269,445)
Gross profit EX 71,098 66,939
Other income EAqt A 6 181 2,611
Other (loss)/gain, net Hth (B518) /Was F 58 6 (484) 123
Administrative expenses TR 7 (19,128) (19,078)
Listing expenses WX (15,982) =
Impairment losses on financial assets & RIAE NS OEE
and contract assets VENIEN g 3.1@a) (1,577) (3,800)
Operating profit R 34,108 46,795
Finance income B A 10 207 95
Finance costs B TSR AR 10 (662) (434)
Finance costs, net B TSR AR RR (455) (339)
Profit before income tax expense  KRFT5%i B S AIER 33,653 46,456
Income tax expense FriSHi 11 (8,448) (7,191)
Profit for the year attributable to 72 F)#EA A EEEREF]
owners of the Company 25,205 39,265
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2wz -
ltem that may be reclassified AlREE D R BEAIE
to profit or loss: B :
Currency translation differences B =R 440 1,482
Total comprehensive income for the X A A EEAEBEFEREE
year attributable to owners of the U458
Company 25,645 40,747
Earnings per share attributable to ZAFEEABEERER
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted AR EE
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AR ENZIR) 12 1.68 2.62

PA AR & 2 T A 2 2K R B S B o — 6 53

B&

should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes. 8

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & & B #& ik R &

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets

Investment in life insurance contracts
Deposits

Current assets

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Amounts due from directors

Amount due from a related company

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of the

Company
Share capital
Capital reserve
Reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

* The amount is below HK$1,000.

BE

FRBEE
EREEE
EIETIRE B
ABRBAHIKE
iogn

RBEE

8 5 IR

BREE

HAb IR - Be RIER
b

FEWE E IR

FE& | — I BRES 2 BIRRIA

RelBREEHED

BERE

R
RATER ARG ES

LEN
P fE
G
RE AT

A

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompany notes.
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Note 2023 2022
st 20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

14 6,482 7,100
15 5,484 10,546
16 773 534
20 5,901 3,460
18 - 1,013
18,640 22,653

18 43,199 14,493
19 161,569 73,758
18 12,620 3,651
26 759 =
26 11,627 12,018
21 8,650 70,880
238,424 174,800

257,064 197,453

22 —_* =
22 1,700 1,700

(437) 877)

134,970 129,765

136,233 130,588

y S RIEA1,00057T ©

DA _E 5 & B 795 R 0 2 R B2 i B o — 4 B

B



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & & B &k R &

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables
Amounts due to directors
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

8

FRBAR

HERRE

RBRE

B RNFTBRENRES
FEAHE A R HoAd R 5 500
FENEFFIA

BHEE

RITHER

BIHFr SR A E

BEAHE
k8 ERE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 218 were

approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2024 and were

signed on its behalf.

Chan Kam Kei
REE
DIRECTOR
BE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompany notes.

Note
BfaE

18

23
23
26
19
15
24

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
110 4,192
83,624 27,280
17,516 7,891
- 5,991

3,196 2,200
2,896 4,352
9,886 10,638
3,603 4,321
120,721 62,673
120,831 66,865
257,064 197,453

F1283BEF2I8BE 2 HRAPBHRERER
2024F3H2THEEESHEL A NIES
REREE -

Ak

B&

o

Chan Kam Kong
BREET
DIRECTOR
EF

AR B TSRO 2R M8 S BB P Y 5 — 1 B
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &&= &%

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREE AL
Share Capital
capital reserve  Exchange  Retained
Note (Note22)  (Note 22) reserve earnings Total
Rx  RAfE

it (Wi22)  (Wi22) EiRE  REER #it
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAL TAL TAL

Balance at 1 January 2022 20221 R1ARES - 1,700 (2,359) 98,500 97,841
Profit for the year FREF - - = 39,265 39,265
Other comprehensive income for the year  FRE (2 EREE S = 1,482 = 1,482
Total comprehensive income for the year  FRZENZEE - - 1,482 39,265 40,747
Dividend e 13 - - - 8000  (8000)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R2022F12 731 B & &R = 1,700 877) 129,765 130,588
Balance at 1 January 2023 1202351 BB R - 1,700 877) 129,765 130,588
Profit for the year ERET - - - 25,205 25,205
Other comprehensive income for the year  ERE (2 ERE = = 440 = 440
Total comprehensive income for the year  FRZ2ENZEE - - 440 25,205 25,645
Dividend e 13 1 . - o000 (20,000)
Issuance of share of the Company * BARRERA - - - - =
Balance at 31 December 2023 R2023F12 731 B & & = 1,700 (437) 134,970 136,233
*  The amount is below HK$1,000. * EFEMM,00087T e

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be VA 4R & 4 2 8 B 3% I ER BB BT BT 5 — BB

g ,

read in conjunction with the accompany notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZREHREHRER

Cash flows from operating activities E& EEBFFERESRE

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations
Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Addition of investments in insurance
contracts

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Advance to a related company

Finance income received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayments of bank borrowings

Dividend paid

Payment for principal and interest
of lease liabilities

Payments of listing expenses

Finance cost paid

Repayment to directors

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Exchange difference on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end

of the year

e (PR PSR E

ENFEH

ReEE (PR iSRS
ks

REEFBDMERERE

BEYE  BELERE

BRI A HIRE
HEYE - BB k&
1S 500R

[ — ] B A B 2R K
2B A

REARSFIARSER

BMEFHRERESRE
RITERTISHIA

BIRIRITHER
2R

XNBEEREARE RS

S EmRX
RENEURIDN
MEFER

MEREATAE R

RERBASEEBYRD)
b IlINE R ]
REVNRE MRS FEY

RelkBeSEYELEZR

RERNBRERREEEY

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompany notes.

Note
BfaE

25(a)

14

20

25(b)

25(c)
25(c)

25(c)

25(c)

21

=
=N

ANEFERE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
(13,570) 82,249
(9,400) (3,242)
(22,970) 79,007
(1,424) (318)
(2,846) =
- 23
(89) (6,327)
181 73
(4,178) (6,549)
4,003 15,511
(2,571) (11,760)
(20,000) (8,000)
(4,483) (2,928)
(3,383) =
(446) (316)
(5,991) (7,921)
(32,871) (15,414)
(60,019) 57,044
68,696 11,729
27 (77)
8,650 68,696

8 2R FE B2 B Y P R — B 5O
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

1 General information, reorganisation and basis of
presentation

11

General information

WK Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28 June 2023
as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Suite
102, Cannon Place, P.O. Box 712, North Sound Rd.,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9006, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are engaged in the provision of structural
steelwork in Hong Kong (the “Listing Business”). The
ultimate holding company of the Company is WK
(BVI) Limited (“WK (BVI)”), a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). The
ultimate controlling shareholders of the Group are Mr.
Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Mr. Chan Wing
Hong, Ms. Choi Chick Cheong and Ms. Chan Suk Man
(together the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board (the “Main Board”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on 8 March 2024.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$’000"), unless
otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

1 General information, reorganisation and basis of 1. —RER BEEARSIEEGE)
presentation (continued)

1.2 Reorganisation 12 BE#H

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the RN BRI GRS Je T 3Rt
completion of the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) Bl ([EM]) A - £
as described below, the Listing Business was carried EBRKETBEBEIRSR
out by Wing Kei Structural Metalworks Company RABI(DKEEE]D - —HER
Limited (“Wing Kei Hong Kong”), a limited liability BAERIHNBER AT RERZ=K
company established in Hong Kong, and Dongguan EeBBABERR AR (XK
Yongji Metal Component Manufacturing Co., Ltd* ERZE]) r —BRPEARHK
(“Wing Kei Dongguan”), a limited liability company MBERZHER A (G &
established in the People’s Republic of China BEEDHAR - ZZEMAA
(collectively known as the “Operating Entities”). KERZH 2 EHRERKEE
Immediately before the Reorganisation, the entire equity BEERTEREA - KEFEMR
interest of Wing Kei Dongguan was directly wholly- PR RBEA 100% ©

owned by Wing Kei Hong Kong. Wing Kei Hong Kong
was held as to 100% by the Controlling Shareholders.

In preparation for the initial public offering and listing SREBHEARRBRMNDNERER
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board (the AAZERLEM( LW - &
“Listing”), the Group underwent the Reorganisation to SEETTEA  EEART]
incorporate the Company as the holding company of M R AEEREET A
the companies now comprising the Group to conduct AMERDRAETEME
the Listing Business. The Reorganisation involved the 15 o BEMSRIA TR -

following steps:

Note: The English names of the bodies/entities which are marked with “*” Mt - AT SRIZE RS EREEXEEAT
are translated, or transliterated from their Chinese names and are for NATBRB R EE - EHEER -

identification purposes only.
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General information, reorganisation and basis of
presentation (continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continueq)

Incorporation of the ultimate holding company in
the BVI

On 26 June 2023, WK (BVI) was incorporated
in the BVI with limited liability. As at the date of
incorporation, WK (BVI) was authorised to issue a
maximum of 50,000 shares of a single class with
a par value of United States dollar (‘US$”) 1 each.

On the date of its incorporation, WK (BVI) allotted
and issued 30 shares, 30 shares, 15 shares, 15
shares and 10 shares with a par value of US$1
each as fully paid to Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan
Kam Kong, Mr. Chan Wing Hong, Ms. Choi Chick
Cheong and Ms. Chan Suk Man, respectively,
representing 30%, 30%, 15%, 15% and 10% of
the issued share capital of WK (BVI).

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

1 General information, reorganisation and basis of
presentation (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

@

3

Incorporation of the Company

On 28 June 2023, the Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability. As at the
date of incorporation, the authorised share capital
of the Company was Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$”)
380,000 divided into 38,000,000 ordinary shares
with a par value of HK$0.01 each.

On the date of its incorporation, the Company
allotted and issued one share at par and
credited as fully paid to an independent nominee
subscriber, which was then transferred to WK
(BVI) pursuant to an instrument of transfer.
Upon completion of such transfer, the Company
became directly wholly-owned by WK (BVI).

Incorporation of an offshore subsidiary in the BVI

On 4 July 2023, WK Development Group
Limited (“WK Development”) was incorporated
in the BVI with limited liability as an intermediate
holding company of the Group. As at the date of
incorporation, WK Development was authorised
to issue a maximum of 50,000 shares of a single
class with a par value of US$1 each. On the
date of incorporation, 100 ordinary shares of WK
Development were allotted and issued to the
Company. Upon completion of such allotment
and issue, WK Development become directly
wholly-owned by the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

1 General information, reorganisation and basis of
presentation (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continueq)

4

Acquisition of equity interests of Wing Kei
Hong Kong from its then shareholders by WK
Development

On 21 July 2023, the Company and WK
Development entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the Controlling Shareholders,
pursuant to which WK Development acquired
510,000 ordinary shares, 510,000 ordinary
shares, 255,000 ordinary shares, 255,000
ordinary shares and 170,000 ordinary shares in
Wing Kei Hong Kong from Mr. Chan Kam Kei,
Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Mr. Chan Wing Hong, Ms.
Choi Chick Cheong and Ms. Chan Suk Man,
respectively, representing 30%, 30%, 15%, 15%
and 10% of the issued share capital of Wing Kei
Hong Kong, respectively. Subsequently, WK
Development allotted and issued 100 shares of
US$1 each as fully paid to the Company at the
direction of Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam
Kong, Mr. Chan Wing Hong, Ms. Choi Chick
Cheong and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Upon completion of the above transactions, Wing Kei

Hong Kong and Wing Kei Dongguan became wholly-

owned subsidiaries of WK Development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

1 General information, reorganisation and basis of

presentation (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

Upon completion of the Reorganisation and as at the
date of this report, the Company had direct or indirect

interests in the following subsidiaries:

Name of
subsidiaries

WEATER

Direct interests
ERER
WK Development

WK Development

Indirect interests
2 4
Wing Kei Hong Kong

Wing Kei Dongguan

Wing Kei Management

Company Limited

(Wing Kei Management’)

Wing Kei Management Limited
([Wing Kei Management)

Place and date of

incorporation Kind of legal entity

AMRIAERAS  AEEREM

The BV, 4 July 2023 Limited liability
Company

AERAES BRAT

0357 R4

Hong Kong, 28 July 1999 Limited liability

Company
Bk BRAT
199947 A 288
The People’s Republic  Limited liability
of China (‘PRC’), Company
6 July 2015
REARLNE BRAF
([RE) -
015%57H6H
Hong Kong, Limited liabilty
28 March 2023 Company
Bk BRAF
003F3A28A

Principal activities
and place of operations

TERBRERNE

Investment holding,
the B

RERk
LRRIES

Supply and installation
of structural stegl
works, Hong Kong
HERTREER
5 B

Supply and fabrication
of structural steel works,
the PRC
HEBIRMER

Bt

Provision of
administrative services
for Group, Hong Kong
BREER{IIH
T &%

1. —RER - EARZIEEGE

12 FHEG@E)

REXRBHEMRANBEEH - AR
BIRATH B A RHA Bk EE

E\

S

Attributable
Issued and fully equity interest of
paid up share the Group as at
capital/paid 31 December
up capital 2022 and 2023
R2022ER 20235
BEGIE 12831 B4%R
BA/BREA EitikE
USS200/ 100%
US$200 (31 December
2022:N/A)
0%/ 00T 100%
02F12A318:
TEm)
HK$1,700,000/ 100%
HK$1,700,000
1,700,000 A7,/ 100%
1,700,000 A7
US§1,200,000/ 100%
US§1,200,000
1,200000 %7,/ 100%
1,200,000 70
HK$10,000/ 100%
HK$10,000 (31 December
2022: N/A)
10,000 71,/ 100%
10,000 37 (022F12A31H:
)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

1 General information, reorganisation and basis of
presentation (Continued)

1.2

1.3

Reorganisation (Continued)

Notes:

() No audited statutory financial statements have been
prepared for these subsidiaries as they were either
newly incorporated or there are no statutory audit
requirements under the applicable law in the place of
incorporation of the entities.

(b)  Statutory financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 was audited by Global Vision CPA
Limited.

(c) Statutory financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 was audited by Wuyige Certified Public
Accountants (LLP) Guangdong Branch.

Basis of presentation

Immediately prior to and after the Reorganisation,
the Listing Business were mainly conducted through
the Operating Entities, and ultimately controlled
by the Controlling Shareholders. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Operating Entities were transferred
to and held indirectly by the Company. As the
Company had not been involved in any other business
prior to the Reorganisation and do not meet the
definition of a business, the Reorganisation is merely
a recapitalisation of the Listing Business with no
change in business substance, management of such
business and the ultimate controlling shareholders of
the Operating Entities remain the same. Accordingly,
the Group resulting from the Reorganisation is regarded
as a continuation of the Listing Business under the
Operating Entities, and these financial statements have
been prepared and presented as a continuation of the
consolidated financial statements of Wing Kei Hong
Kong and its subsidiaries, with the assets and liabilities
of the Group recognised and measured at the carrying
amounts of the Listing Business under the consolidated
financial statements of Wing Kei Hong Kong and its
subsidiaries for all years presented.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains/losses on transactions among group companies
are eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial information have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
the investments in life insurance contracts, which have been
measured at cash surrender value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial information in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
information are disclosed in Note 4.

The Group has applied the new and amended standards
effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2023.
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a
single transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform—

Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments to standards listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

AR

AEBEGEYBHRRERIEMEER
EAVBHRE LA ([FEMBHHRELE
A1) BB RAHED (£622F) B
BEKER - RAMBERIREE
ERAE R - EASRRAOERE
(RIZBR SRREEE) BRI

AN ABEM B RELENEE M
BEMESTEERE TR
it MEREEENERAEES
BEREBIEPITEEHE - HRERS
TR E HE SR R B - SRR M
AR BENAREEERNAE
1 RS FEAIEE -

AEE B EAMN2023F1 A1 AFHIAH
B IR EE S A T BT RRASIBET 2R o
BERAMEBRRNEEANETEES
BRHN T X - RS BHEAMN - 1tF
BREMEVNMEFEERER -

BERIPEAE BHEEIHE
FREEUBH

EEAMER (&

71A)

BREFERIES SFtfEtzES

UACCHEN)

EREHEAE12EE-QRHELHN

UACHEN) BENAEEARH
EIEIER A

ERGHERZ12BBRMBHRE X
5 (IBETA) b BN

BRI AR E i 1 HA ) R A

TRUBIAPE  ARBTISHE
AR RBELEATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

2 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2

2.1 Amendments to standards and interpretation that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group

The following amendments to standards and
interpretation that have been issued, but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January

RBEE (F

21 HMAREMERKREASERR
RAMKETTER R RE

AR EIETER R RED B - ER
2023%1 A1 B AR BEE M ARE
W BHRAEAEBRSEA :

2023 and have not been early adopted by the Group:

HK Int 5 (Revised) Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (HK Int 5 (Revised))
BAREESH ) B MKRER —BRAYEHE
REREEERCEHER 2R (BEREESR
CSEFD))

ERRBEL (RERD)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
BAESHERF IR UBTA) BELEAREIGERE

Amendments to HKAS 1
BAELETERE 15 (1BFTA)

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
MR EaIERB B E

Amendments to
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 7
BEANBEMEENETREE HERMRELEH
EEEIERE T (BRI A)

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
BANBMEERNE 165 (18 NERMERCHERRE
HEN,

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability
BEGETERIZE215 (IBFTAR) Bzt

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sales or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor
and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture

BANBMEENZ 10X REREEREBENRSEENARCEELESTE
B RHERFE285E (IBFTA)

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT
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1 January 2024

202441718

1 January 2024
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1 January 2024
20241 A18

1 January 2024

202491718

1 January 2024
20241 H18

1 January 2025
20251 A1H

To be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1

Amendments to standards and interpretation that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these amended standards and
interpretation. According to the preliminary assessment
made by the directors of the Company, no significant
impact on the financial performance and positions of
the Group is expected when they become effective.

3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial
structure and the current operations of the Group, no
hedging activity is undertaken by management.

IRBLEXE ()

21 HMAREMERKREAEERR
RANKEFTERI R RE(E

REBERAHEZFEETER R
BENTE - RIBEARBEEMIEN
PG - REEREAMASHA
SEN BB RER MR EKRE

@,

TREREE

31 REABRRERE

AEERA SESMEEZ IR
TRER - TISER (BEIME
Jﬂﬁ&fﬁimbg%”?ﬂ ) =i
ERRE X ErnghExREkE - K&
EOEBRAREENREIN
SRRSO AR XS
Imzﬁcpfﬁﬁﬁ$%lﬂﬁ%i€iﬁ
BT E -

ERETHERAEENTR
R\l o AR BT RE R
BRIREW T EM  BEEL
EAEITEMEIRED)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, investments in life insurance
contracts, trade receivables, amounts due
from directors, amount due from a related
company, deposits and other receivables
and contract assets included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

Management considers the Group has
limited credit risk with its banks which are
leading and reputable and their external
credit ratings are of investment grades.
Majority of bank balances and the key
management insurance contracts are
deposited with and insured by reputable
banks or financial institution. The Group
has not incurred significant loss from non-
performance by these parties in the past
and management does not expect so in the
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continueq)

@)

Credit risk (Continued)

()

Risk management (Continueq)

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. The procedures
focus on the evaluations on the customer’s
past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer, such as its financial position,
past experience and other factors, as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis with the result that the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group
is exposed to concentration of credit
risk on trade receivables and contract
assets from the Group’s five largest
customers amounting to approximately
HK$168,324,000 (2022: HK$69,423,000)
and accounted for approximately 82%
(2022: 74%) of the total gross trade
receivables and contract assets balances.
The major customers of the Group are
reputable organisations and with good
repayment history. Management considers
that the credit risk is limited in this regard.

The Group’s other financial assets at
amortised cost are considered to be low
risk. Management has closely monitored
the credit qualities and the collectability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets

The Group has six types of assets that are

subject to the expected credit loss model:

° trade receivables;

° contract assets;

° other receivables and deposits at
amortised cost;

° amounts due from directors;

° amount due from a related company;
and

° cash and cash equivalents.

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss
was immaterial as the relevant banks’
external credit ratings are of investment
grades.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach
prescribed by HKFRS 9 to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables and contract assets.

Management consider the nature of
business of its customers, the default
rates given by external researches over the
expected lives of the debtors, repayment
and default histories of different customers
or industries to assess the credit risk
characteristics and the likelihood of loss
allowance of its customers. The Group
uses probability of default (PD), exposure at
default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD)
to measure the credit risk and expected
credit loss rates for its customers.

The historical loss rates are also adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors
(i.,e. GDP and employment rate) affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

The credit period granted by the Group to
its customers mainly ranged from 30 to 60
days.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 cHREREEE
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 eREREZEGE)
(@  Credit risk (Continued) @ EEEEGE
(i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EEHEGE)
Trade receivables and contract assets EZEWNGERE
(Continued) HIEE (&)
Trade receivables at 31 December 2023 A2023F12831H
B S REWRIE
Average Gross carrying Impairment
loss rate amount loss allowance
Internal credit rating A= BT T Eia R IREAE RESERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
A3 to Aaa A3ZEAaa 0.015% 6,795 1)
B3 to Baat B3£Baat 0.141% 26,289 87)
C3to Caat C3%&Caal 2.083% 10,369 (216)
Default B4 100% 2,610 (2,610)
46,063 (2,864)
Trade receivables at 31 December 2022 2022512 A31 B E 5 BIKWRKIR
Average Gross carrying Impairment
loss rate amount  loss allowance
Internal credit rating R EHE EFFAL ) SE=ES BREBE REEERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FE&T
A3 to Aaa A3ZAaa 0.023% 4,346 (1)
B3 to Baat B3z Baal 0.383% 10,187 (39)
Default ey 100% 2,610 (2,610)
17,143 (2,650)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Contract assets at 31 December 2023

Average

loss rate

Internal credit rating R385 & P4 FHEBEE

A3 to Aaa A3ZEAaa 0.011%
B3 to Baat B3£Baat 1.341%
C3 to Caat C3%Caal 3.235%
Default EH 100%

Contract assets at 31 December 2022

Average
loss rate
Internal credit rating A EBEE LR T EE R

A3 to Aaa A3EAaa 0.112%
B3 to Baai B3%£Baatl 0.416%
C3 to Caatl C3£Caat 25.647%
Default EH 100%

CREREE(E
31 TREBRREZGE)
@ (=EERE)
(i) EEREGE)

BEZENFEBELRE
HIEE (&)

A2023F12H31H
BHEE

Gross carrying Impairment
amount loss allowance

SREAE  RUEEERE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
9,519 (1)
127,717 (1,713)
26,402 (854)
1,591 (1,591)
165,229 (4,159)

A20225F12H31H
BHEE

Gross carrying Impairment
amount  loss allowance

REARE  REBIREE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
4,483 )
66,885 (278)
3,595 (922)
1,591 (1,591)
76,554 (2,796)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continueq)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The loss allowance provision for trade
receivables and contract assets reconciles
to the opening loss allowance for that
provision as follows:

As at 1 January 2022 20221 A1RH
Provision for impairment loss FEEBEE
As at 31 December 2022 2022612 A31H

Provision for impairment loss BEEERE
As at 31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

Apart from the above, the Group also assess
the reasonableness of the provision amount
by making reference to publicly available
credit information about its customers.

144 WK Group (Holdings) Limited o SLESEE (#24%) BRA &

EREREEE
31 MEBREEGE)
@ FEREREGE
(i) EHEHREGE)

EZENFBERE
HEE (&)

BHRWFARANEENEEERE
B2 B BB R BB EIRIA T

Trade Contract

receivables assets Total
EREK
AE BREE et

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TRET FRET

518 1,128 1,646
2,132 1,668 3,800
2,650 2,796 5,446

214 1,363 1,677
2,864 4,159 7,023

B biESN - REB LR ERFHA
SHEBEEFPHNEEEHT GRS

THEERRE -



3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Other receivables and deposits at amortised
cost

The credit qualities of other receivables
and deposits at amortised cost have
been assessed with reference to historical
information about the counterparties
default rates and financial position of
the counterparties. Management is of
the opinion that the credit risk of other
receivables and deposits at amortised
cost are low due to the sound collection
history of the receivables and deposits. The
impairment provision is determined based
on the 12-month expected credit loss which
is immaterial.

Amounts due from directors and a related
company

The directors consider the credit risk on
the amounts due from directors and related
company is low as no default payment
was noted. Management considers that its
credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition with reference to
the counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit loss which is
immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

©®)

Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group is subject to foreign exchange
rate risk arising from its PRC operation
which is denominated in a currency other
than its functional currency. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises
from bank borrowings issued at variable
rates, which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The interest rate profile of
bank borrowings are disclosed in Note 24.
The bank borrowings generate and incur
interest at the prevailing market interest
rates.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates
had been 50 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$5,000 lower/
higher (2022: HK$251,000 higher/lower)
respectively, mainly as a result of lower/
higher (2022: higher/lower) net interest
income on bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liquidiity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due, resulting
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets
and liabilities.

The Group employs projected cash flow
analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting
the amount of cash required and monitoring
the Group’s working capital to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements
could be met. In order to meet their liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders and drawdown available bank
facilities. Further, management performs monthly
review of receivables and payables ageing
analysis to ensure the Group is able to maintain
sufficient financial resources to meet its liquidity
requirements and to follow up on any overdue
palances.

The table below analyses the financial liabilities
of the Group into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period from the reporting
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interests
payments computed using contractual rates, or
if floating, based on the current rates at the year-
end date). Where the loan agreement contains
a repayable on demand clause which gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loan at
any time, the amounts repayable are classified in
the earliest time bracket in which the lender could
demand repayment.
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Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023
Trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables

Lease and interest payments
Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2022
Trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables
Amounts due to directors

Lease and interest payments
Bank borrowings

Financial risk management (Continued)

A2023%F 127318

B 5 A HE R EMR

FERTE A KR H A FE T 3R
H

MERFEMR

RITIER

2022512 A31RH

B 5 08 RIERR

FEst B R R E MR
H

e ES IR

HERFIENAR

RITIER
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) mEBEEEEE

On demand From
or less 1 year Over
than 1 year to 2 years 2 years Total
DPRIE 1226  Hi2F st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEx TER TEx TEx
83,624 - - 83,624
7,958 - - 7,958
2,953 111 - 3,064
9,886 - - 9,886
104,421 111 - 104,532
On demand
orless From 1 year Over
than 1 year to 2 years 2 years Total
REXY
kS 1225 B2 st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$O000  HK$000
THET FET FET FET
27,280 - - 27,280
4,421 - - 4,421
5,991 - - 5,991
4,586 3,850 419 8,855
10,638 - - 10,638
52,916 3,850 419 57,185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Financial risk management (Continueq) 3 SERAKREEE
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 SREBRAZEGEE)
(©)  Liquidity risk (Continued) © wEETEREE)
The table below summarises the maturity analysis TERBABRBEERBZEFR
of bank borrowings of the Group based on Fr &l /9 78 7€ 51 &8 ;A AR
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan SEBITERNIEE S
agreements without considering the repayment (W ETREEKREE
on demand clause. The amounts include interest TR - ZESBRERE
payments computed using contractual rates. RAEAMNEFENF BN
Koo
From From
Lessthan 1yearto 2yearto Over
iyear 2years Syears 5years Total
PME 1E2F 2E5F HEB5HF st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THr FEx FTEx TErD  TEx
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 3,852 1,787 4,943 392 10,974
As at 31 December 2022 7202212 4310 4,987 1,475 4,240 1,083 11,735
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EAXERERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group mainly uses equity to finance its operations.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt or repay
borrowings when cash is received from non-trade
receivables. Also, the Group continues to monitor
and maintain the sufficiency of banking facilities for its
operations.

AEEEREARNARE
RAEEERENFHELE - N
RBCRIEH O HR L R EME D
ERERAN  XHEFE(ENE
R - e D EARBA o
AEET2EREaRHEEE
REES - BBEBHABEN
RiE > AREATESABIKM
TRROBESER - MRRE
BER  BOFBROHIHEER
ELRDEBHRNEIFE 5 E
WOk IR W B R & B (EE B AR -
o AEESBREERLE
FEZEMBNRITERENT
RIE e
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continueq)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings, amounts
due to directors and lease liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The gearing ratio were as follows:

Bank borrowings RITIER
Lease liabilities HEaE
Amounts due to directors JEEEFIA

Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : 384 NIREZEY

Net debt/(cash) &%,/ B FEE
Total capital B4R

Gearing ratio BEEBELE

* The gearing ratio is N/A because the Group was in a net

cash position.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT
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HEREMAF - AEH
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o R RIBERSFER AR
REFAE - BHFERER
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BERNBRIRG A MBEMRR KT
R [HERR FTE

BEBBLENT

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
9,886 10,638
3,006 8,544
- 5,991
(8,650) (70,880)
4,242 (45,707)
136,233 130,588
0.03 N/A*
TEA

* BEABHKETEA  AX
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The different levels of financial instruments carried at fair
value are defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The carrying value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities are reasonable approximation to their fair
values due to the relatively short-term nature of these
financial instruments.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from directors, amount due
from a related company and cash and cash equivalents,
and financial liabilities, including trade and retention
payables, other payables, amounts due to directors,
bank borrowings and lease liabilities, approximate their
fair values.

3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
It has also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

The following table presents the recognised financial

3

TREREE(E

34 HHeMEENETRAR

EAREEE R A GIE R HH
TRMNAEHECERESE - I
ERBFRARGEIRARE
REENRGEAER  2RE
ERBERN BRI WEK
BMBHRRBELFE - A%
BRI A BERENR
B BEETERTDARE
HAEESRE - DI ERK L
B -

TREJEEEFENCHERS

instruments that are offset. BTH-
Net amounts
Amounts presented
set off in the in the
consolidated consolidated
statement statement
Gross of financial of financial
amounts position position
SEMBRR AREMBER
FHIKEHN RERBED
HERE HEEE B EE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET TERT
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H
Financial assets SREE
Other receivables, deposits HAENGUE - Ze RIER
and prepayments R 9,115 (6,690) 2,405
Financial liabilities EREE
Trade and retention payables BORNFERENRES 90,314 (6,690) 83,624
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%F12A31H
Financial assets SREE
Other receivables, deposits HbEWEUE - e REN
and prepayments U 6,874 (3,943) 2,931
Financial liabilities *RAR
Trade and retention payables B IENFTERENRES 31,223 (3,943) 27,280

Note: As at 31 December 2023, other receivables from
subcontractors which represents labour costs of site
workers directly settled by the Group, are offset against
trade and retention payables to the same subcontractor
pursuant to the arrangements with the subcontractors,
as well as industry practice (2022: same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@)  Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue according to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of
performance obligation of the individual contract of
structural steelwork. The progress is determined by
the aggregated cost for the individual performance
obligation incurred at the end of the reporting
period compared with the estimated budgeted cost.
Management’s estimation of the cost incurred to
date and the budgeted cost is primarily based on
construction contract budget and actual cost report
prepared by internal quantity surveyors, where
applicable. Corresponding revenue from contract
work is also estimated by management based on
the progress. Because of the nature of the activities
undertaken in the construction contracts, the date at
which the contract activity is entered into and the date
when the activity is completed usually fall into different
accounting periods. The Group regularly reviews and
revises the estimation of contract cost in the budget
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses.
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it o

(@) R

ARER BR IR 5T 2 2% K 8 51 8 45
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MR Y - ARAEERERE
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AEBABERARZLLHE
E o BEEEHESEELKAN
RBERANMGEFEREREA
BT RB SRR EAEES LD
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miEH - ERETRERHE
A T2 MR MR R 1 L 1A T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(@

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Significant judgement is required in estimating the
progress of performance and total contract costs which
may have an impact on percentage of completion of
the construction contracts and the contract revenue
and profit to be recognised in an accounting period. In
addition, actual outcome in terms of total revenue or
costs may be higher or lower than estimation at the end
of the reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in future years as an adjustment
to the amounts recorded to date.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to
determine whether trade receivables and contract
assets are impaired. Significant judgement is exercised
on the assessment of the risk of default and expected
credit losses from each customer. In making the
judgement, management considers a wide range
of factors such as results of follow-up procedures,
customer payment trends including subsequent
payments, customers’ financial positions and expected
future change of credit risks, including consideration of
factors such as general economy measure, changes in
macro-economic indicators, etc. Details of assumptions
and inputs used are discussed in Note 3.1 (a)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Revenue and segment information

The executive directors are identified as the chief operating

decision makers (“CODM”) of the Group who review the

Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance

and allocate resources.

The Group’s revenue is derived from provision of structural

steelwork in Hong Kong and accordingly, there is only one

single operating segment for the Group under HKFRS 8.

(@

Revenue

Structural steelwork S 451 T12

All of the Group’s revenue is recognised over time
during the year.

Revenue from major customers
Revenue individually generated from the following

customers contributed more than 10% of the total
revenue of the Group:

Customer 1 EF1
Customer 2 ®F2
Customer 3 ®P3
Customer 4 B4

*

Represent less than 10% of revenue for the relevant
year.

All of the Group’s revenue is generated in Hong Kong.

W s K 2 BB &

HITESHRT/AEEEERRER
RE(TXBEREREE])  ABEEH
AREBABBREATHERKLDEE
R e

AEER SR EERBRHMARE
T2 At REFEWHRSER
F8It - AEEEA —EEBNEE

DEB

@ =

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
370,226 336,384

AR &= B PR W e BE P R HE R, -

b)) REXEFPHWE

RENTEFE A ERIUR 2515 4
EEBEWZF10% M £

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
113,294 214,167
76,487 N/A*
55,205 N/A*
42,857 N/A*

- IEHREFEERETE10% ©

AEBERMABWRSANEBE
/_:EO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 5 WE RS BER

(c) Segment assets and liabilities (c)

The Group monitors its total assets and liabilities
centrally in one single operating segment. The total
non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets amounted to HK$4,704,000
(2022: HK$6,666,000) were located in Hong Kong and
HK$7,262,000 (2022: HK$10,980,000) were located in
the PRC as at 31 December 2023

(d)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (d)

The following table shows the revenue recognised
during the year related to carried-forward contract
liabilities.

Revenue recognised that was included & AFHIE 4B BB
in the contract liability balance at the B ERUEE
beginning of the year
— Structural steelworks — 45 T2

DEEENAE

REERE—KEDHERE
R@EERABE - R2023F12
A318 » £% /44,704,000 7T
(20224 : 6,666,000/ 70) K9 AT
ERDEE (@RI AREL
FTSTEERIN AR ES -
il & %8 47,262,000/ 7T (2022
£ 1 10,980,000/8 7T) BY FF B JE
RBEE (SRIAKELERS
TEERRIN AR E o

SLAEH B ERER NS

TRINRRFEARGEESNE
ERER AU ES ©

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
2,200 2,641
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(€)

Unsatisfied long-term construction contracts

The following table shows unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from long-term construction
contracts.

Aggregate amount of the transaction ~ RFARDEERETT
price allocated to long-term REFRES LM
construction contracts that are R EREE

unsatisfied as at year ended

Management expects that the transaction prices
regarding the unsatisfied contracts at the end of year
will be recognised as revenue by referencing to the
schedule below:

Within 1 year 1R
RBIE1F

Over 1 year

Wi K% 2 EBEHL (7
(6 AREITREZESH

TRINTEHRESNMES

MARBITERHE -
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
550,500 253,464

BEEE REREBARETEN

Bl ¥

I

MR ZERGE2LEUTRHRRERR

2023 2022

20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT FHET
353,646 183,256
196,854 70,208
550,500 253,464
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

@)

Revenue from provision of structural steelwork

The Group recognises revenue upon the transfer
of control of promised goods or services to
customers, measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts for the construction service
rendered in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. The Group is acting as a principal rather
than as an agent given that the Group integrates
the materials, labor and equipment into the
deliverables promised to the customers.

Revenue is recognised over time as the
Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date. The Group has applied the
input method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time by reference to
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction
on a performance obligation (for example,
subcontracting fees and cost of materials) relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services. When the Group is not able to
reasonably measure its performance progress,
the Group recognises revenue only to the extent
of the recoverable amount of costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the
performance progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

()  Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)

@)

Revenue from provision of structural steelwork
(Continued)

Contracts

The Group derives revenue primarily from
provision of structural steelwork, including supply,
fabrication and installation of structural steel
for construction projects in Hong Kong under
contracts with customers, subject to modification
or variation orders.

Performance Obligations

A performance obligation is a contractual
promise to transfer a distinct good or service
to a customer and is the unit of account under
HKFRS 15. Contracts of the Group often require
significant services to integrate materials and
various activities (which are closely related and
inter-dependent) into a single deliverable and
are therefore generally accounted for as a single
performance obligation. Contract amendments or
variation orders, which are generally not distinct
from the existing contract, are typically accounted
for as a modification of the existing contract and
performance obligation.

Wik & o ERE R (E

Wk R B R (48

FE (7 5 42 18 T 72 A9 W 25
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)

@)

Revenue from provision of structural steelwork
(Continued)

Variable considerations

The nature of the Group’s contracts give rise
to certain of variable consideration, including
variation orders. The Group recognises amount
of variable consideration (for example, scope
changes, performance bonus or claims, if any),
which it will be entitled using the expected value
method, in the transaction price only to the extent
that is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Factors to be considered in determining whether
revenue associated with variable considerations
should be recognised include whether there is
evidence supporting the variable consideration to
be reasonable, objective and reliably estimated.

When there is change in circumstances, the
Group updates the estimated transaction price
(including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to better predict the circumstances present at the
end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

()  Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)

@)

Revenue from provision of structural steelwork
(Continued)

Transaction price

Transaction price should be adjusted whenever
the contract includes a significant financing
component. Amount retained by the customer in
a long-term arrangement, referred to as retention,
are usually intended to provide the customer with
a form of security that the Group will perform
as specified under the contract, rather than to
provide the customer with a significant financing
benefit.

The payment terms differ for different customers
due to the variety of projects. Most of the
payment is payable according to the stage of
construction with credit term of 30 to 60 days.
10% of the value of work done, subject to a cap
of 5% of the total contract sum, may be withheld
by the customers and recognised as retention
receivables, which would be paid after the
retention period expires. Retention receivables,
prior to expiration of defect liability period, are
classified as contract assets. The Group does
not intend to give financing to customers and the
Group makes efforts to collect the receivables
and timely monitor the credit risk. The contract
does not have a significant financing component
as the payments are in accordance with the
typical payment terms of the relevant industry,
which has a primary purpose other than financing.
The Group does not expect to have any other
significant contracts where the period between
the transfer of the promised goods or services
to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group
does not adjust transaction prices for the time
value of money.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 5

()  Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)

(@)  Revenue from provision of structural steelwork

(Continued)

Contract modifications

The Group accounts for a modification if the

customer to a contract approves a change in

the scope or price of a contract. A contract

modification is approved when the modification

creates or changes the enforceable rights and

obligations of the customer to the contract.

6 Other income and other (loss)/gain, net

Other income
Government grants (Note a)

Other (loss)/gain, net

Change in value of life insurance
contracts (Note 20)

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Other income and other (loss)/gain, net
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o

HAbW A
BUF# B (FifaEa)
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(FF3E20)

HEWE - BEREED
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HAb WA R E Al
(B51R) /W58
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B BE RS E
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2023 2022
20234 20224
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(79) 23

(484) 123

(303) 2,734




6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Other income and other (loss)/gain, net (Continuead) 6

Note:

(@) The amount in 2022 mainly represented wage subsidies
granted under the Employment Support Scheme of the Anti-
Epidemic Fund. Subsidies were offered to employers who had
employed regular employees and paid MPF for them. Wage
subsidies were granted to the Group to pay wages and MPF
of regular employees from May 2022 to July 2022.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached

conditions.

Expenses by nature

Cost of materials

Subcontracting fees

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration) (Note 8)

Auditor’s remuneration-audit services

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 14)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15)

Expense relating to short-term
leases (Note 15)

Transportation expenses

Consultancy fees

Testing expenses

Machinery service expenses

Legal and professional fees

Other expenses

Total cost of services and administrative

expenses

MR
HBEEA
RERFHAX (PEES
<) (MizE8)
HE NS — TR RS
mE - R RRETE
(FFE14)
EREEENE (Hizx15)
HEHAEAEN
FS (FiisE15)
BEEY
EAM &
AR
e AR 7S B
FRRBEER
HAbhAsZ

ARAE AR A B AT IR S 4R AR

Hitpg A% E At (B518) W2 F 5
(&

Mo

2022FMEREIERBEMIRNRES
R ER BN T ERR - BRA—RIE
BUREXaESMmETERMAMA -
202245 A 2202257 A #IE - A& H
BRIBMBASN—REETERRE

K

BE A A TR MR E 1 B S AT MR K A R [
TFAFA SRR - RAFHB R E R
EER -

op

BEMEE 5B
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
138,779 73,708
104,032 105,302
40,743 45,800
1,000 98
1,849 2,050
3,956 3,338
486 955
5,608 12,037
501 1,510
3,607 3,175
9,177 28,411
749 357
7,769 11,782
318,256 288,523
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

8 Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ 8 EERIBX(BEEEMS)
remuneration)

2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TEBRIEA 37,941 43,163
Pension costs — defined contribution plan 3B S A — R EH G2 1,476 1,280
Other welfare and allowances H b taFl) N2 Bk 1,326 1,357
40,743 45,800
Representing: 5
Cost of services RRFES KA 29,407 35,021
Administrative expenses TR 11,336 10,779
40,743 45,800
There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the Group to REE2023F12A31H IFEE - &
reduce its contributions during the year ended 31 December EEWESAD R R AT E 4
20283 (2022: same). There was no balance available as at 31 (20224 : #8[E) ° K2023F 128
December 2023 to reduce future contributions (2022: same). 318 - WA AR AT AR SR R

(20224 : }ERA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

9 Benefits and interests of directors

(@)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director paid/payable for
each of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022

are set out below:

Name of directors

g3t

For the year ended
31 December 2023

Executive director

Mr. Chan Kam Kei

Mr. Chan Kam Kong

Ms. Chan Suk Man

Non-executive director
Mr. Chan Wing Hong
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

Total

HZ2023512831R
L5E

HEes

REEns

BETRE

RAELL

#uiEs

RAERE
REERT

a5t

9 EEREANKFMZ

@ EE=Me
H E2023%F 2022F 12 A31H
tFESFERM EBRHSES
EEHINT -
Employer's
Contribution
toa
Allowance  Retirement
Discretionary  and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries honuses in kind scheme Total
BRR EXBI
ik #¢ Bigtd ENFE  RRGELR gt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Thn Tin TiEr TEr ThEn TR
- 1,443 202 - 18 1,683
430 2,759 424 - 18 3,631
- 1,235 190 - 18 1,443
1,043 - 210 - - 1,263
480 - 120 - - 600
1,953 5437 1,166 - 54 8,610
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Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Name of directors

g4

For the year ended
31 December 2022

Executive director

Mr. Chan Kam Kei

Mr. Chan Kam Kong

Ms. Chan Suk Man

Non-executive director
Mr. Chan Wing Hong
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

Total

BZ2020F12331A
LEE

#rEez

REERE

R&TrE

FRERT

FUES
BRERt

it

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o GLE£E (358%) BRA T

Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

9 EBEMNRANEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

@ EEMe@

Employer's

Contribution to

Alowance  aRetrement

Discretionary ~ and benefits beneft
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme Total

B R EXEIE
He ) B B BAREME &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tin Thr Thr Thr i
- 1,332 383 - 18 1,683
452 2,546 637 - 18 3,653
- 1,140 285 - 18 1,443
1,004 - 210 - - 1,264
480 - 120 - - 600
1,986 5018 1,585 - 54 8,643
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remunerations shown above represent
remunerations received from the Operating Entities
by these directors in their capacity as employees
to Operating Entities and no directors waived any
emoluments during each of the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to the directors as
compensation for the early termination of the
appointment during the year (2022: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of the
directors for making available the services of them as
a director of the Company or Operating Entities during
the year (2022: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors.

Other than those disclosed in Note 26, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of any directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with any directors during the year
(2022: same).

9

EEEARFE(E

(@)

E=Me @

FHEZEESUEER
KEBBREREFNHBELEER
WEKFBH - B E2023F &
202212 A31BILEERF -
WRBBEREE S -

S EBERAER

RER - BERES S AET0
REEARERIEZTNHEE
(20224 : #[R) °

MIRHEBERBAFE =M
HHRAE

REAR - BEOESEHNATE
EXMEMFIR  SREUR
AR ZERESTNEMNIE
HARES (20224 : #EA) °

BRENES  HERESTY
RZENEEEECERR
@ AZER EEREEAM
R52ER

BRPE26PTIBEH SN - MF
N BMEAINES BB H
EEEPEE R EELARE
CERREHBAZER £
ERREMRZ S (2022%F : 1
) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in Note 26, no significant
transactions, arrangements or contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or
Operating Entities were a party and in which the
directors of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2022: same).

Five highest paid individuals

For each of the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, the 5 individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group include 4 directors,
whose emoluments were reflected in Note 9(a). The
emoluments paid to the remaining 1 individual are as
follows:

Salaries, wages and bonuses

Pension costs-defined BRIRE KA —
contribution plan FEMFKETE

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

H4  TERIEA

9

EEEARFEE

)

EENRS  RFEREHTH
EARES

BREE26FTIBEE SN + ARQR]
Dy T VTN
SEEKEBRARAESER
HbeEEMEEAER
i B 6 R 3 A A ) B R D 2R
FBENEARS « RHHEL
(20224 : #8[A) -

hasEEHMAL

H E£2023%F 2022F 12 A31H
FEFEEF  AEERAEES
FIMATBE4BES  BEZ
B R e - 5 F ok
T—BAATHBESEIINT -

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

775 834

18 =

793 834




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

9 Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

)

Five highest paid individuals (Continueq)

The emoluments of above individuals are within the
following band:

& E

Emolument band
Within HK$1,000,000

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to
any of the five highest paid individuals during the year
(2022: same).

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Ho Wa, Mr. Yu Chun Kit and Mr. Liu Chi
Kwun Albert were appointed as the Company’s
independent non-executive directors on 5 February
2024. During the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, the independent non-executive directors were
not yet appointed and did not receive any directors’
remuneration in the capacity of independent non-
executive directors.

{£721,000,0007% 7T

9

EEEARFE(E
H DBRESFMALGE)

EA TR S TIE R A T &
:

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
20234 20224F
1 1

RER BEATANRERES
HERA TN RIEEA
A0S 55 B A 5% Bh of B Bk A 18
(20224 : 48[ °

BUIFATES

BRESLLE  REGHIERE
BB AEER2024F 250 &
ZERARBZBIUIERITE
£ o REE20234F }20224F12
AB1AIEFE  BUIEWNITE
BEHAEZ TR EAB I
HITEENEHERERARNES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

10 Finance costs, net

Finance income: p A NE
— Interest income from bank deposits ~ — $R1TTEFRFIBUA
— Unwinding of discount impact — FRBRANIR L&
Finance costs: BRSO

— Interest expense on bank borrowings
—Interest expense on lease liabilities

(Note 15) (FFzE15)
Finance costs, net B TR AN R BR
11 Income tax expense
Current income tax BEAFT1S AL

Deferred income tax (Note 16) BIEFTSHL (F1EE16)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Company and
WK Development are not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Wing Kei Hong Kong and Wing Kei Management are subject
to Hong Kong profits tax. Hong Kong profits tax is calculated
at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
during the year, except for one entity of the Group that is
qualified under the two-tiered profits tax rate regime, under
which the first HK$2.0 million of its assessable profits are
taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5% (2022: same).

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

— IRITRERAOM BRI
—HERENHEMX

10 BIERARER

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THET
181 73
26 22
207 95
(446) (316)
(216) (118)
(662) (434)
(455) (339)

11 i8R

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
8,688 7,946
(240) (755)
8,448 7,191

BEASHEREBRELZHSHAIR
AR R R MWK Developmentth
ARRENRERABEXRSHMET
RIFT1SEL -

XEFE K Wing Kei Management’&
BMBEBFNEH - RER - BEF
BB IR R EFE16.5%
(2022%F : 16.5%) 518 « HAREE—
MEBFEFET MRS - BRI EE
R REF N E2.05 B8 7TiR8.25%:t
B MR T ERBEFAIE16.5%5T
H (20224 : #8[]) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Income tax expense (Continued) 11

Provision for Mainland China corporate income tax is
calculated at the statutory rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the
assessable income of Wing Kei Dongguan during the year.

MR PTIS R AT &

HERARESER, LR
A2 AR REE

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable to profits in the respective

countries/places of business ZBiE
Tax effects of: AN BB BT E
Income not subject to tax BERBIURA

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose T AIFIFE 7%

Earnings per share 12
(@) Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
same).

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
weighted average number of ordinary shares used for
the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share has
been retrospectively adjusted for the effect of the issue
of shares in connection with the capitalisation issue of
1,499,999,999 shares which took place on 8 March
2024 (Note 30).

FrEHmx (&)

RER - PEAMERAEHERZ

KEREE E’J%‘%@aﬂ&)\iu&mfﬁ+
25% (20224 : 25%) 518

2023 2022
20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT T

33,653 46,456

8,359 7,358
(28) (430)

117 263

8,448 7,191

BRER
FREEARZF

(@)

BRERBRDIRAAGTHES
ARG FI B AE 220234
12A31H IEFEEEITLREAR
INHEF I EETE (20224F : 48
@) o

HZE2023F ;2022912 A31
HIEFE R ESRELRR
FIFT A B I @ A% hnaE F 39 & -
B H2024F3 A8 HETE AL
BE1TIMEE1T1,499,999,9990% I
MEFEE  ERBWAE (M
30) °

Annual Report 2023 ¢ —Z = =FF3f

171



172

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

12 Earnings per share (Continued)

(@) Basic earnings per share (Continued)

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company (HK$’000)
Weighted average number

(&)

of ordinary shares in issue ('000) (F)

12

AREHER NEE LT

BERITE BB

Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) & AXEARZEF (CAELET)

(b)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share presented is the same as the
basic earnings per share as there were no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December
2023 (2022: same).

13 Dividend

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and prior to the
Reorganisation, dividends of HK$20,000,000 were declared
and settled by a subsidiary of the Company to its then
shareholders (2022: HK$8,000,000).

In January 2024, the Company declared an interim dividend
of approximately HK$26,586,000 (representing approximately
HK$26,586,000 per ordinary Share), of which approximately
HK$10,000,000 was settled by cash before the Listing
and approximately HK$16,586,000 was offset against the
aggregate amounts due from the directors and the related
company.

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

13

BRER (&

(@) BRELXRFNGE)

2023 2022
20234 20224
25,205 39,265

1,500,000 1,500,000
1.68 2.62

b) ERESEN

230 ERE SR EGR
ERZFAER - TIAR2023F
12A3 1B EmE BITELEE
L3A% (20224 : FHR]) ©

’RE

RELZE2023F12A31B LFERE
HAT - ARE—HNB AR REER
PR = R K 45 1+ % £.20,000,00058 7T
(20224F : 8,000,000/87T) °

M2024F1H » ARAIEE RS H
% 8 4926,586,000/8 7T (Bl &A% &
A% 4926,586,000/8 7T) * HB 4
10,000,000/ 7L E R _ETH AT AR & 45
&} #916,586,00078 7T BIIHK 4 FE Uk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

14 Property, plant and equipment 14 Y% BMERRZRE
Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
and Leasehold and office Motor
equipment  improvements equipment vehicles Total
B BERE
BERRE  AENERS RBAERE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL THEL FHx TAL
Year ended 31 December EZ2022512A31H

2022 LEE
Opening net book amount AR E 5,372 865 151 2,908 9,296
Additions for the year FRRE 57 229 32 - 318
Depreciation charge FERZ (317)

(Note 7) (799) (482) (74) (695) (2,050)
Currency tranglation ERhE (404) (43) ®) (14) (464)
Closing net book amount 4 REEEH(E 4,206 569 106 2,199 7,100
At 31 December 2022 20224 12A31R
Cost AR 7,965 2,897 763 7,135 18,760
Accumulated depreciation  ZHTE (3,739) (2,328) 657) (4,936) (11,660)
Net book amount FHFE 4,226 569 106 2,199 7,100
Year ended 31 December #Z2023%12831H

2023 LEE
Opening net book amount ~ FHEREFE 4,226 569 106 2,199 7,100
Additions for the year ENRE 13 1,061 64 286 1424
Depreciation charge FERx (7)

(Note 7) 672) (447) (60) (670) (1,849)
Disposal & = = = (79) (79)
Currency tranglation ERhE (108) )] - - (114)
Closing net book amount 4 REEEH(E 3,462 1,174 10 1,736 6,482
At 31 December 2023 742023F12H31H
Cost A 7,775 3,897 817 6,480 18,969
Accumulated depreciation 25t & (4313 (2723 (707) (4,744) (12,487)
Net book amount REFE 3,462 1,174 10 1,736 6,482
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14

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost include expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs net of their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 31to 10 years

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of lease term or 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 4-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each year.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

15 Leases

This note provides information for leases where the Group is
a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leased premises HEWE
Leasehold land HELTH
Motor vehicle E
Lease liabilities HESE
Current portion BNERER 5>
Non-current portion JERNHAEE

There were no additions to the right-of-use assets
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$9,637,000).

15

HE

Rt B R AR BE RABE AR

EHER -

i) REEMBNRAKRERNETE

REMBARRKRINRAT ERE

HEMSE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
4,551 9,515
242 258
691 773
5,484 10,546
2,896 4,352
110 4,192
3,006 8,544

HZE2023F12A31HILFE @ #iE
FREEERE (20224 : 9,637,000

BIT) °

Annual Report 2023 ¢ —Z = =FF3f

175



176

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

15 Leases (Continued) 15 #HEE
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (i) REFEEZEW RH B
comprehensive income
2023 2022
2023F 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets as  {FREEEITE Jict AT
included in: FIE
— Cost of services — ARTE R AN 3,757 3,166
— Administrative expenses —1THAX 199 172
3,956 3,338
Interest expenses on lease liabilites ~ FAE & EF| B
(Note 10) CGEA) 216 118
Expenses relating to short-term leases E245 HATH E A RIRIFI 52
(included in cost of services) (Note 7)  GGFABRIEA ) (Fit317) 486 955
The interest rate of each lease contract is fixed at EHEAANAERREAHBEE

its contract date, and the interest rates of the lease
liabilities ranged from 2.88% to 4.2% per annum as at

31 December 2022 and 2023.

The total cash outflows for leases including payments
of short-term leases, lease liabilities and payments
of interest expenses on leases for the year ended 31
December 2023 were approximately HK$4,969,000

(2022: HK$3,883,000).

4.2% °

BT °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

15 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to
use the underlying leased premises, leasehold land and
motor vehicle under lease arrangements over the lease
terms from 2 to 50 years. They are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Such determination
is made on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement, regardless of whether the arrangements
take the legal form of a lease.

Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use asset
and corresponding liability at the date of which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the asset’s estimated useful life and the lease term.

15 HE#E

(i)

AEBNHERPRARG

FEREEEEASEN2E50
FORHARBEHEERER
HEAEYE  HET R
BN o ERAEEERKA
R EITE R RFHRERED
o

11 75 5% [ 3R A 2R TR 2 BE S P A
P B EE — BB [ B ot PR 42 I 4
BRENBREIAE  Al—ER
5~ RN ZERE L BB
REBEHE - ZEBERY
BERAZHERATOFGEMmE
H TRERELHEEEBAR
AHE -

HEMTERBEREEE
WHMBEEE HAKEEH
EERAMEEARE BEHE
NRDAEERS MK
Ko BHRARBHANBR
E: - UFFEH B MR A G
B EEBEYNE - EREE
ENREEEMRFTAIERFEHK
HEHBREE LNEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

15 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for (Continueq)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate;

° amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option;

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option; and

o lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases of the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

15 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received; and

° any initial direct costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less.

Some of the property leases include extension options.
These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing contracts. The extension options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. The Group considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option in determining the lease
term. The assessment is revised if a significant event
or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects the assessment.

15 HE#E

(i)

AEENHERDHRARST R
(&)

(R T S A
BAHE -

s MEEREWYIZTFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

16 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when

there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax

recoverable against current income tax liabilities and when

the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income

tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable

entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention

to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are

as follows:

Deferred income tax assets
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant
to set-off provisions

Deferred income tax liabilities
Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant
to set-off provisions

BB ERE

AR 35 ISR SR AR TR
Bf&

BEFSHEE

REEH RS R ETR IR

BE

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

16

ESEFRSH

BBVATE A] 98 B BT THE A A R Uk (el BT
HIFGHENRMAERaERERE
BERFASHEER B BER—HBH
B ERNE R T RERTE R
BUHPRSHAREERERERF
MEREEERE - ARERTEME
MEERAE - BESBAOT

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
1,811 2,496
(1,038) (1,962)
773 534
1,038 1,962
(1,038) (1,962)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

16 Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets, without taking

into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same

tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

At 1 January 2022

Credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023

Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2023

R2022F1A1H
Rza 2ERERA

R =R

202212 A31B &
2023F1A1H

RigA2EWRERA (15

ERzR=t

202312 A31H

16 EZEFTBHR(E)

REFHRAEER AR NEHE

g BIEFSHEENEEIT

Lease

Provision liabilities Total
B HEaE @5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx TR TR
272 458 730

627 1,210 1,837
- (M) (71)

899 1,597 2,496
260 (908) (648)
- 37) 37)

1,159 652 1,811
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16 Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax liabilities, without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

At 1 January 2022 202241 18

Credited/(charged) to the consolidated REEAZERERA/ (F15)
statement of comprehensive income

Exchange difference ERER

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 7202212 A31H &

2023F1H1H

Credited/(charged) to the consolidated RiEa2ERERA/ (05
statement of comprehensive income

Exchange difference R ER

At 31 December 2023 ©2023F12431R

The Group has certain undistributed earnings which, if paid
out as dividends, would be subject to tax in the hands of the
recipient. An assessable temporary difference exists, but no
deferred tax liability has been recognized as the Group is able
to control the timing of distribution from its PRC subsidiary
and is not expected to distribute these profits in the
foreseeable future. Except for the above, as at 31 December
2023, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax for
the Group (2022: same).

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT
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16 EZEFBHR(Z

AEET R ERRBRDEER A HEE
&7 BERSHABENESNT

Accelerated

tax  Right-of-use
depreciation assets Total
MERERE ERESE @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
T T TR
(435) (619) (954)
65 (1,147) (1,082)
- 74 74
(370) (1,592) (1,962)
38 850 888
- 36 36
(332) (706) (1,038)

TEBBEAETAIREF @ HIEA
REZA - WA K EZBATIE - 757
FRERHEREESE  AUERREL
MIBAE - THEASE sz E
B RS IKREMRE - BFEHTER
AERRREDIEZE R - B EX
Frat &5 - 7202312 A31H » K
5 [0 8 B ROR FERRIR E AR I (2022
F : MR °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

17 Financial instruments by category

Assets as per consolidated statement
of financial position

Financial assets measured at amortised
cost

— Trade receivables (Note 18)

— Other receivables and deposits
(excluding prepayments and tax
receivables) (Note 18)

— Amounts due from directors (Note 26)

— Amount due from a related company
(Note 26)
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)

Total

Liabilities as per consolidated
statement of financial position

Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost

— Trade and retention payables (Note 23)

— Accruals and other payables (excluding
non-financial liabilities) (Note 23)

— Amounts due to directors (Note 26)
— Bank borrowings (Note 24)
— Lease liabilities (Note 15(i)

Total

17 REJHESWNEMIA

REMBRRRATEE
REHERATENEREE

— & Z WA (H7E18)

—HEMEWRIE RIES
(TMBREBMFIER
FEUHLTE) (BH3E18)

— W EEFIA
(FF7E26)

— FEUy — AR A Bl k8
(FfzE26)

-HRE MRS EEY
(FFzE21)

mEt

FEMBRRRAREE
REHKAGTEN S RAE

— B S RIE R EMHRE
% (F15E23)

—FEET B A R E AR FUE
(TR ermas)
(FF7E23)

— FEHEEFIE (7E26)

— IRITIE R (K E24)

—HEB & @EE15(3))

et

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
43,199 14,493
2,405 2,931
759 =
11,627 12,018
8,650 70,880
66,640 100,322
83,624 27,280
7,932 4,421

- 5,991

9,886 10,638
3,006 8,544
104,448 56,874
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18 Trade and other receivables

18 HEERHEMEWRE

Trade receivables

@ EBZEKFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Trade receivables B S EWGRIA 46,063 17,143
Less: provision for impairment B RERE
(Note 3.1(a)(ii)) (P 5E3.1(a)(ii)) (2,864) (2,650)
Trade receivables, net B 5 WG IR F5E 43,199 14,493
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on ERBZEAENE S EIIENRE
invoice date is as follows: DT
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Within 90 days 90K 43,077 14,458
91-180 days 912180k 376 -
Over 180 days 180K A E 2,610 2,685
46,063 17,143

EHFEFPNEEHETEN TI0E60
Ko AREBME ZERFIATIAE T
=HE (20224 : ) °

The credit terms provided to customers mainly range
from 30 to 60 days. The Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in HK$ (2022: same).

184 WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Prepayments for structural steelwork

Other prepayments HEFERFRIE

Other receivables Hofh e Y kIR

Other tax receivables HAb TR IE
Deposits b

Deferred listing expenses (Note) EE s (BEE)
Prepayment for listing expenses TEf Emks

Less: Non-current deposits

Current portion BNERER 5>

Note: Deferred listing expenses will be deducted from equity
upon listing.

The other receivables and deposits are denominated in
HK$ (2022: same). None of the other receivables and
deposits were impaired.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the end of each reporting period is
the carrying amount of each class of trade and other
receivables mentioned above.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

MBI ERNKE

18 B NHEMEWRIEGE

(b) EMbREKFIR - e RIAN A

B JEBNERIR &

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
2,254 820
223 156
43 158
2,911 757
2,362 2,773
4,661 =
166 -
12,620 4,664
- (1,013)
12,620 3,651

BEE - B LM SR EMEFE
R RS ©

H b fE UG TE R AR @ LAOB JTET
B (20224 : #H[AE]) - BEEE M
FEUW A IR S RE °

B 5 I E A YRR MY AR E (B
HEEQNFERE  RERSH
RAEmEERR R L& ER
B 5 R E A E WA K@
I

B RUFKIETDNEAEER %
BRREPRERGMERZ P
WERETRIR o i B 5 R E A0
WHRIRTEA IR — F L E R
A ER - AREBHLEE
REBHR)UE - BIBED R
RRBEE - BRERIERE
BEJIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
(Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. Other receivables
are recognised initially at fair value. The Group holds
the trade and other receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

19 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Included in contract assets/(liabilities) are the following:

Contract assets BHEE
Unbilled revenue ENEES e

Retention receivables for

structural steelwork (Note ¢) (FitsEe)
Total contract assets BHEERE
Less: provision for impairment W B
Contract assets, net EHEEFE
Contract liabilities ABHAaE

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

18 EZ N HMEWFEIE(Z

(b)

Hi IR - e RBMAR
TH (4

B 5 R SR Z R E R
ELRER  RIFRFEDRE
WHREBREEARMERS @ &
R AR AP EER - AR
KRBT LR EER - A&
BREE 5 R E M E RN
BONAEREANRERE A
e B AR A0 P B R R SR OR 2 B 5
KA RERETEE S R
HAib e R -

19 EHEERGHNARE

AIARKEE/(BREWT

A TRNERRES

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
96,060 20,698
69,668 55,856
165,728 76,554
(4,159) (2,796)
161,569 73,758
(3,196) (2,200)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

19 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued) 19 EHEEREHNEGEHE)

Note: FfaE -

(@  The Group classifies these contract assets and liabilities as @ AEEBZEEHNEERBESE
current because the Group expects to realise them in its BAnE - AAREBEEFEELER
normal operating cycle. e BB A HE R o

()  The settlement analysis of unbilled revenue and contract ) FAZRW=ERELHNBEKRIESAS
liabilities based on project cycle was as follows: HEROTET -

2023 2023
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Unbilled revenue: ENGEL e
To be recovered within twelve months 1R B A 2 A 96,060 20,698

Contract liabilities: BHBEE:

To be recognised within twelve months B+ =l A 2 AR 3,196 2,200

(c)  Retention receivables are settled in accordance with the (0 FERRESBESBASOIERTIA
terms of the respective contracts. The terms and conditions ER o BRRIREB S IR RIFHR
in relation to the release of retention vary from contract to FEELMABMRTE @ BRBERE
contract, which is subject to practical completion, the expiry T WEEEETEERKESE
of the defect liability period or a pre-agreed time period. In MM E o MBI KRS -
the consolidated statement of financial position, retention FERRESBEBEE FE&LAEE
receivables were classified as current assets based on its DEERBEE - ZSEWRES
normal operating cycle. The settlement analysis of these ERBEBAENERNES DT
retention receivables based on the terms of related contracts T -

was as follows:

2023 2023

20234 20224F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHT

To be recovered within twelve months B+ =@ A ke 41,241 25,706
To be recovered more than twelve months R ERE+ — 1@ A

after the end of the year LA_E U [a] 28,427 30,150

69,668 55,856
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19

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continueqd)

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities

The changes in contract assets of the Group were due to
the timing difference in provision of construction services and
the right to payment upon receiving certification from quality
surveyors for construction contracts. The Group also applied
the simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires the use of the lifetime
expected loss to determine the provision for contract assets.
Please refer to Note 3.1(a)(ii) for the credit risk of contract
assets.

Contract liabilities for the construction contracts increase
(2022: decreased) due to the increase (2022: reduction) in
receipt in advance on overall contract activities.

Accounting policies of contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
from customers in exchange for the provision of structural
steelwork that the Group has transferred to the customers
that is not yet unconditional. Contract assets arise when
the Group has provided the structural steelwork under the
relevant contracts but the works have yet to be certified
by architects, quantity surveyors or other representatives
appointed by the customers and/or the Group’s right to
payment is still conditional on factors other than passage of
time. Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivable at the point when the Group’s
right to payment becomes unconditional other than passage
of time.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

Accounting policies of contract assets and contract liabilities
(Continued)

In accordance with the terms of the contracts entered into
with customers, the Group periodically submits to customers
progress payment applications for the value of work
done under the contracts along with any variation orders
performed. Upon receiving the Group’s progress payment
applications, the customer will examine and certify the works
done by issuing payment certificate to the Group. The Group
will then issue invoices to the customers for settlement. The
credit term granted by the Group to the customers generally
ranges from 30 to 60 days from the issue of invoices.
Customers usually retain an amount up to 10% of the value
of work done, subject to a cap of 5% of the total contract
sum as retention money for the contract. The terms and
conditions in relation to the release of retention vary from
contract to contract, which is subject to practical completion,
the expiry of the defect liability period and the discussion of
final accounts.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the
same approach adopted for impairment assessment of trade
receivables.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer the aforesaid services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

19

BREEREHNEE(E

BRBERAHABNEFREE

BEARFIIVANOKR - RNEE
TSR R & AV e ) TARE R FT B
THAMEETE 2 EBERNEFER
HEERERR o WA AR EER#EE KR
wi& - HeBkERETKIR - I
M AEEBHARER - AE - A&
EmEls HASRENURESE - KE
ERErEENEERaHARER
SN T30Z60H - FEATZR
BIAHBTIIREEEN10%SRE
FRABENSENSY - LMERE
HRBFL - BEABRHREFSOBERR
BHEEREGHAME - HEUARE KRR
T REEREETHNER ALY
RERE MR o

BNAERBRE S RRTANAE
SRR R TR -

EHRERASEA A TR LRSS
BRTEF  MAKEERZEFPK
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20

Investments in life insurance contracts

Key management insurance contracts TEEEEBRIEEHN

As at 1 January MM AR
Addition NE

Change in cash surrender value (Note 6)

As at 31 December ®12831H

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held life insurance
policy for certain directors of the Company. The investments
in life insurance contract are denominated in United States
Dollar. The Group has the right to surrender the insurance
partially or in full at any time after the first policy anniversary
for cash value. Cash value represents the account value net
of surrender charges (2022: same).

The Group invests in certain key management life insurance
contracts, which contain both investment and insurance
elements. The life insurance contracts are initially recognised
at the amount of premium paid, and subsequently measured
at each reporting date at its cash surrender value. Changes
to the cash surrender value at each reporting date will be
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as “other (loss)/gain, net”. In the event of death of the
insured person, the surrender of the policies, or the policies
mature, the investment will be derecognised and any resulting
gain/loss will be recognised in profit or loss.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT
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AERBENRE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
3,460 3,360
2,846 =
(405) 100
5,901 3,460

R2023F 128318 » AEBAARR
AETEEHBEASRE - ARRR
BHIREAETTRE - AEEBELE
E—ARERF 2EHEMRE[IBY
FEMRERNKRECEE - B
BEENKREREAENESER
(20224 : #8[A) °

AEEREETHAREEABASR
BREH  ETRESRERRBRRSD
ABRBRENNTRENRE S RHE
R ERREWmE AR LR SRR
BEME NREREEMRESRRE
ENZEFH KNGS ZEKERTER
RIEM (ER) Was F8] - ERR
AFH - REERRIFREIHNER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand

— Cash at bank
— Cash on hand

Maximum exposure to credit risk

RITRFHERE
—RITRE
—FERT

RAEERRHA

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following

currencies:

HK$
Renminbi

Total

BTT
ARE
st

Bank balances of the Group amounting to HK$676,000
(2022: HK$1,080,000) were placed with certain banks in
Mainland China as at 31 December 2023. The remittance

of these balances is subject to the foreign exchange control

restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

21

BHERESEEY
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
8,622 70,778
28 102
8,650 70,880
8,622 70,778

e MRITESRATIIEEHE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
7,946 69,698
704 1,182
8,650 70,880

M2023F12A310 » AEBRET
FR B A ER 1T RO SR 1T 4 84 /676,000
7570 (20224F : 1,080,000/ 7T) ° (&
HRZSEHBT T RRTE RN INE

EHIRRH o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

21 Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) 21 BERBLSEENE)
The above figures reconcile to the amount of cash shown in L EURRE RESIREMERTR
the consolidated statement of cash flows at the end of year as ReSEHHERNOT -
follows:
2023 2022
2023 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Cash and bank balances as above iR e MRS 8,650 70,880
Bank overdrafts (Note 24) IRITIEL (5F24) - (2,184)
Balances per consolidated statement RERSREBRMTER
of cash flows 8,650 68,696
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash EireReEnERT  BHekRiesE
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with BYEREFHERS  FHRRRITHE
banks and bank deposits with original maturities of three HERRRAEEHAA=EAERE
months or less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated RERITFER  UARIBITHEX - LA
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown PR ERFR - RITEZBTRRE
within “bank borrowings” in current liabilities. BENIRITERIZF -
22 Share capital and capital reserve 22 BARBRAREE
(@)  Share capital @ IR
Equivalent
nominal value
Number of of ordinary
ordinary shares share

TRREE EAREEFE

Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each upon 202346 A28 H A 18 38,000,000 HK$380,000,000
incorporation on 28 June 2023 BAR0.01B T LR 380,000,000/ 7T
Balance at 31 December 2023 1202312 A31 B R &4k 38,000,000 HK$380,000,000
380,000,000/ 7T

Issued and fully paid: ERTREE
Upon incorporation on 28 June 2023 7202356 A28 A st pk 3 B 1 HK$0.01
0.01/%7T
Balance at 31 December 2023 2023512 A31 A M &gk 1 HK$0.01
0.017%7T
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22 Share capital and capital reserve (Continued) 22 WRARBRAEEE

(b) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represented combined
share capital of the subsidiaries now comprising the
Group after elimination of inter-company investments

(Note 1.2).

23 Trade, retention and other payables

Trade payables
Retention payables

Accruals and other payables
— Accrued staff cost
— Accruals for listing expenses
— Other accruals and payables

The trade payables, retention payables, accruals and other
payables are mainly denominated in HK$ and the carrying
amounts approximate their fair values (2022: same).

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice

date is as follows:

Within 30 days
31-60 days

61-90 days

More than 90 days

(N

1.2) o

AEENBEAFRBEREER
NEIRREHHREMAEH
PR TP B & ] FE AR B (B &

23 BHEMNNKE - EAREZRHEM

P FRIE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
B ENFIA 77,770 20,105
ERES 5,854 7,175
83,624 27,280

FERTE A R B R FRIE
—EEFE TR 4,275 3,470
—FEFT ETAX 5,309 =
—Hh e B8 A R EMNFUE 7,932 4,421
17,516 7,891

GEIRDI

BHRNR - BNRES - B
R EMMENFIEE BB TTAHE
HRmEESEE QP ERS (20224 :

EN T AHNE 5 RN AR KR

DT
2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
30K 23,730 6,851
31&E60H 28,475 4,998
61ZE90H 1,939 5,307
im0 H 23,626 2,949
77,770 20,105
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24 Bank borrowings 24 RITER
2023 2022
2023F 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAT
Current, secured and guaranteed BH - BEAREER
- Bank loans (Notes a and b) —iRITER (HisFakb) 9,886 7,096
- Bank overdrafts (Note b) —iR1TE (MiFEb) - 2,184
9,886 9,280
Current, guaranteed BNHR - BER
- Bank loans (Notes a and b) —RITER (KiskaRkb) - 1,358
9,886 10,638
The bank overdrafts and bank loans are denominated in HK$ RITEX RBITERTIABTTEE
and bear interest at floating rates that are market dependent WIET 5 2 2 /)2 B F| K51 B (2022
(2022: same). & MR °
(@ The table below analyses the bank borrowings of the @ TEITRERBTHEES
Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the PR BEAEBIZABED A
remaining period at the year end to the contractual HREDRRITIER - EF I
maturity date without taking into consideration the B RREKERGEROE
effect of repayment on demand clause. 2.
2023 2022
2023F 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Bank borrowings repayable: ARLUT FHEEZED
RATIER :
Within one year 1R 3,468 4,640
Between 1 to 2 years 1224 1,484 1,201
Between 2 to 5 years 2FE5F 4,549 3,785
Over 5 years 5% LA 385 1,012
9,886 10,638
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings BITEFNEAEEEATE
approximate their fair values. The weighted average BE o INEFEHEFNEE4.91%
interest rate is 4.91% (2022: 4.03%). (20224 : 4.03%) °
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24 Bank borrowings (Continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2023, (i) non-revolving loan facility
amounted to HK$6,979,000 (2022: HK$5,965,000)
and revolving loan facility amounted to HK$2,003,000
(2022: HK$2,184,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Chan
Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Ms. Chan Suk Man and
Mr. Chan Wing Hong, secured by properties owned
by Wealthy River International Investment Limited,
a related company of the Group, and life insurance
contracts owned by Mr. Chan Kam Kei and Ms. Chan
Suk Man; (i) SME non-revolving loan facilities amounted
to nil (2022: HK$1,358,000) were guaranteed by HKMC
Insurance Limited, Mr. Chan Kam Kei and Mr. Chan
Kam Kong; and (jii) non-revolving loan facility amounted
to HK$904,000 (2022: HK$1,131,000) was secured
by the properties owned by Wealthy River International
Investment Limited, Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Ms.
Choi Chick Cheong, and guaranteed by Mr. Chan Kam
Kong, Mr. Chan Kam Kei and Mr. Chan Wing Hong
respectively.

The Group has the following undrawn bank facilities
consisting of bank overdrafts and revolving loans:

Floating rate TFENFR

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date.

24 RITERE

(b)

MR2023F12A831H » ()FEEIR
B A E £ %6,979,000/8 T
(20224 : 5,965,000/87T) &
fERERRLE2,003,000/8 T
(20224 : 2,184,000/ 7T) -
MPREELL  FBREIEL -
B R R 27 = R BROK R St AR R A
ERMAETIEEEEBRA
AEENYE  AEE [
BN T M PREBA A RERE
ZETHENASRR S HER
()PP EEBRERR
B AT (20224 : 1,358,000/
L) BEBEERBRERA
A REBEELERRETLAE
REER M) EERE KA
& /904,000 7T (20224 -
1,131,000 7T) + A& /LB
WEBRAT - FKELEER
ZEEZLTHBENYEER
B mBRSBTIAE BREAEL
A R BROK R o SR AELR o

AEBEARERNRITHE (B
RITEXREREFO T ¢

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET T
42,997 32,816

ERNT R FERRAES
R ZRATER  (ERERIZ
BT E - PTISSIA (kR
RHRA) RER S 2 HOE
] 2B EA BRI BOENME
ARG S 2 H KSR E

o °

PRIEAS SR B A BRI R A
HABNGEEEEEREBE
201288 - BRERED R
RRBAME -
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25 Cash flows information

(@)  Cash (used in)/generated from operations:

Profit before income tax expense
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Finance income
Finance costs
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss/(gain) on investments in
insurance contracts
Net exchange differences
Impairment losses on financial assets
and contract assets

Operating profit before changes in
working capital
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets
(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Increase in trade payables,
accruals and other payables
Decrease/(increase) in contract
liabilities
Increase in amounts due from
directors
Decrease in amount due from
a related company

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operations

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

25 WEHREER

(@ #&KZFTA) FEHRSE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fix FAET
bR TS A S AR I 33,653 46,456
HATRIERE
M - BB REEITE
1,849 2,050
FREEENE 3,956 3,338
EUp 3 ON (207) (95)
B TSR AR 662 434
HEMZE - BREREH
&8, () 79 (23)
REEELIRE
&8, (Wam) 405 (100)
b X ZRFE 411 2,216
CREEREH
EEREESRE 1,577 3,800
EEZSEBATN
=il 42,385 58,076
EEESE
BHIEE (M) R (89,174) 6,547
B 5 REMEWEIE -
e MIENFRIA
(g @ (33,467) 12,921
B S EMNFIE - BB
Ko EAth AT FRIBE AN 65,969 4,666
EHa B> (8
996 (441)
FEULEE E FIEE N
(759) —
FEU —EIRA R A A
RIER 480 480
g (FrR) /s 5%
(13,570) 82,249
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25 Cash flows information (Continued)

(b)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

Net book amount (Note 14)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 6)

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Net debt reconciliation

R FE (FfaE14)

25 BEFREER(E

(b)

HEYIE - BB R REN
(B518) Wezs (Fif7E6)

HEWE - BERERE

PRS50R

The movements of liabilities from financing activities for
each of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

As at 1 January 2022

Cash flows

Non-cash movements:
Inception of lease contracts
Interest expenses
Lease termination
Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2022

1202261 A1H
i
FReEE):
HEANRR
MERR
RERI
[ ERE
120225128318

REEBERERT  HEY
¥ BELXEHEZRESR
e
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET THET
79 =
(79) 23
- 23

() BEFFHEYE

HZE2023F 2022912 A31H
HFEEFZRETRELSR

REE :

Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
At EE RERDMELMAR
Borrowings-
Cash excluding
and cash bank Lease  Amounts due
equivalents overdrafts liabiities  to directors Total
&%
"eR Atk fEfd
Re%EY RITER HEARE LES Y] 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL TEL TEL TEL
11,729 (4,703 (2,614) (13912 (9,500)
57,044 (3,435) 2,928 7,921 64,458
- - (9,637) - (9,637)
- (316) (118) - (434)
- - 317 - 317
(77 - 580 - 508
68,696 (8,454) (8,544) (6,991) 45,707
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25 Cash flows information (Continued) 25

(c)  Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

REREBER (&

(€ ERFRERE

Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
AftEE REEDMEENER
Borrowings-
Cash  excluding
and cash bank Lease Amounts due

equivalents  overdrafts liabilities  to directors Total

3
BER T FEf
RESEN BAEX HEEE £ @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TiER TiER TiER TiER

Asat 1 January 2023 120235 1R1H 68,696 (8,454) (8,544) (5,991) 45,707
Cash flows BeHE (60,019) (986) 4,483 5,991 (50,531)
Non-cash movements: FREEY -
Interest expenses RS - (446) (216) = (662)
Lease termination MERI - - 1,108 - 1,108
Exchange realignment EREHAE (27) - 163 - 136
As at 31 December 2023 1202312 A31H 8,650 (9,886) (3,006) - (4,242)
26 Related party transactions 26 BBAIRS

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions. Related parties may be individuals (being members
of key management personnel, significant shareholder and/
or their close family members) or entities and include entities
which are under the significant influence of related parties
of the Group where those parties are individuals. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

fM—T AN BRI EEERNEEDN
M RBERRITEEATEN » %
T BAR R BN SR A A - BREE DT A]
REAANBIEFEEEAER  FERR
R/FEARRGKE) RERE - 8
BXAKERABBRTEATZENE
B8 - WA X HERES - TR
15,7 B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

26 Related party transactions (Continueq) 26 BABAERZ(E)

(@  The directors of the Company are of the view that the @ ARBNEZFRRUTING
following parties/companies were related parties that RABRFRNERAEEBR S
had transactions or balances with the Group during the SR AL RR ) RE
year:

Name of related parties

BB SHE B8

Mr. Chan Kam Kong

fREE LA

Mr. Chan Kam Kei

PREBESLHE

Ms. Chan Suk Man

BRORSEZ +

Mr. Chan Wing Hong

BRoK RS

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

EHEERTLT

Wealthy River International
Investment Limited

2 LERREBRAR

Relationship with the Group
BEAKEHER

Controlling shareholder and executive director

ERBRRENITES

Controlling shareholder and executive director

ERRRENTESR

Controlling shareholder and executive director

ERIRR RBITES

Controlling shareholder and non-executive director

ERBR MIEMITES

Controlling shareholder and non-executive director

ERIRR MIERITE S

Controlled by Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Mr. Chan Kam Kei and
Ms. Chan Suk Man

HREBIIEE RBELERRRZELLES

The following transactions were carried out with related () MATXRSTyEAEEHFET

parties:

Save as disclosed in Note 24, the following transactions
were carried out with a related party:

Rental paid to
Wealthy River International
Investment Limited

The transactions were conducted in the normal course
of business at prices and terms as agreed between the
Group and the related party.

BRETEE24PTBEE I U TR

2 THEARER T ¢
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
ST
BEIBREEER
NGIL: oYz 480 480

RSN EFEBBIZFRA
5 E B B R 07 2 [ h E H (B AR
R ARTRFTHEST
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26 Related party transactions (Continued)

()

Key management compensation

Key management includes the executive directors of
the Company. The compensation paid or payable to
key management for employee services is disclosed in
Note 9.

Amounts due from/to a related company and directors

As at 31 December 2023, the balances with a
related company and directors of the Company were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand and
approximate their fair values (2022: same).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
maximum amount due from a related company was
HK$12,033,000 (2022: HK$12,260,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the maximum amount due from directors was
HK$3,736,230 (2022: nil).

As at 31 December 2023, the balance with a related
company and directors were denominated in HK$
(2022: same).

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

26 BEEARS (E

()

IEETBEMNS

TREEERRBRARRMITE
Z-EERBEMNIEMNE
ZEEENMERERHMEI -

FEY e — R A R R E
=R

R2023F 124310  E2—FHRE
BRRIRADNREB L BHE
|- 2B RAREREER
HENFEHEE (20224 : 1
@) o

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE
Y —HEAREATREBERES
£12,033,00078 7T (20224 :
12,260,000/ 7T) °

HZE2023F12A31HILFE -
B E EFERm £3,736,230
T (00224 © E) o

R2023%F12H318 © EE—fE
AR REBMNESR BT
B (20224 : fAR]) °
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27 Company statement of financial position and reserve 27 REIBEMRRRRHESE
movements
2023
20234
HK$’000
FExT
Assets BE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary (Note) R—REM BRI E (i) 150,360
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TERRIR 4,804
Total assets BEHAE 155,164
Equity e
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 G# G A GRS
Share capital N —*
Capital reserve &N 150,360
Accumulated losses R5TiEE (15,982)
134,378
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities REBARG
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R BB FRIE 5,284
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHF B A &I 3IA 15,502
Total liabilities =Rt 20,786
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAE 155,164

Note: The investment in a subsidiary represented the carrying
amount of the equity items shown in the separate financial
statements of Wing Kei Hong Kong as at the date when it
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. (Note
1.2).

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had not been
incorporated and, accordingly, it had no assets, liabilities or
reserves as at that date.

* The amount is below HK$1,000.

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2024 and
were signed on its behalf.

Chan Kam Kei Chan Kam Kong
Director Director

izt - R—RHMBARNREENKES
BRAERBZEMNBAREBE
BBY MR PAYIR AR B Wik
e (FEE1.2) °

R2022%12 A318 » AR H AR
A AL - EReZ A E TR
BE - BENKEE -

B DRAE 000/ 7T ©
ARRFBHHRRAKRHEEEN2024
FIA2TEHEL HUTEERRE
=,

REE &L
EZE BF
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27 Company statement of financial position and reserve
movements (Continued)

Balance as at 28 June 2023 7R2023F6H28H
(date of incorporation) GGEMAXSZ B 8f) M &8k
Comprehensive loss ZHEIE
Loss for the year FREE
Total comprehensive loss 2HEEBEE
Transaction with owners in HERABEEANEEA
their capacity as owners EITHRS

Effect of Reorganisation (Note 1.2) B4R FZE (MizE1.2)

Total transaction with owners in £ 5 A#A AKEAR A
their capacity as owners EITHR H4E5

Balance at 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31 BB 4554

Note: Capital reserve of the Company represented the carrying
amount of the equity items shown in the consolidated financial
statement of Wing Kei Hong Kong as at the date when it
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT

27 RARAMBRRERREEEZE (E

Capital
reserve Accumulated
(note) losses Total
BRAEE
(Bt =) ZEtEE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
- (15,982) (15,982)
- (15,982) (15,982)
150,360 - 150,360
150,360 - 150,360
150,360 (15,982) 134,378
MiaE : ARBRARBERENKEEBEK

RARREZEWBLAE BKE
BRNERE P BIRER AR
THEMRAEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Contingent liabilities

In the ordinary course of the Group’s business, the Group
has been subject to a number of claims due to personal
injuries suffered by employees of the Group or the Group’s
subcontractors in accidents arising out of and in the course
of their employment. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that such claims are covered by insurance and
will not result in any material adverse impact on the financial
position or results and operations of the Group. No provision
has been made in respect of these claims in the consolidated
financial statements (2022: same).

Commitment

The Group did not have any material commitment as at 31
December 2023 (2022: same).

Subsequent events

Prior to the Listing, in January 2024, the Company declared
an interim dividend of approximately HK$26,586,000, of
which approximately HK$10,000,000 was settled by cash
and approximately HK$16,586,000 was offset against the
aggregate amounts due from the directors and the related
company.

On 8 March 2024, the Company issued additional
1,499,999,999 shares by way of capitalisation of
HK$14,999,999.99 standing to the credit of the Company’s
share premium account. On the same day, the shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with an
offer price of HK$0.25 per Share. In connection with the
Listing, the Company issued a total of 500,000,000 shares
for total proceeds (before related fees and expenses) of
HK$125,000,000. Dealing in the shares of the Company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange commenced on 8
March 2024.

Other than the above subsequent events, there have been
no other material events subsequent to 31 December 2023
which require adjustment or disclosure in accordance with
HKFRS.

28

29

30

HREE

RAKEN —REBHBIEF - AEE
EEEZEAARERXAEED BH
MESEEREREFEENEHT
BXANBBENER - ARAESFR
R ZERRDERBRE - Ty
ZER B AR B R AR I R B A AR
EREXRTHEE - A BHRET
3 8 51 5% 5 B R A A (20224
R

i

N2023%FE12 8310 » AEEI EIT
Al B AAIE (20224 - M) -

REBREE

R EMA] - RARN2024F1 AE K
R HARR 8. 4926,586,0008 70 + E A4
10,000,000 TTE AR &E + R4
16,586,000/ 7T Al K 58 FE U = K 73

BN B TRIBARER -

M2024563H8H + AR EIEBKAR
A& @ B AR #E AR E814,999,999.99
BT ER » 8171,499,999,999
SEINR D - AR B - B 5 R B
RETERLET - FEERTRR0.25
BIL-BEMME  ARAET
A #£500,000,000/% 0% 15 © FT1S 3
HEE(MKREREA LKA A
125,000,000 7T c XA ARMRN
2024F3A8HRAEM AT ERE

=]

br bty A E BRI FIBAN - PR2023%F
12 A31 & E B A ERIBE BB

HEAELARKBEBROHEMER
==
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Summary of other potentially material accounting

31.1 Subsidiaries

31.1.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

31.1.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (328R) BR AT
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HitbFJ e E RS BERBE

31.1 B ARE]

31.1.1 46 4KH

PSR el
BEGIRNE R (B
BHER) - G AEERA
SEREBMARTEE
HOER LT AT ER
BRER - RN EBR
HREROEN RIS
LR - 7R W ED
HEE - B AT TR
RNBEAEEY A RS
ANE - WREEIRELE
¥R RTBRA A -

SERNNRARIERS - #&
HEREBRRBERZHAR
BRI T8 o BRIF
R 5T B RIBEENTEER
BELIRE - TRKRE
BEETSHE - HER
AT BHRENTER
fEHBNE) - UFEREAARE
B RARBER—B -

31.1.2 BB IRA

NN R §= R DR
HRREARR - KRB
REMBEREHKA - K
BRAMEERANREIR
BN R EHEIEAR
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31 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

31.1.2 Separate financial statements (Continueq)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statement of the
investee’s net assets including goodwiill.

31.2 Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-

maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments,

has been identified as the executive directors of the

Company that make strategic decisions.

31.3 Foreign currency translation

@

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

31

HitbFTReE RN ST BERBE (2)

31.1 MiBRaE] (&)
31.1.2 BB iR (&)
it &5 BB A B A U ER Y
% 88 = kA% S HE R 5%
M A R A 2w U A 4
B S NB I ERERE
RERAEEBHGA MG
WMERAMTFEIRERFNE
EFE(BERE) NER
B BIBESRZESHER
RIMREEITRERE -
31.2 PEPERE
EEDE T AR B IER
RERLSALRME — WA
EFR - BEORERMTMHKE
BRI ETELEERAREE
AR B EH BRSO MOR ER AR
RIEITES -
31.3 HNEEBE

@ RERERIHEE

AEE R EE B 5HR
RFTFIBBHIAZERE
BTN BEERRN
B (e E -
e B mRIABIT (178

T 2R BrAARRA
RIEE B R AR EE /T
MEH o
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31 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

®)

©

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within “administrative expenses”.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet

o income and expenses for each income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions),
and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Hitb T Re E RS BERBE (&

31 Summary of other potentially material accounting 31
policies (Continued)

31.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 31.3 JNEEME (42)

(c)  Group companies (Continued)

° all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

31.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

31 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.5 Financial assets

@

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as at
amortised cost only if both of the following criteria
are met:

(@ The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows; and

(b) The contractual terms give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. The Group
reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing the assets
changes.

If collection of the amounts is expected in one
year or less they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
The Group’s financial assets comprise trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits,
amounts due from directors, amount due from a
related company and cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

31 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.5 Financial assets (Continueq)

®)

(©

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial asset carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

31 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.5 Financial assets (Continueq)

@

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables,
management considers that their credit risks have
not increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical
default rate and current financial position. The
impairment provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit losses which is close
to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

31 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.6 Financial liabilities

@

©®)

Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Financial liabilities
at amortised cost are recognised initially at fair
value net of transaction costs incurred and
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any
difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are classified as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Financial liabilities
at amortised cost are recognised initially at fair
value net of transaction costs incurred and
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any
difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

31 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.7

31.8

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax
payable on the current year’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
year in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

31 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.8 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

©®)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting year and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

31

Hitb T Re E RS BERBE (&

31.8 BNEINRIEFTISHR ()

©®)

AT 1EH

BEFMEHRILIRBEEX
REEMAEMNRERSR
ENMBERGEPMBHRER
B ERE B 2 B TR =
BEGHERE - A - &
EREHIRR BB T HER
EEmELRT TR
FRERMSHAR—HER
5 (R EAARIN A5
EREENBEMESL
MERXZHE T E ST
JERBEZ - QIR T A
fR o BIEFERVREE
FRAEBRHHEL LD
M W TREHAR R AERE
EFEHEEZRSRT
FSH B BB EREMAN
PR (MBUR)EE -

EREFTSHEEEERE
JE SR & B AT I A A
HEEREBENRERET
IARERR,

e 13 2 F] ORS8RI BT T Y
RIS BN AR F 1S T & B
BEEE - RETEHEA
RERER — AN
B R HEE P S 1R
EERAEENE - HER
B RIMOR R BT TR sHAE
NMEBEBEBRFHEELESE
KRR EERBER
&l - RIBNEBEEFT ST
BESEREKE -

Annual Report 2023 ¢ —Z = =FF3f

213



214

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

31 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.8 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

©®)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

31.9 Employee benefits

@

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong and participates in employee social
security plan as required by the relevant local
regulations in the PRC. In Hong Kong, both the
Group and the staff are required to contribute
5% of the employees’ relevant income with
a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF
scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
in a separately administered fund. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF scheme are expensed
as incurred. In the PRC, the Group is required to
make contributions to the retirement benefit plans
administered by the local government authorities
which are based on a certain percentage of the
eligible employee’s relevant income. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expenses
when they are due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

31 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.9 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b)  Bonus

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses when the Group has a contractual
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
such obligation can be made.

(c)  Long service payments

The Group’s employees in Hong Kong who
have completed the required number of years of
services to the Group are eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their
employment, provided that such termination
meets the circumstances specified in the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the
probable future long service payments expected
to be made. The provision is based on the best
estimate of the probable future payments which
have been earned by the employees from their
services to the Group up to the reporting date.

31.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.
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Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.10 Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net
cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of
the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement %4 B %R & Kist

Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

31.11 Earnings per share

@

®)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and up to
the date of these financial statements,
excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R &Kzt

31 Summary of other potentially material accounting 31 HMAEEANSTTEERHEE
policies (Continued)

31.12 Dividend distribution 3112 BRI
Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the 7R A &) 2k 3R By 48 A 7R 5= B B
Company or the companies now comprising the Group N FIRY AR R 5 R BB A AR R 3k
is recognised as a liability in the consolidated financial EX(WER)ERSHHEL
statements in the period in which the dividends are FEUBHmEANERS —IHE
approved by the shareholders or directors, where fg o
appropriate.
Dividend proposed or declared after the reporting year RBEFEREBRYEHRE
but before the financial statements are authorised for BRETZEEZXERZIRKRE
issue are disclosed as a non-adjusting event and are ERIEAREMEE BT g
not recognised as a liability at the reporting date. RpE AR ARE -
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Summary of Financial Information 8% & R#2

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from the
published financial statements, is set out as below. This summary

TREIBEFAC TRMBRROAEE
RONEFBRFENEEREEABR
2 ABBI NMEREEZMBRKRZ—

does not form part of the audited financial statements. B o
2023 2022 2021 2020
2023F 20224 20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FH&T FAET FET
Revenue & 370,226 336,384 228,776 324,292
Cost of services BRT& AR (299,128) (269,445) (193,359) (269,254)
Gross profit EH 71,098 66,939 35,417 55,038
Other income EHblA 181 2,611 133 1,283
Other (loss)/gain, net Hith (B518) ke (484) 123 159 112
FEE
Administrative expenses TE R (19,128) (19,078) (14,670) (12,695)
Listing expenses X (15,982) = = =
(Impairment losses)/reversal of TREERAGHNEE (1,577) (3,800) 383 162
impairment losses on financial (REER) RE
assets and contract assets [SgictedE
Operating profit ae g 34,108 46,795 21,422 43,900
Finance income B A 207 95 39 23
Finance costs B TSR AR (662) (434) (526) (496)
Finance costs, net B 7S A AN 58 (455) (339) (487) (473)
Profit before income tax expense  BRAT1S R 5T 2 A& A 33,653 46,456 20,935 43,427
Income tax expense g% (8,448) (7,191) (3,599) 6,721)
Profit for the year attributable to KATEE AL 25,205 39,265 17,336 36,706
owners of the Company F @

Annual Report 2023 ¢ —Z = =FF3f

219



220

Summary of Financial Information 1% & E

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2023 2022 2021 2020
2023%F 20224F 20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHT FATT FHETT T
Non-current assets IERBEE 18,640 22,653 17,521 22,268
Current assets MENEE 238,424 174,800 135,123 141,269
Total assets BERE 257,064 197,453 152,644 163,537
Non-current liabilities EREEaE 110 4,192 501 2,575
Current liabilities RENEE 120,721 62,673 54,302 79,821
Total equity T ARER 136,233 130,588 97,841 81,141
Total liabilities and equity BENERRRE 257,064 197,453 152,644 163,537
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